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Closure of Register of Members
R RDIBF Z5

- Annual General Meeting 30th August 2019 (Friday) to 4th September 2019 (Wednesday)

BREBFERS —E-AFNA=TH (EHR) Z=F-HhFNAMNA (BH=)
Record Date 4th September 2019 (Wednesday)
k=R —E-AFHhAMAE (EH=)

- Proposed Final Dividend 11th September 2019 (Wednesday) to 13th September 2019 (Friday)
EEARERE —E-NFHhAT—B(EE=) Z=Z-AFNA+=H (E8H)
Record Date 13th September 2019 (Friday)
soix A HR —E-hFhA+=H (EHEH)

Annual General Meeting 11:00 a.m., 4th September 2019 (Wednesday)

BRBERE Harcourt Room, Lower Lobby Level, Conrad Hong Kong, Pacific Place,

88 Queensway, Hong Kong

RZZB-NFHAMNR (EH=) EF+—KIE
BREEBEIEBE8SRASLES BBBEEE  KAEREERE

Final Dividend Payable 25th September 2019 (Wednesday)
IREEREARR B —E-hFhRAZ+HA (EH=)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRHE

Year Ended 31stMarch B@Z=A=+—HILFEE

Results
.
MR
2019 2018
—B-AE ZB-N\E %
HKS million  HK$ million Change
BEEET BEHET ERalid-x)
Revenue A 7,526 6,465 +16
Gross Profit EF) 4,042 3,420 +18
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest RETREWA ~ BERAN
Income, Finance Costs, Income Tax, FriS®i - ITE - #H
Depreciation, Amortisation and BRAREEE AT
Share of Losses of Joint Venture) Eig R &R
(TEBITDAJ) 1,063 +16
Profit Attributable to Equity ZIS’L\\EH?JE%EA
Shareholders of the Company A& F| 586 +19
Basic Earnings per Share (HK cents) BREARZEF (BL) 55.5 +18
Total Dividends per BREBREARE
Ordinary Share (HK cents) (B4 35.2 +19
Year Ended 31stMarchBZ=RA=+—HLFE HK$ million B HE T
Revenue Gross Profit
LSO EF
8,000 7,526 5,000
7,000 6,465 4,042
6000| sgs, 5952 5406 4,000 3420
’ 2826 2,873
5,000 3,000 2,511
4,000
3,000 2,000
2,000 1,000
1,000
| 0 |
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
EBITDA Profit Attributable to Equity

REFFEWA - ®ERAX - Fr8% - 37 Shareholders of the Company
E HBHEARFLEEQAREENERN AARBREZFEAENGET

1,500 228 800 696
’ 700 618
1,083 586
1,200 1,063 400 531
900 595 812 500 79
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L 0 L
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Financial Highlights
R REE

Asat31stMarchR=A=+—8
Financial Position

B #EAR R
2019 2018

—B-AE —B-N\E %
HK$ million HK$ million Chapge
BEEET BEHETT BoLttEH
Total Assets HEE 5,878 5,182 +13
Net Cash Balance BE35 958 +0.2

Total Equity Attributable to Equity RATRERFE A
Shareholders of the Company FE LA R 2,910 +9

Year Ended 31st March2019 BZ—E—hE=A=+—HILEE

Sales Analysis by Location
HERES T (RHE)

62%

Mainland China
R ER A i

1%
Singapore
N3

—

Australia and
New Zealand
BN K 37 B

30%

Hong Kong Operation
(Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)
BREYK (HB8 BMREQ)
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

During FY2018/2019,the Vitasoy Group continued
todeliver strong growth in both revenue and profit
as a result of significant growth in our biggest
market of Mainland China. We will continue to
drive long term sustainable growth.

BRERBANPEXG TSN AEEEBER P
BHPEBR=-Z—/\/ —Z— AP HFEHRA NN
REFBESSAINE - RAKHERDRE
BAME o




Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Despite an increasingly challenging and uncertain international
economy, Vitasoy International Holdings Limited continued to
deliver strong growth in both revenue and profit during the year.
Thanks to significant growth in our biggest market of Mainland
China driven by strong fundamentals and operating efficiency
improvements, the Group registered 16% year-on-year growth
in revenue to HK$7,526 million. Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company grew even faster by 19% to
HK$696 million. On a constant currency basis, revenue and profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company increased by
18% and 20% respectively.

In light of the Group’s healthy financial position and strong
business growth, the Board will recommend a final dividend of
HK38.0 cents per ordinary share at the Annual General Meeting
to be held on 4th September 2019. Together with the interim
dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share, this brings the total
dividend for FY2018/2019 to HK41.8 cents per ordinary share
(FY2017/2018 total dividend: HK35.2 cents per ordinary share).

Consistency of Vision, Discipline in
Execution, Sustainability of Growth

For decades, the Group has been driving its vision to provide
high quality and nutritious products starting from our Classic
VITASOY Soymilk with strong focus on disciplined execution to
build fundamentals. Consistently with this vision, our strategy for
growth is that sustainability is not only in terms of business results
but also in terms of portfolio, energy and environmental impact.
This has been applied across all of our markets. Having achieved
ahead of time most of our key sustainability targets originally set
for FY2020/2021, we have already reset and broadened them as
detailed in our 2018/2019 Sustainability Report.

BERRQEFZABRIER THE - e
BEBERARREANNBA R GEREERSE
YR - HREAWTE AT S REBRENE
EREANEENE  EXAREER  A5EHN
WA R E 1R 16% 2 788 7,526,000,000 T © &
AEBREFEABREZANBENEER 19% 2B
¥ 696,000,000 7T ° ZEEEREAETH - A
RARDQBIRESEE ABMEFR 2 BIE N 18% &
20% °

ERNAEEMBERIEBREERKIERAY X
BER_T-NEFEAANBETNRRAEFEASY
FEBRERARKRESRE B 38.0E(L o E[E
FHRESREERISEN —2—N\ /=28
—hIREERELELEINERTER 4188
W(ZB—t 22— \UBREERELE &
IR BAR 35.278B4L) ©

BFHER - BIRFITERRE
UERHEER
AEEYHFR—ETES N BEDERIRMEE
HAEBEUENERNER OB HERITR
RO S MERAK - RIS H
B RNRURRER  ARTEREE R
MEBBRERTEEEREAEE  BBR
HERAS  WRRBSHES I AERTHE
BR - LERERSEAZHETS - HARMA
BRAENANS —B-2 2= -HHFE
FENTHERREEAE  Rit - RASER
HIELEAE AR - HBERARA=F -
—F-NEARERRBER -
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Broad-based Growth

All our markets delivered strong revenue growth.

Mainland China delivered 25% growth in revenue, reaching
HK$4,628 million. Even faster growth in profit before taxation
was due to a favourable product and geographical mix. We
are working to sustain growth rate ahead of the category but
necessary investment in building brand equity, infrastructure
and organisation is expected to impact profit performance in the
coming year.

Hong Kong Operation revenue grew 5% in revenue to HK$2,264
million, with a moderate decline in profit before taxation due to
the Group’s multiple-year investment programme in production
and logistics infrastructure.

Australia and New Zealand delivered 4% revenue growth (10%
growth in local currency) to HK$522 million, riding on consumers’
growing demand for plant milk and our strong product innovation
and commercial execution.

Singapore continued to leverage its market leadership in the tofu
category while growing its share in beverages, increasing revenue
by 7% in Hong Kong dollar terms.

Meanwhile our joint venture with Universal Robina Corporationin
the Philippines continues to increase the awareness of VITASOY
in this promising market for the long term future of our portfolio.

A More Competitive Future

As the market, retailer and shopper trend continue to emphasise
the benefits and relevance of plant-based nutrition, the Group
anticipates an increasingly competitive environment in the
future. We will continue to invest in our brand equity and
infrastructure whilst securing our growth to be supported by
adequate organisational capacity and capabilities to drive long
term sustainable growth.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Appreciation

In closing, | would like to thank the Board, the management team
and our staff. Their hard work, loyal dedication and contributions
are responsible for the Group’s continued good performance and
success. | must also thank our shareholders, customers, suppliers
and business partners for their support over the years.

Winston Yau-lai LO
Executive Chairman
20th June 2019
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GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S REPORT/
BUSINESS REVIEW
SETHRRME FEHE R

In FY2018/2019, the Vitasoy Group saw another
year of double-digit growth in both revenue and
profit. Revenue growth was broad-based across
markets with major contribution coming from
Mainland China. We will significantly increase
investments to secure foundation for sustainable

growth in long term.

HADEER-Z-N\/ Z2-ABBFENEA
RaFHIBRREENEER - SMBITEREZNR
AR AUHERETSERMEKR -  BMAKEX
RIEMNRE  AREVHEBRNBEGITFER -




Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

FY2018/2019 has been another year of double-digit growth in
both revenue and profit. The Group grew revenue by 16%, behind
broad-based growth across markets with the most significant
contribution coming from Mainland China. Profit from operations
grew evenfaster by 19%, with afavourable mix across the portfolio
and markets and high capacity utilisation. The revenue and profit
from operation would actually grow 18% and 21% respectively in
constant currency terms if the depreciation of Renminbi (RMB)
in second half of the year had not affected the performance of
Mainland China when translated into Hong Kong dollars (HKD)
for reporting.

On sustainability, this year we have already achieved most of
the Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) that were originally set
for FY2020/2021. Therefore, we have reset and broadened our
targets as illustrated in our Sustainability Report. Beyond our
product portfolio and energy management, we have commenced
pilot projects and initiatives on packaging to accelerate progress
in this area.

Oninfrastructure development, we have started the construction
of our new production plant in Dongguan of Guangdong province,
Mainland China, continued our multiple year infrastructure
upgrade programme in Hong Kong and the yearly evolution of
manufacturing equipment in our factories. Given the increasingly
competitiveentriesintoour categories,wearealsoplanningtostep
up our investments on brand equity building and organisational
capabilities to secure the foundations for sustainable growth in
the long term, although profit will be affected in short term.

RZZE—)/ZE-AMBREE » WAREGER
BRFEENBER - STMBEIEEZER XL
DAERTISERMEA  FEBAREERAER
16% - EERBANERREHEASURSE
HEAAENSEAFRZRET - K& EMEM
BRIER 19% - MBRR THEFARBEELEE S
BREEERIHMENEERBBMSRRE
(HE REEEREENE  IWARKERT
BER LD RIER 18% K 21% ©

AFERRIH  RMARAFECERARBI =
TR/ CEC-UHRFERENBERRBRE
B Ht - MABEBRRBEML - RS EH
HELEEZEER BRERASRERER
oy RPEHRERBRARTIUREME
Bt UMRMEERESE -

ERREERRAIE  RACHKBERURDER
HWEREREDHMEERRE  LEENEBH
TRBEFNERREARE  URBSITHN
RERBETFERE - ERNTESHENETF
N B miEE - BRI ERNRER Y mIEEE
RABERESN  AREVHEZREERER
o EERERISE SRR -
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Bus
EETBATRE,EKEE

Financial Highlights

The financial position of the Group remains healthy. Key financial
indicators including revenue, gross profit margin and return on
capital employed all reflect the solid position of the business. The
following table presents the Group’s key financial highlights for

iness Review

REENFHRRRITRRE BB ES &
BB~ BRNERMEARRR - JRKHBEN
EBRR - TREJNAEBEZ_ZT-NF=A
=t+—-BR=ZE-N\F=A=t—-HLEFEZE

the years ended 31st March 2019 and 31st March 2018: ERBRHE
Year ended 31st March
BE=A=1+—HLFE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\EF
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
(BEEET) (B¥BEET) =)
Revenue A 7,526 6,465 +16%
Gross Profit EF 4,042 3,420 +18%
EBITDA (Earnings Before REFTFIBUWA - REERA

Interest Income, Fris®i - e - BEEAR

Finance Costs, Income Tax, &% AR EIERZF

Depreciation, (TEBITDAJ)

Amortisation and Share of

Losses of Joint Venture) 1,228 1,063 +16%
Profit Attributable to AP A RERFE AELER

Equity Shareholders

of the Company 586 +19%
Basic Earnings per Share BREARZF GBAlL)

(HK cents) 65.6 5585 +18%
Gearing Ratio fBEELE= 1% 1% /
ROCE (Returnon =N EEEA +2% points

capital employed) 35% Ao
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Revenue

For the year ended 31st March 2019, the Group’s revenue
increased by 16% to HK$7,526 million (FY2017/2018: HK$6,465
million).

Mainland China: +25% (+27% in local currency)

This is now the Group’s biggest and fastest growing market.
We benefit from strong performance in established provinces,
continuous gradual expansion in new provinces and increased
relevance of our product portfolio.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports): +5%
Steady growth in revenue, driven by our core offerings and new
no-sugar products.

Australia and New Zealand: +4% (+10% in local currency)
Increased channel penetration and product innovation secured
high revenue growth.

Singapore: +7% (+8% in local currency)
Maintained leadership in tofu, and accelerated business growth in
imported beverages.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit was HK$4,042 million, representing an
increase of 18% over the previous year (FY2017/2018: HK$3,420
million), mainly driven by growth in sales volume.

Gross profit margin increased to 54% (FY2017/2018: 53%).
Favourable commodity prices, particularly sugar and paper
packaging, and improved manufacturing efficiency resulting from
increased sales volume enabled us to improve our gross margin
level.

WA
BE-_Z-hE=ZA=+—HLFE X&H
FI UL A 8 1N 16% 2 715 7,526,000,000 T ( = F
-t/ ZE-N\BBEE : B% 6465000000
JT) e

FEIA | +25% (LB E ¥ E +27%)
REAAKERAEERERATE - EXER
BAEHEEEONADRE - MEHEHNFEE
SRRUARERASNENMEAHRS -

BBEK (B8 BFIRHO) : +5%
BROERMRHEHZERER  FTHRARER
TR -

MR © +4% (U EH G5 +10%)
HERBSEREMRERAINNIRES - #EE
FEBARR -

B - +7% (LU EME¥5TE +8%)
TEEREERREEE M - BEOSBER
BRI o

ENRENZ

REBBEF B M 4,042,000000 T - BEF
EH1% (-t B N\MBFE : B
3,420,000,0007T) * EEMHEBIEIMFAHE

ENREBIMNES4%(ZE—+ ZF—-\GBHE
B :53%) c BRI (RERBEREER) BRI
HooMESEBEMEAEERR  WENREAH
e
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses increased 18% to HK$3,105 million
(FY2017/2018: HK$2,625 million), due to enhanced advertising
and promotion activities, and higher staff related and logistics
expenses.

Marketing, selling and distribution expenses increased 22% to
HK$2,105 million (FY2017/2018: HK$1,729 million), due to
investments in brand equity building. Logistics expenses were
higher as a result of increased sales volume. As we gradually
expanded our business in Mainland China, we increased the scale
of our sales team, which increased staff costs and commission
expenses incrementally.

Administrative expenses increased 14% to HK$635 million
(FY2017/2018: HK$559 million), reflecting salary inflationary
adjustments and enhanced organisational capacity and
capabilities.

Other operating expenses were HK$365 million, versus HK$337
million for the previous year.

EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest Income, Finance
Costs, Income Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation
and Share of Losses of Joint Venture)

EBITDA for the year was HK$1,228 million, representing an
increase of 16% year-on-year, mainly driven by higher gross profit.

The EBITDA to revenue margin for the year was 16%.

Profit From Operations
Profit from operations increased by 19% to HK$977 million
(FY2017/2018: HK$822 million).

Profit Before Taxation
Profit before taxation increased by 19% to HK$956 million
(FY2017/2018: HK$803 million).

Taxation

Income tax charged for the year was HK$208 million
(FY2017/2018: HK$161 million) with an effective tax rate of 22%,
versus 20% last year.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
HK$696 million, representing an increase of 19% compared to the
previous year (FY2017/2018: HK$586 million).

Financial Position

The Group finances its operations and capital expenditure
primarily through internally generated cash as well as banking
facilities provided by our principal bankers.

As at 31st March 2019, cash and bank deposits amounted to
HK$1,005 million (31st March 2018: HK$986 million). 45%, 47%
and 4% of our cash and bank deposits were denominated in HKD,
RMB and United States dollars (USD), respectively (31st March
2018: 39%, 35% and 23%). As of 31st March 2019, the Group had
a net cash balance of HK$960 million (31st March 2018: HK$958
million). Available banking facilities amounted to HK$940 million
(31st March 2018: HK$941 million) to facilitate future cash flow
needs.

The Group’s borrowings (including obligations under finance
leases) amounted to HK$45 million, all denominated in Australian
dollars (AUD) (31st March 2018: HK$28 million denominated in
AUD).

The gearing ratio (total borrowings/total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company) remained at 1% (31st March
2018: 1%).

The Group’s return on capital employed (ROCE) (EBITDA/average
non-current debt and equity) for the year was 37% (FY2017/2018:
35%).

Capital expenditure incurred during the year increased to
HK$986 million (FY2017/2018: HK$428 million), which was
mainly spent on construction of the new plant in Dongguan in
Mainland China, the infrastructure upgrade programme in Hong
Kong and acquisition of new production lines.

There were no assets pledged under loan and lease arrangements
(31st March 2018: assets with carrying value of HK$3 million
were so pledged).

RATRESFE ARGRR

RD T REEE AEEZR BB 696,000,000
T REFEEMI9% (=2 —+ = — NGB}
T 1 #15586,000,0007T) ©

g e
AEEEREBBHARNIBRES R ERREIRITH
RHUNRTEESE REENEATHREHRE
ﬁ o

RZZE-NF=A=+—8 > RERBITERE
7 #1,005,000000c (ZE—NF=ZA=+—
B : 7 986,000,0007T) ° & 1 45%  47% F
A%WE S RBITERD BB - ARBEMSE
TEE(ZE—N\FE=ZA=+—H :39% " 35%
M23%) e RZZF—NFE=A=+—8  x&H
MRS BE 5B 960,000,000 (ZBE—N\&E
=H=+—A8 : 8% 958,000,000 7T) - A& A
KR TS E 58 5581 940,000,000 T (=Z&— N
F=A=+—1 : 8% 941,000,0007T)  LLEE
ARHPEEREFE -

AEENEE (BEREEE B AEY
45,000,0007C * R TFHE (ZB—-NF=A
=+—H : %% 28,000,000 ST LR TTEHE) °
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Non-financial Key Performance Indicators

The Group publishes various non-financial KPls in the
“Sustainability Report 2018/2019”, which will be released in July
2019 together with this Annual Report. Having already achieved
most of our sustainability targets for FY2020/2021, the Group
has reset and broadened its short and long term targets.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s overall financial management policy focuses on
anticipating, controlling and managing risks, covering transactions
directly related to the underlying businesses of the Group. For
synergy, efficiency and control, the Group operates a central cash
and treasury management system for all subsidiaries. Borrowings
are normally taken out in local currencies by the operating
subsidiaries to fund their investments and partially mitigate
foreign currency risks.

Potential Risk and Uncertainties

During the year, the Group Internal Audit and Risk Management
Department implemented a phased enhancement plan to further
improve the Group’s internal controls and risk management
processes. The plan aims to embed a risk management culture
and process into day-to-day operations of the Group. Through
the Group’s risk management processes, business entities and
functional units anticipate potential risks by evaluating their
impactand likelihood accordingtosixcriteria: reputation, strategy,
market, liquidity, credit and operations. After consolidation
and verification, the Enterprise Risk Management Executive
Committee (“ERME Committee”) examines and prioritises key
risks, and ensures that appropriate control measures are in
place or in progress. Periodic Group Risk Reports are provided
for discussion with the ERME Committee; and significant and
emerging risks, as well as associated control measures, are
communicated with the Audit Committee. During FY2018/2019,
anew Governance, Risk and Compliance System and an enhanced
Enterprise Risk Management Framework were implemented to
enable better monitoring on the current status risks, and on the
follow-up of mitigation plans arising from incidents and adverse
key risk indicator results. Details of the new risk management
processes are covered in the Risk Management section of the
Corporate Governance Report in the FY2018/2019 Annual
Report.
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Review of Operations
Mainland China

Consistent strategy and disciplined execution deliver strong
growth

E 361
FElRit

BRI — B RBE R BREDTHRBERE - T8
BYER

2019 2018
—E-AFE ZF-N\F
2019 2018 % Change Group Contribution %
“E-AE ZE-N\E BHoLEH hAEEEERBESL
(HK$ million) (BEBEET)
Revenue from REIIEREEZBA
external customers 3,700 +25 57
Profit from operations Fed i 542 +33 54
(RMB million) (AR¥EERT)
Revenue from REIIEEREZWA
external customers 3,119 +27
Profit from operations REHEF 457 +35

Vitasoy China grew revenue by 25%, with broad-based growth
across portfolio, channels and geographies.

To enhance our brand awareness and equity credentials as we
expand, we have increased spending on advertising on both
VITASQOY and VITA brands in view of the increasingly competitive
market to secure long-term success. We have also piloted smaller
scale initiatives that we intend to launch in the next Fiscal Year.

Profit from operations grew even faster than revenue at 33%
as a result of favourable raw material prices, strong growth in
established markets supported by high production capacity
utilisation.

The depreciation of RMB has lowered our growth when reporting
in Hong Kong dollar terms. In local currency, our revenue and
profit increased by 27% and 35% respectively.

P ERRARR 25%  TwEERES
HERBRNEBHESHIIREREZER

AERREBBEFREARBANZERER &
IR E BB T 5 L1803 A i & i
f@ENES S - AFRRERR - HATFE
AEHE T NAREREESY R T —WBF
EIEX#ES -

EMEERFY  SERERXREEURENS
MEYER  WEEEINERBBARR &
33% °

ARBRESIUBEFENEREE - BUE
wEBITE - RMANBRAREN D BB R 27% &
35% °
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

Increased investment to prepare for new phase of growth

BERE (8 RFMXRHEA)

BMRELDIEERTER

2019
i

2019 2018
—g-nE —T-N\F

2018 % Change Group Contribution %

—2-N\F  ESLED  AREEMEAL

(HK$ million) (B¥EETT)

Revenue from REIEEEZBA
external customers

2,159 +5 33

Profit from operations R R

352 -4 35

Despite its very high per capita consumption of our brands, Hong
Kong Operation delivered strong revenue growth of 5%. Profit
from operations decreased by 4% as we executed our announced
programme of infrastructure upgrade and new organisational
capabilities to support the next phase of growth in our core
market.

Both VITASOY and VITA brands grew revenue, together with

health focused innovation, particularly our low/no sugar product
ranges under both VITASOY and VITA.
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Australia and New Zealand

Growing in the ever more competitive plant milk market

L&
REFABYAUGEPTI B P ER

2019 2018
—E-hE ZEBE-N\HE

2019 2018 % Change Group Contribution %
“E-hE ZZT-N\F BHILEH EAEEERBED L

(HK$ million) (BEHET
Revenue from REIIEERZWA

external customers 502 8
Profit from operation R 95 10
(AUD million) (RtA&ET)
Revenue from REIMEEEZWA

external customers 82.9 +10
Profit from operation el 15.6 +4

In the context of an increasingly competitive and innovative
market, our Australia and New Zealand business delivered 10%
and 4% growthonrevenue and profitrespectivelyinlocal currency,
as we increased penetration of core offering, launched selective
innovations and achieved stronger on-premises performance.

Depreciation of the Australian dollars contracted revenue growth
to 4% and offset increment of profit.

ESRFARHNIEERAMNNTSERET
LEMEBEE - BN K AR EB IR A RIE
Mo BB R 10% K% 4% - TTHRRPRSZOE
mITHIE2ER  HHAIFNBREER - RN
BRERBHEHEERR -

BITRESBABREBMEA%ILIKFEFIER
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Singapore s
Maintaining tofu market leadership while growing beverage I EEH G EEM W IEH BRI E
sales
2019 2018
—g-nE —T-N\F
2019 2018 % Change Group Contribution %
ZE-hE —E-N\F BLEH HEAREEERME AT
(HK$ million) (BEBET)
Revenue from REIEBER WA
external customers 103.75 2
Profit from operation R R 7.3 1
(SGD million) (HETEET)
Revenue from RESIEEEZWA
external customers 17.95 +8
Profit from operation BERF 1.27 -88

Singapore grew revenue by 7% in Hong Kong dollar terms.
Operating profit was reduced by 88% as we invested in brand
equity and organisational capabilities according to our strategy to
scale up the operation over time.

The Group maintained its market leadership position in the tofu

market. The imported beverage business also registered double-
digit growth when compared to last year.
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Business Outlook

We anticipate continued solid growth in FY2019/2020, albeit at a
more modest pace. At the same time, the Group will significantly
increase investments in brand equity, infrastructure and
organisational capacity and capabilities according to our plan to
secure long term sustainable growth.

Mainland China

China will continue to grow ahead of the market, leveraging
execution, expansion and innovation on both VITASQOY and
VITA brands. We will make further investments in brand equity
building, infrastructure readiness and innovation for the future.
With a relatively low per-capita consumption of our portfolio, the
market continues to hold significant potential for growth.

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and
Exports)

We will continue to drive solid growth of our core and additional
acceleration in innovation. Our multiple year infrastructure
investment programme will prepare Hong Kong Operation for the
next phase of profitable growth.

Australia and New Zealand
The Group expects continued growth in this market primarily
through innovation and execution, as consumers increasingly
choose health-conscious choices.

Singapore

We will continue our strategy of sustaining tofu market leadership
whilst driving more investments in beverages to accelerate the
scaling up of our operation.

The Philippines

The business is expected to continue its gradual and moderate
growth, developing the local brand awareness for the new plant
milk category and collaboration with our joint-venture partner,
Universal Robina Corporation.
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Group Chief Executive Officer’s Report/ Business Review

SETHRARBRE HEKOEE

Conclusion

We will continue to execute our strategy with increased attention
to its long term requirements of investments in brand equity,
infrastructure and organisational capabilities to secure long term
success. The market, retail and shopper context is favourable. Our
corporate and brand positioning are relevant. Our products are
delivering plant-based nutrition and taste. Our operating model
is increasingly integrating sustainability at its core. This makes us
confident about the future.

I would like to most sincerely thank our Executive Chairman and
our Board of Directors for sharing their invaluable experience,
guidance and insight; as well as our business partners for their
continued confidence and improvement. Finally, | must thank our
staff for their dedication and contribution.

Roberto Guidetti
Group Chief Executive Officer
20th June 2019
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Awards and Recognitions

Ve
Major Awards of Vitasoy International HMNEREEESRATR-F
Holdings Limited from 1st April 2018 to —N\FHA—-RAE-F—-NE=
31st March 2019 A=+—RHLIFAEENEERIE
Corporateft 2
Hong Kong
5%

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited

A DEPREEARAF

The “15 years Plus Caring Company” Logo from Hong Kong Council of Social Services
BRERBHSREHS AR [15F PlusE RREIIR | Z5%

“Diamond Enterprise Winner” in the “Quality Food Traceability Scheme 2018” from GS1 Hong Kong
RESBERFNHEER [BERMREENET 82018 1 [#EA DL

“Renewable Energy Outstanding Award” in the “Smart Energy Award” from CLP Power Hong Kong Limited
EHREEHERDCERYN [ RIFTETRERE RS | PRE [ JEEEREMALE

“Manpower Developer” in the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme” from the Employees Retraining
Board
EEEBEZNEERNN TERBAF ERFE | PEEHE AT BE ]

“Certificate of Appreciation” for supporting O-PARK1 from Environment Bureau and Environmental

Protection Department
ERBRARRBREZBHE I BRERRRH O | 55 —HH [ 2R ]

Vitaland Services Limited and Hong Kong Gourmet Limited
EMRIREEERABDRERERERAR

The “Caring Company” Logo from Hong Kong Council of Social Services
REFBHEREHSER HARBIE] %

“Green Partner Appreciation Certificate” in the “Green Monday” School Programme
BE [ M TBRELT S B 2R AR

Signatory of the “Good Employer Charter” by The Labour Department
AL IEEN [ ITEFNE | WESHEE

Hong Kong Gourmet Limited received “Certificate of Appreciation” for supporting O-PARK1 from Environment

Bureau and Environmental Protection Department
EBERERLAAERERSRREFREBEEIF [BHERE WA B —HH [ B
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Awards and Recognitions
ERYES

Corporateft 2

Mainland China
5 A

“Employer Branding Creativity Award in Greater China 2018 - Best Employee Experience Award” from HRoot
and WINGs
Z4% HRoot )2 WINGs 1834 [2018 K EEEE RIEAIZR A% - fR{EE TRERE |

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited
Y 4EM (eBE) RRECEIER A F

“Guangming Sub-district Caring Company 2017-2018” from Communist Youth League’s Guangming Sub-
district Working Committee and Guangming Sub-district Volunteers’ Union in Guangming New District,

Shenzhen
REABERIMARELPHETFZEER NI T AAELRHER THSERTR[2017-2018 FEXH
HEBEEODE ]

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited
#HMIp (L8) BRA R

“Shanghai Harmonious Employee Relations Enterprise” from Shanghai Municipal Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau
BLEETADERNMEERERTA [ LET RS BEEFRERDE ]

“Work Safety Standardization Grade 3 Enterprise (Light Industry)” from Shanghai Work Safety Association
ELETREEERSTE R EEEE =R (BT)

“Shanghai Safety Demonstration Unit 2017” from Shanghai Municipality Comprehensive Treatment of Public
Security Committee
ELEMUHERRAEREZEETA 2017 FE LEm L /REE ]

“OHSAS18000: 2007 Occupational Health and Safety Audit & Certification” by SGS CSTC Standards Technical
Services Co., Ltd.
BIREERT RIS AR A A (SGS) B iR [ OHSAS18000: 2007 Bk RELZ 2 EEE R |

Inspection Centre received “Laboratory Accreditation Certificate” from China National Accreditation Service
for Conformity Assessment
BARONEPEEETIEERRAIZESEE [BERERTRE

“Outstanding Enterprise on Water Saving in China Beverage Industry 2018” from China Beverage Industry
Association
ERE R ITERETS 2018 FERBHTESH KESTLE |

“Technology InnovationAward”,“Quality Innovation Award” and “Excellencein Development and Improvement
Award” from Zhongshan Sub-district Working Committee and People’s Government Zhongshan Sub-district
Office in Songjiang District

iﬁﬁ%@il@ﬁtﬂ B THZES - MIBARBUFFILEENEEMEE [RAILSER ]| - [REANE]  [RRESD
=

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited
#f (F0F) BRAE

“Work Safety Excellence Unit 2017” from Wuhan Municipal Government
ERETARBGTE 2017 EFEREEEEFTEN ]

“Work Safety Advance Unit 2017” from Wuhan Economic Development Zone of Yangluo Management
Committee
ERETGESEHREERZESTA (2017 FER 2 EELESN ]

“Wuhan Clean Production Enterprise” from Wuhan Municipal Development and Reform Commission and

Wuhan Municipal Environmental Protection Bureau
BERETRREANEZEERRETRRETR [ RETBIREEDLE]
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Awards and Recognitions
ERYES

Corporateft 2

Singapore

g

Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd.

“Certificate of Commendation” in “Food Safety Awards” recognition from Agri-Food & Veterinary Authority
of Singapore (AVA)
EFMEERERRRBYZZERE (AVA) BN [RYZER | PEE [EZFEE]

“Best Soy Milk” in “Domestic Diva Award” from Singapore Women’s Weekly Magazine

R IR OB TR [ R LB AR | REER [REZ

Brand @ k&

VITASOY
R

VITASQY Low Sugar Black Soyabean Milk launch video received “YouTube Ads Leaderboard Award” from
Google
MAIPEERS N2 R EATERE [ YouTube R TIE S HITIEE

“Outstanding Category Performance Award in Drink” in the “19th Favourite Brands Awards 2018” organised
by Wellcome
EEEEEMSEPN 2 (2018 FF 19fE T KBH BEESE | pRERE [ HERER - R

“Superior Brand Award” in the “Super Brands Award 2018” organised by PARKnSHOP
EEEBAMSER s [BEmBERE 2018 P EEA [ZEEBHMmME ]

VITASOY CALCI-PLUS

PSR E
“Outstanding Category Performance Award in Drink” in the “19th Favourite Brands Awards” organised by
Wellcome
EEEERMSEN 2 (2018 FF 19fE T KB™ BIEESR | pERE [ HERER -G

“Star Brand Award (Milk Category)” in the “Super Brands Award 2018” organised by PARKnSHOP
TEEBAMEENR [BEREAE 2018 FERE [ EFBmMmE (55E) |

VITA
#Ht

“Star Brand Award (Ready-to-Drink Tea Category)” in the “Super Brands Award 2018” organised by
PARKnSHOP

EREBATSENH [BEmEAE 2018 | HEER [ ER@ET MM (BIEREE) |

One of the “Top 10 Supermarket Brands” in the “Super Brands Award 2018” organised by PARKnSHOP
EEEEAMSEN [BERBRE2018 | PEERA [t RXEBEmE ] 2 —
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Awards and Recognitions
ERYES

Brand @ k&

VLT
b1 RERE SN

“Top 10 Supermarket Brands Award” in the “19th Favourite Brands Awards 2018” organised by Wellcome
EEEEAMSEMR 22018 FFE 198+ KBM BRRE | pEEA [T KB B

“VLT x CrossFire IP Campaign 2017” was awarded the “Bronze Award in Social Marketing” in the “Golden
Mouse Award 2018” organised by Creative Communication Management (CCM) Research Centre of Peking
University, 17emarketing.com and The American Association of Advertising Agencies (4As) of Guangzhou
[2017 #EIEER X FHA R IPERSE | EARTABHERLHEE CCMMAEFL - RBATRREMNTES
TEHEFEMEESRE DT (4As) T2 [2018 FLAZE 8 | hBEMES [ L& EIFRE

“VLT x CrossFire [P Campaign 2017” was awarded the “Bronze Award in Creative Marketing Communications,
Content Marketing and IP Marketing “ in the “Hooxiao Awards 2018” organised by Hooxiao Media
[2017 M EE R x ZHM AR IPERESE| ERBEEETM 2 (2018 FRmER | HEMESR [EHAZEREE 18

EEHEE - IPE SR

“VLT x CrossFire IP Campaign 2017” was awarded the “Silver Award in Social Marketing” in the “10th Golden
Awards 2018” organised by Head of Internet Society of China and Internet Marketing Committee of China
(IMCC)

[2017 EERXxFHANRIPERSIEI EPEEHRADBEEIERPREHETEZES (IMCC) 322018

“VLT x Music For All Digital Promotion Campaign 2017” was awarded the “Bronze Award in Creative
Marketing Communications, Content Marketing and IP Marketing “ in the “Hooxiao Awards 2018” organised
by Hooxiao Media

[2017 iR x RIE S HEFTHEER | FRBEEE 2 (2018 FREHR | PEEZ [THAREREE - R
BEE - IPEEE |

“VLT x B Content Marketing 2018” was awarded the “Best Case Study of the Year Award” from Bilibili video
platform
[2018 #EfIEIRZS xB Ih A A & 81 | £8%E Bilibili {RIEF =583 [ Bilibili F E & ERHI2E ]

“VLT x Killer Wolf Digital Promotion Campaign 2018” was awarded the “Silver Award in Creativity” in the
“5th TMA Mobile Marketing Awards” organised by Creative Communication Management (CCM) Research
Centre of Peking University, 17emarketing.com and The American Association of Advertising Agencies (4As)
of Guangzhou

[2018 MBS ZRARBFHEREEE | TR ABHEREHERE (CCM) HRFO - BBRATRAREMNTES
TEBESFREMESREAT GAS) T2 [F5BTMABBI & SRR | PEMERE [ AIZERE

“VLT x Vsinger Campaign” was awarded the “Best Integrated Marketing Award” in the “iResearch Marketing
Awards 2018” organised by iResearch Group

[ #EfEEZE xVsinger BB | X IREE T 2 [2018 F & IE IR | hREME [ RIERSE K
VITANO SUGAR TEA

“Sales Outstanding Performance Award - Beverages” from 7-Eleven
ERFE 7-Eleven 10 [ EMERIHEHRE R RE - AmE ]
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Corporate Governance Report
PEERWRE

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is firmly HMPBEREEBRAR ([AAF]) BFEK
committed to a high level of corporate governance and adherence FHEXER WHZABFIEAEZERE  BY
to the governance principles and practices emphasising - AE BEEAFZERRARER A2
transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility AEBER R RETZERURER - LR

and fairness. These principles and practices are reviewed and
revised as appropriate to reflect the ever changing regulatory

RIAMESNEERERCREERRR - ESS
HE > BRENCXERHEMDEBRSEAR

ERE > BBRR - ARREFERAMBHER

requirements and corporate governance development. The
Board of Directors (the “Board”) believes that the high standards
of corporate governance is the essential core for sustaining
Vitasoy Group’s long term performance and value creation for our
shareholders, the investing public and the other stakeholders.

BEES  DAURREOERTE -

Corporate Governance Practices TEERER
The Company has, throughout the year ended 31st March 2019, KARRBE-_E—-AE=A=+—RHLEE
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate —HETEBBERZMERATABTSHLTR

Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 B (TEMARA]) MisE+ OArE 2 B ¥EER<FA

=3t

of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock (TERERTAIL) Rz TR

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Board
Diversity Policy

EEEMNE
ZALBUR

Corporate
Governance Policy

EREERBER

Group Whistleblowing

Policy
EEERHER

)
Shareholders The Company S key
Communication Policy Corporate gQV.el’nanCe
REEABE related policies and
guidelines

RRNB 2 ETERE
Ea BB ER KI5

Group Risk
Management Policy

SEREREREEER

Investor Group

Relations Policy

REEBERBE

Group
Environmental Policy

EBRBEE

Director
Nomination Policy

ESREEE

Group Business

ESETSESERASES

Dividend Policy
SERSEE

Disclosure

Compliance Policy

RESHEE

Ethics Policy

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &



Corporate Governance Report
PEERWRE

Board of Directors

The general management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board. The Board has established various committees to carry
out specified functions assigned by the Board of Directors which
require specialized area of expertise. The Board has delegated the
day-to-day management power of the Company to the Executive
Directors and Senior Management of the Company. However,
full delegation is not allowed for some specific matters under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the CG Code or other
regulatory requirements, and the final decisions on those specific
matters are required to be taken by the whole board. A defined
schedule of matters reserved for Board decisions has been
adopted by the Board as follows:

Exg
ESEREANAEBBREETHE  YEK
VAEzEZEERBTHESSZRATAEARSE
EEXABER 2B TEREE EFEREALT
ZHTEERSEEEASREEEALNTAE
B o A RIB(RBRGI) - EHRA - b3
ERTARAEMREZERRATE B BFEBELR
AHEEETMARE  WEHZERESENE
HEFEHSERRE ESSCHRAUTHEZS
BER  JIHAGESSFHREZSE

Code and policies of corporate governance practices
EEATRIAIRBE
Significant merger, acquisition and divestiture
BEREBHBRIHE
Significant investment and joint venture formation
BEARERBISE AR
Notifiable and connected transactions
BFLEREBERS
Long—term Strategic Plan Provision of significant guarantee or indemnity
a 01 o 7 i 1 5
and Annual Budget L REEARRARRRE J
HASRRE IR 2
ﬁ;';%}gif o d Corporate Governance
Approval of Bl Practices and Significant
Financial Reports Financial Transactions
BRI E TEERERREX
MRS
OO0
O Y (1O
Appointment m Appointment of Director,

and Removal of

External Auditor

ZERERINE
R EED

Matters reserved for

the Board Decisions

ATEREEHREZSR

The Board strives to achieve high standards of corporate
governance practices as well as the Company’s mission to creating
valueforour shareholders. The Boardisresponsible for developing
the strategic directions for the Company and continuous
monitoring of the performance of the general management of
the Company. Strategic planning is one of the Board’s important
functions for aligning mission and vision and sustaining long term
business growth and lot of focus and attention have been devoted
to formulation and execution of the strategic planning.

Strategic planning horizons are currently set for five years. The
Board has approved a Five Year Strategic Plan for the fiscal
years up to 2023/2024 in September 2018 and has always been
taking a proactive role in reviewing and revising the Strategic
Plan periodically in response to changes in the macro economic,
competitive business environment and regulatory requirements.
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Board Composition
EEEAMK

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO

O) mrmss
"Qﬁl}“ Executive Chairman
HITERE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI Dr. the Hon. 0
0\ EEsEtE @) Sir David Kwok-poLl %%YIXZZQE Mo-lingLO
"Qﬁ p\ Executive Director and Group Chief (Q" Bﬂ EHESH T+ o ;Qon-Je‘x ecitive Director

Exeq.:t:ve Officer ~ Independent Non-executive Director SHTEE
HITEEEEETHAAS Bk TEE

@ Mr. Eugene LYE @ Mr.Jan P.S.ERLUND @ Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
BepLkdE yie EIEARL
KQNP Ej(ecutive Director Independent Non-executive Director (QXF Non-executive Director
HHITEE BUHHITEE HHITEE
Mr. Anthony John
B Liddell NIGHTINGALE Msﬁhﬁeaé’zf
R G o overniveD
fﬂ“p\ ”J‘;E dent N tive Direct Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director /=
BUFHTEE HATES

Mr. Paul Jeremy

0 ) BROUGHZ: 4
fﬂﬁl}\ Independent Non-executive Director
BUHHITES

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG

O) sxrmt
fﬂﬁl}\ Independent Non-executive Director
BUHHITES
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The designation, position and brief biographical information of
each Director, together with the relationship amongst each other,
Senior Management or Substantial or Controlling Shareholder
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management” section
in this Annual Report. In addition, a list containing the names of
the Directors and their roles and functions is published on the
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company at www.vitasoy.com.

The Independent Non-executive Directors represent near to half
of the Board which exceeds the Listing Rules requirement for one-
third.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors
and Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of
valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism
to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of the Board

functions.
o)
27%
3 Executive
Directors

=EYITES

27%

3 Non-executive
Directors

=RFPITES
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AR s
TEERRE
Directors’ Core skills, expertise and experience
ERECIERA  BEABRER
Accounting,
Audit,
Finance
and Risk Production
management and Project
General =0 Food Management
Management it BRR Legal technology Marketing *ERIER
Name ®E FEEHE R B B EE BmAHE TG E =)
Executive Chairman HITER
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BEREEE 4 v
Independent Non-executive BV FHITES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David THESL v v/
Kwok-po LI
Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND Jan P.S.ERLUND 5£4 v
Mr. Anthony John Liddell RERESE v/
NIGHTINGALE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy BROUGH v
b
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG EEFELE v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRRLZL
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO BEALE
Ms. May LO BHXZL
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI [EEELE 4 v/
Mr. Eugene LYE Bl ks

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to set out the
objectives and the factors to be considered for achieving the
diversity of the Board in June 2013. The Board Diversity Policy
has been published on the Company’s website.

The Board recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Board
appointment and renewal have been, and will continue to be,
made based on merit as well as complementing and expanding
the skills, knowledge and experience of the Board as a whole. The
Board has revised its Director Nomination Policy during the year
to take into account the additional factors of independence and
gender diversity other than experience, professional qualification,
cultural, age, and any other factors that the Board might consider
relevant when considering Board appointment and renewal. The
Remuneration and Nomination Committee has established the
measurable objectives for achieving age and gender diversity up
to the year of 2019/2020. As at the year ended 31st March 2019,
progress in achieving the objectives are:

EEEREZ UL

FEON - E-——EXARMESERES T
HE SR RESERES b E B RE
NETNERRZ - ESEMELTILRED
FIBAA A TI4BS o

ExeRRESERES TLzEE  YRBT
BREEEoORBVER -ES2RARERBHE
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SCRFRETEEZREEE  REBEAL
B EXER  ULER FRENZEBSZ
BEBYMRDSESSTROMRZ T UK
AR MESENERES C RERERERR
BHzEE - FHREEZESCHEREZ_-Z
—N R RFEERFRRMLS TILHNT
AEER - REE-Z-NF=A=1+—-HLHF
ER - EZEERZEENT
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Gender

1 51

Female representation during the year of 2018/2019 was 18.2% N/ ZE-NEFE - 121’.%&55?3 ES)
which has achieved the target of “not less than 18%” set up to the 18 2% , IEEQZ%—E h/ BT

year of 2019/2020.

EFRER] [ TR 18% ] 2BR -

Age

FiR

Average age of the board members during the year of 2018/2019 MW=T— N/ =—ZE—-HhEE  EETEHEN
was 64 which has achieved the target of “60-65"set up to the year $ﬁ¢i§"3‘% 645%  WEEHBE=-ZT—H, =

of 2019/2020. T _EFEERT 602655 2BHIE -
Gender Age Group
4 5l F iR 48 Bl
Fema Male 41-50 | Over 70
z 5 708,
51-60
61-70
Ethnicity Tenure Office
Bk ERFHA
4 —— 7 1 4
Non-Chinese Chinese 11-20 ‘ Iess than 2
R E#EH LR
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The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for the Directors and Officers of the Company for the
period from 1st October 2018 to 30th September 2019.

Changes in Directors’ Information during the year ended 31st
March 2019 and up to the date of this Annual Report are set out
below:

RZEB-N\FE+HA—-BEZZE-NAFNA=TH
LB ARRABARRPAVESERITHAERESE
BERITBRAEEERE °

REBE-Z-NE=A=+t—-HLFEREER
FHRABIECESEREHHIINT -

Position held with the Other Affiliated Companies

RE MR A R EE 2B

Mr. Eugene LYE

- has been appointed as the President and Chief Executive
Officer of Vitasoy North America Inc, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Bl k4
- EZEAEAXQTEEME QT Vitasoy
North America Inc. ZZBHFRITHEEH, -

Changes in Major Appointments and Other FEZEREMEERE S E
Directorships
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI ZEHERLT

- ceased to be an independent non-executive director of
PCCW Limited.

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH

- ceased to be chairman of Noble Group Limited and became
chairman of its successor company, namely, Noble Group
Holdings Limited which is not listed.

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
- ceased to be a council member of the Employers’ Federation
of Hong Kong.

- BEEMENARLAZBIYIATE
% o

Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4

- BREREEEERATZERE G WEHME
H 3 _E i #7& 2 T Noble Group Holdings
Limited Z £ fF °

REELE

- BIEBEIHEEHERZ

o

il

\

Changes in Directors’ Fees

ESHSEH

There was a 4% increase in basic directors’ fees for FY2018/2019.

RZZB-—N\/ ZE-NPBREEZEAESHE
E1EMN4% o
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Executive Chairman and Group Chief
Executive Officer

HBITEEREETHRAR

The roles and responsibilities of Executive Chairman and Group Chief Executive Officer

are clearly defined and separate

BITERREETRARACRBECERRAERESD

=" Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO serves as the Executive

&

Chairman and is mainly responsible for:

chairing Board meetings and shareholders’

meetings;

providing leadership and establishing guiding
principles for the Board and promoting a culture
of openness;

encouraging all board members to make a full
and active contribution to the Board’s affairs;

acting as a resources person and advisor to
various Board committees;

ensuring the Board has efficient communication
channelsregarding all material issues concerning
the business;

ensuring all board members have sufficient
resources for the Board to run efficiently;

ensuring good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established;

ensuring shareholders are adequately informed
with respect to the Company’s affairs;

providing continuous guidance and mentoring to
the Group Chief Executive Officer;

building and maintaining stakeholders’ trust and

confidence in the Company; and

providing support and guidance for special
corporate projects.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, the Group Chief Executive
Officer is mainly responsible for:

formulating and executing the overall strategies
of all the Group operations;

ensuring business development and leading
general management of all the Group operations;

providing the Board with a monthly management
update to keep the Board apprised of the
Company’s business and financial performance,
position and prospects;

taking the lead of strategic plan meeting;

taking the lead for the development and
Risk
Management system, and ensuring appropriate

promotion of a sound Enterprise
actions will be taken to eliminate or mitigate key
risks;

maintaining relationship with the institutional
investors and echoed their views to the Board;
and

is responsible for the Group’s long term
sustainability and gives strategic directions to

the Sustainability Committee.

THRBEBEELETESR

FERITAEEAELEE
L2 BB

HBRERBR R BEAREEPT
BEEENZEEER;

BRAMESERIGH2ER
BHRE  BESSTHALT
ZEBRBBRR - AR A

RERRREEE

TRERRETTEZLER
fEERS BRSEKRIE
B 1R BR SRR = 2R

HBHEEBREE ZBRE
VTHESERREER S R

BEAEECRETVHHAR
B XAABERRESSE
RERBEMETIE o
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Board Proceedings

The Board met five times in FY2018/2019 to discuss and approve
the overall business strategies; to review and monitor the
financial and operating performance of the Group and its business
units respectively; and to consider and approve the strategic plan,
annual budget, the financial reports, the sustainability report
and corporate governance and sustainability related policies and
practices for the Group.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
in relation to the Company. There are established procedures for
Directors to seek independent professional advice for them to
discharge their duties and responsibilities, where appropriate, at
the Company’s expenses.

During the year, Directors have made active participation in the
Board meetings, Board Committees meetings and the Annual
General Meeting.

2018

G N E
A Ea; | ~A +A A\A nA +A +—A +=A
BM BM BM

RN AGM
AC

BM Board Meeting EEE 2%

RN Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meeting iR IR 2 ZE & &;

Board Committees

The Board has established a Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, an Audit Committee and an Executive Committee
with specific terms of reference.

Board of Directors

EEE
I

EEERERF

EZER -2/ Z2-NURFERNEMEA
REZE AmRHEREEBERE  FRRES
FEERSEBEUCPBEREERR  TER
RE#AEE KBRS FERE - MR
FUHERRBERESECEELR THE
BRABZBERESR -

FAEEYT2EMERLEEEEAL T2
BHEBEN  ANAE AR ERFRES B
MERT - AETHBEREETHIBL TR
R BABARTR -

R EFYRG2HEESEER  EFEEE
SRERBRRBEAE -

RN
AC

AC Audit Committee Meeting B ZEEE;

AGM  Annual General Meeting IRERBE AL

EEZREE
EERBTENUFMRREESE -
BRHTERSE -

o

BERE
BEEBEHERSE -

\

é 6

Remuneration and
Nomination Committee
FRIREEES
(four members are Independent Non-executive
Directors and one member is Non-executive
Director)

(MERERE L HHITEER
—EHERIBITESE)

BEREES

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Remuneration and Nomination Committee FREREES

Members
K8

o o

Mr. Anthony Mr. JanP.S. Dr. the Hon. Sir Mr. Paul Jeremy Ms. Yvonne
John Liddell ERLUND 54 David Kwok-po LI BROUGH %4 Mo-ling LO
NIGHTINGALE (Chairman) BRRLL
REELE ZEHESL
(£/%)
Major responsibilities FTEBE
- to consider and approve the remuneration packages of - EUMAEEHTESERESEEEASZH
Executive Directors and Senior Management of the Group, MERGY  BFEFe BEVFRERTE
including salaries, benefits in kind and bonuses; bonus 4 AT EREMCRIREES B
schemes and other long-term incentive schemes, including BN H st

share option and other plans;

- to review the structure, size, composition and diversity - T HINEEEC2E - BE - EHRXRKES
(including the skills, knowledge, experience, gender and age) suib (BIEREE - JE - & HRE
of the Board; )

- toreview Director’s time commitment; - BRESMAMHARE

- toreview policies in relation to nomination of Director and - HNEBEESEZRRESSHES T2
Board diversity; BUR S

- to identify and determine the measurable objectives for - BRRETERESTEHESZ Tzt
achieving board diversity and monitor any progress made in EAERERENZENUTE2EEECE
achieving such measurable objectives; and E &

- torecommendtotheBoardonappointmentorreappointment - FESEREETHAS 2EEHERKE
of and succession planning for Director and Group Chief R EnESEREER -

Executive Officer.
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Work done during and for FY2018/2019

RERARB=-Z—N\/=B-H
BB EFE ez T4E

- reviewed, discussed and approved the remuneration package
of Senior Management including the Executive Directors and
key executives of the Group by reference to the individuals’
job responsibilities and performances, industry benchmarks
and prevailing market conditions;

- B HRRHESEEEAR (R
EEHTESRETAUAR) MR
R EPESEEBIAL IBERE
5 AEAFRBUTHSEA |

- approved the discretionary bonuses and the grant of share
options, having given due consideration to both the Group’s
financial performance and the individuals’ performances
during the year in accordance with the performance-based
compensation policy recommended by an independent
consultant;

- REBYERES  URRREE 25N
BR  ERDEZERAKE 2 MBERRERE
BALTFRZEARRER - HUEERBIE
AR R HIBIRE

- approved the amendments to Director Nomination Policy;

- WEEBSREBBRZEE

- reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of the
letters of appointment of the Executive Chairman and three
Independent Non-executive Directors;

- ERRERBREFEMERTEIER=%8
MFPTESZERER

- reviewed the structure, size and composition (including
the mix of skills, knowledge, professional qualification and
experience of the Directors) of the Board;

- EREEESCEE RERMAR (BFEE
EHEE TR - 5 - BEERRE
BAEE)

- reviewed the Board Succession Plan and its Road Map;

-  EHEFSECSEIRERREE

- reviewed the measurable objectives for achieving Board
diversity;

- EHEBESEZWAREER

- reviewed Director’s time commitment to perform his/her
duties;

-  ERESETHEHBERRANKR

- assessed and confirmed the independence of all Independent
Non-executive Directors; and

- YRR EEBUITES 2B
%R

- made recommendation to the Board for Directors’ Fees for
FY2018/2019.

- PESEEF-T-N\ZE-LBERF
ECEEEE -

Terms of reference of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee
is provided with sufficient resources, including the advice of
independent professional firms, if necessary, to discharge its
duties.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee held two meetings

in FY2018/2019. Each member’s attendance record during the
year is shown on page 46 of this Annual Report.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Audit Committee EREES

Members

&

Dr. the Hon. Sir Mr. Paul Jeremy Mr.JanP.S. Mr. Anthony

David Kwok-po LI BROUGH 4% ERLUNDZ A John Liddell
THBEEL (Chairman) NIGHTINGALE
(£/%) REHELE
Major responsibilities FERE
- tomake recommendations to the Board on the appointment, - FINEREH2EE EFZEIRER -
reappointment and removal of the External Auditors and URBEEZZEMHEEETOEETSR
their audit fees; HiER
- tomeet with the External Auditors to discuss the natureand -  EE/NERHMMFEIRBZTEZ2HEER
scope of the audit; E
- to review the interim financial report and annual financial - HEREXFESZH @ SETHIBHRER
statements before they are submitted to the Board; ZEBHEHREK
- todiscuss problems and reservations arising from theinterim - Ji#® /J?EAEPHH¥E5&$ LEIBRRMER
review and final audit, and any other matters the External ZEERSHZ2REER  REMEM
Auditors may wish to discuss, and review the External ShEE V%{Eﬂi""?} W2EEH LUK ERINE
Auditors’ management letter and management’s response; BREMzERERGBERGREEE2E
K& ;
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BERmE

==

Major responsibilities

FERS

to review the internal audit programmes and to ensure co-
ordination between the Internal and External Auditors,
assess the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems which cover all material
financial, operational and compliance controls, and ensure
that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and
has appropriate standing within the Group;

FR AR E LG Bl R R A EBE T RS
EBRHEmE %A - SHERDERERE
EAH #ERSREEFENERE
HERAIBEZERG 2R AR ERAED
ETHEERHER X BEREREER
RIFEE 21T

to conduct an annual review of the adequacy of staffing of the
financial reporting functions;

HYBERBETACETERREEN
ETFER

to review arrangements the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about the possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters; and to ensure proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation of those matters and for
appropriate follow up action;

BN BBEARTEEJERZER T HY
BwE  ANEEREMBRZWRENE
ETRRUBEMRN 22 BREE
ERPFHZESEFHAFBILZAER
REVEE 2 RETE

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the External Auditors;

FEREERDRENERBEN 2R ZE
EREK

to oversee and review the adequacy and effectiveness of
relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management procedures that have beenin place;

EERBNRENABENYE EERSR
EEKEREERFEARABTN

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to
the Board;

HERBIARA ZEEXERBRRE
B UEEFSRHER

to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of Directors and Senior

Management;

ERRERESEREEEEASZEIIR
SEEXERRE

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

BANRERARNTEETEEREERTE
FHZERRER ;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to Directors and employees;
and

HE RAREREARESRES 21T
RIURERFM &

to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BNAQARHEEXE AT Z2BTERR
EEEERBENZIKE -
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E/EH‘-

Work done during and for FY2018/2019

REARRD

—2-N\/=%-N

MR FEMEZTE

reviewed the 2018/2019 preliminary interim results
announcement; interim financial report; preliminary annual
results announcement and annual financial statements with
management and External Auditors, and recommended their

adoption by the Board;

EREEERNMNELBAER T/

“E-NFEZASPHREELE  FH
BMBH/E S NTFERELEURZFY
Bk WEBREBETURMN

reviewed with the Internal Auditor the Company’s internal
control systems and the periodic audit reports prepared by

HERBETORA A AR 2ABERRS
REHAABETMERRER 2 FRE

the Internal Auditor and approved the 2018/2019 audit plan; WHEZFT—NZE-NEFEZEZH
=

- reviewed the Group Dividend Policy and made - ZSHEEREBRFELEZEESTUR
recommendations to the Board for approval; i ;

met with the External Auditors to discuss the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations prior to the
commencement of the audit work;

REZTERKAR - EIMNERBERE
WEZTEZMHERBRURERSIT

reviewed and considered the terms of engagement of the
External Auditors;

FHRERINELBEN 2 RIS |

reviewed and approved/preapproved the audit and non-
audit services provided by the External Auditors, together
with their respective fees;

FBIM A FASHE SRR B IR
EURFECRBER S RERE |

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of the staff of the Group’s accounting, financial
reporting, risk management and internal audit functions, and
their training programmes and budget; effectiveness of the
Group’s internal audit function and compliance with the CG
Code;

FEHNASENSE - MBER - RlaEE
RAEETESBFHIIEZER  ETE
BEREREERNA  URFIREREE
BE  AEEANFABAE 2B RET
EEERTAZER

reviewed progress on the implementation of Enterprise Risk
Management;

ERCXRBERE 2 HITER

- reviewed the training and continuous professional - EHEERSETEASZEIIRBES
development of Directors and Senior Management; HERE

- reviewedthe Company’s policiesand practicesoncompliance - HBEAQAREESEERESHRESEZ
with legal and regulatory requirements; BERER

reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to Directors and employees;

EHNEAREEREEZTATARER
Fi

reviewed the status of compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure
Governance Report; and

in the Corporate

EHETEERTA2BRAREEER

BEZEE R

held private session with External Auditors in the absence of
Executive Directors and Senior Management.

EHTEERSEBEEAETES
TEREIMNEL YA -

% 2 15
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The Board has approved a Whistleblowing Policy in March
2012 to provide employees and external parties an open and
unified reporting channel and procedures to report any serious
misconduct or malpractice involving the Company and its
employees. The Audit Committee has been delegated with
the overall responsibility for monitoring and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Whistleblowing Policy. During the year,
no incident of serious fraud or misconduct was reported from
employees nor external parties that had a material effect on the
Company’s financial position and overall operations.

The Board has adopted a Corporate Governance Policy to provide
a basic framework for developing the Company’s policies and
practices to ensure alignment of interests and expectations from
our shareholders, the investing public and other stakeholders.
The Corporate Governance Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.

The Audit Committee reviews regularly the corporate governance
structure and practices within the Company and monitors
compliance fulfillment on an ongoing basis.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources, including
the advice of independent professional firms, if necessary, to
discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee met three times in FY2018/2019. Each
member’s attendance record during the year is shown on page 46
of this Annual Report.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Executive Committee HITEES

Members
RE

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU
(Executive Director (Executive Chairman) (Group Chief
and Group Chief BREEE Financial Officer)
Executive Officer) (BITERE) B %
REESELE (EEEFEVIEHREL)

(BITESEEETHAR)

Major responsibilities FERE
- to operate as a general management committee under the - HIE—REEZESENR HEEBEES
direct authority of the Board to deal with certain operational g BEEBEAEEETEESH -

matters of the Group.
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Attendance records of the Directors at the Board Meetings, RZZB-—N/ZZ-"GBEFE - R%?P\*%E
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meetings, Audit 2% FWRRESZEESR  BXZEE
EEBRRBFRGZHETHERIIAOT ¢

Committee Meetings and Annual General Meeting during

FY2018/2019 are as follows:

Meetings Attended/Held
R EERE
Remuneration
and
Nomination Annual Overall
Committee Audit General Attendance
Board HE R Committee Meeting Rate
Name ®E =g REZES ERZEEE RREFAE BEHEE
Independent Non-executive BIYFHTES
Directors
Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI ~ ZEH&ESB L 5/5 2/2® 3/3 1/1 100%
Mr.Jan P.S. ERLUND JanP.S.ERLUND 54 5/5 2/2 3/3 1/1 100%
Mr. Anthony John Liddell RERLEO 5/5 1/2 2/3 1/1 82%
NIGHTINGALE
Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH Paul Jeremy BROUGH 5£4 5/5 2/2 3/3€ 1/1 100%
Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG EEEEL 5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEHA FEA
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO BRRLZL 5/5 2/2 N/A 1/1 100%
TEA
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO BEALE 5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 100%
B TEA
Ms. May LO EHEL+ 5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEA FEA
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO BREXE 5/5@ 2/2¢ 3/3@ 1/1@ 100%
(Executive Chairman) (BITERE)
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI FEEELE 5/5 2/2 3/3¢ 1/1 100%
Mr. Eugene LYE A%kt 5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 100%
TEHA FEA
Average Attendance of the Board EEERETHHEE 98%
Members
Group Chief Financial Officer SEEEMEAE
Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU 2R 5/5@ N/A 3/3@ 1/1@ N/A
TEHA TiE
Group Senior Director, Internal SEABEAREBREES
Audit and Risk Management MU
Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW ERREEE N/A N/A 3/3€ N/A N/A
TEA B TEMA TiEH
External Auditors IMEERZ BLET
KPMG EERETTENERAT N/A N/A 3/3¢ 1/1@ N/A
TEMA B TiEA
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a) Chairman of the Board

b)  Chairman of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

) Chairman of the Audit Committee

d)  Chairman of the Annual General Meeting

) Attendance by invitation

f) Director was unable to attend the meeting due to ad hoc commitments

The Company acknowledges the Annual General Meeting is
one of the important forums to engage our shareholders. In
the 2018 Annual General Meeting, all Directors, including
Executive Chairman, the Chairman of the Board Committees
and the External Auditors attended the meeting and answered
shareholders’ questions.

During the year under review, the Executive Chairman met
with the Independent Non-executive Directors on various
occasions without the presence of the other Directors and Senior
Management.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of

Directors

TheappointmentofanewDirectorismadeontherecommendation
by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee of the Company
or by shareholders in a general meeting. Shareholders may
propose a candidate for election as Director in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company and the Director
Nomination Policy. The nomination procedures by shareholders
are published on the website of the Company. Any Director who
is appointed by the Board shall retire at the next General Meeting.

Subject to the re-election requirement of the Company’s Articles
of Association, all the Non-executive (including Independent
Non-executive) Directors of the Company are appointed for
a specific term of not more than three years under their letters
of appointment. Pursuant to the Company’s current Articles of
Association, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least every three years and one-third (or the number nearest to
but not exceeding one-third) of Directors shall retire from office
every year at the Company’s Annual General Meeting.
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Director Nomination Policy
TheBoardhasadoptedaDirector NominationPolicyinMarch2012
to set out the procedures and criteria for identifying and selecting
potential candidates for the appointment of new Director/s as well
as for considering the renewal of director appointment. The Board
has delegated to the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
the authority to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members and select and make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorship;
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;
and make recommendations to the Board to the appointment or
re-appointment of directors.

The Director Nomination Policy is intended to guide the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee when recommending
new directors and when deciding whether to recommend that
current Directors be re-elected. The Committee will carefully
consider the qualifications, skills, experience, independence,
gender diversity, time commitments and contributions of
any currently sitting director before making a re-election
recommendationtothe Company’sshareholders. Any shareholder
of the Company who is qualified to be present and vote at the
general meeting, may nominate one or more persons for election
as a director of the Company at any general meeting if the
shareholder complies with the director nomination provisions,
including without limitation the notice, information and consent
provisions under the Company’s Articles of Association or the
Listing Rules.

The Director Nomination Policy has been published on the
Company’s website.

Induction and Continuous Professional

Development

Induction programmes are arranged for any newly appointed
Directors for provision of information which would assist him
or her to understand effectively his or her role as a director as
well as the business nature, operations, products and markets
of the Company and its group companies. On appointment, new
Directors will also be given an induction programme kit advising
them of their responsibilities and duties as Directors under
various regulatory requirements and the Board procedures,
including the Terms of Reference of the Board Committees.
Directors are provided with “A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued
by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Directors as guidelines on the general
principles of duties of directors.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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The Company also arranges continuous professional development
programme to Directors at the expense of the Company. The
Company Secretary regularly provides to Directors information
about the enrollment of external training courses and seminars as
well as legal alerts and articles which are relevant for Directors
to keep up-to-date on any legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance requirements and with professional practices in a
dynamic business world. The programme would help refresh
Directors’ knowledge and skills in performing their roles, functions
and duties of directors of a listed company.

During the year, the Company organised an annual in-house
training programme for Directors in September to visit a leading
internet and technology company in Shenzhen city of Mainland
China and participated into a sharing session with its management
to understand the latest development of digital technology; and
how e-commerce and digital advertising help accelerate the
business growth of retail industry not only in Mainland China
but also the other parts of the world. Directors also took the
opportunity to visit our sales channels in Shenzhen to understand
more about the market in which we sell, and the consumers who
are buying our products.

MY
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In January 2019, an overseas trip was organised for our Directors
to visit our new joint venture production line in the Philippines.
During the visit, our directors also met with our joint venture
partner to exchange views in growing the business; and also met
with local management team to have a deeper understanding of
the current business performance and challenges. Directors also

visited different sales channels so as to better understand the local
market in which we sell and how to drive the market performance.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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The Board also acknowledges the importance of continuous
training and development to Senior Management, which enables
them to boost their skills and knowledge to re-evaluate their roles
with a newly informed perspective and in this highly competitive
consumer product market. Senior Management is encouraged
to participate in various continuous professional development
programmes and other training courses at the expense of the
Company.

All Directors and Senior Management have provided to the
Company Secretary their training records for FY2018/2019
which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The average
training hours of the Directors were over 60 hours during the year.
The average training hours of Senior Management were over 100.

Directors’ Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2018/2019 - by topic

EEN=Z- N\ ZE-NEBEESMNZ
B — BB

— 53%
1% .
Accounting / Finance / Tax

B8 B

49
(o]
Legal / Regulatory /

Governance

/i{ﬁ //fﬁ/glf:l\

4% —4%

Director’s Duties and
Governance |

EEHERER

BOTR AR

o)
6%
Innovation and
Technology 3 2 O/O
AR R Company’s Business

ENGIES S

Global Business Environment Update

%E‘%/JWHEIT RFHANHEERTE L B

FHIRBRRYSEEEASHEERR K%
%uhﬂﬁﬁabﬁiua&k AR H AR AEEH
ERHEEECAG - ANARASEEEASS
MERAFEERBRRRERAMITIRE - B
RBAREZA

PRESERSEEEASEOQAMERHES
REZ—)\/ZE-NPREE2FIEE - 1L
REBEZEZEESEH - ESNAFRFIGEIRE
HiBiB 60/ - MBS EEEABRAFAFIIE
B AIEIE 100 /B o

EE 258

Analysis of training attended by Directors in
FY2018/2019 - by type

EEN-Z2- )/ ZE-NBERFESMZ

1B — RS

30%

External Courses / Seminars /
Workshops

IR g

TS

33%

Readlngs

17%

In-house Trammg
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o/
20%

Plant / Market Visit
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Annual Report 2018/2019 FE & @



Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

Senior Management’s Training Records

Analysis of training attended by Senior Management in
FY2018/2019 - by topic

BEEBAEBN=-Z-/\ /=%
I - HE oA

26%

—NEBFEEZ2 Mz
Accounting / Finance / Tax

NS

L 20%
(o)
Company’s Business

EVNGIES

6%
(o]
Legal / Regulatory /
Governance

/f{g /iﬁ/ =¥ /l:l

14% —

Cyber Technology
ISR

17%—

Industry News

T¥EEM

17% ——

Market / Product Development
W5 ERERE

Responsibilities of Directors

Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Annual Financial Statements for
FY2018/2019 are prepared on a going-concern basis. All the new
accounting standards and policies adopted by the Company have
been thoroughly discussed and approved at the Audit Committee
before adoption by the Board.

The Group has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than the required
standards set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Specific enquiries were made of all Directors
and they have confirmed compliance with the required standard
set out in the Code for the year ended 31st March 2019. A similar
code has also been adopted by the Group for the specified group
of employees who may possess or have access to price sensitive
information.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Confirmations have been received from all Directors that they
have provided sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company during FY2018/2019. Directors have also disclosed to
the Company their interests as director and other office in other
public companies and organisation in a timely manner, and have
regularly reported to the Company Secretary on any subsequent
changes.

Evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman

The Board believes that evaluation of the Board and the Executive
Chairman is an essential requirement of good corporate
governance and has already adopted the Recommended Best

Practice for regular Board Evaluation under the CG Code as early
inFY2011/2012.

The objective of the Board evaluation is to assist the Board in
identifying and addressing its strengths and weaknesses and
highlight the Board’s expectations for itself and areas for further
improvement. The Executive Chairman has also been evaluated
on whether he has adequately and effectively performed his roles
and fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the Board.
Board evaluation is usually conducted on an annual basis.

A formal evaluation of the Board and the Executive Chairman
was conducted for FY2018/2019. During the evaluation process,
guestionnaire with scoring was used for collecting scores as well
as opinions from all the Directors. The questionnaire included 20
statements for Board evaluation and 10 statements for Executive
Chairman evaluation. Completed evaluation forms were sent to
the Company Secretary on a confidential basis. The Company
Secretary then prepared a summary report of the aggregate
evaluation results for review and discussion in the Board meeting.
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Evaluation of the Board

EEE 2

BEx=guft EEERES

Board meeting performance

s

@® Board composition @ Strategicdirectionand planning @ Sustainability drive
BEEAN KEEH B RFE BN R EE
@ Boardculture @ Corporate governance practices @ Risk management and internal control

R E R R N ED R

Evaluation of Executive Chairman

AT EE 2 7%

@® Leadership @ Relationship with Group CEO
BEEEN HEETHARZBER

@ Personal attributes @ Strategic planning
BASE KR E

@ Relationship with the Board @ Decision making
HEEECHE RE

-

Encourage open communication

SEFRRER

Promote good corporate governance
practices

EERFEEELRES

Encourage environmental, social and
governance
RERE  HERESR

All Directors have actively participated in the whole evaluation
process. Responses from the Board members were overall very
positive, with six of the seven Board evaluation areas recorded
a average score of 8.5 or above (full score is 10). There were
particularly high scores for “Board culture” and “Board meeting
performance”.
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Overall weighted scores in seven evaluation areas
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Risk Management and Internal Control
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The Executive Chairman has adequately and effectively performed
his roles and fulfilled his responsibilities as the Chairman of the
Board. No major areas of concerns were found in the evaluation
results.

Directors have proposed a few valuable and constructive
recommendations for continuous improvement of the Board’s
performance, mainly in the areas of Board composition and
road map; board meeting materials; strategic direction and
planning; sustainability strategy and reporting; and business risk
management.

Executive Chairman as the leader of the evaluation process has
reviewed summaries of the aggregate evaluation results of the
Board and Executive Chairman. He then provided his responses
and proposed a few action plans to address the areas identified
from the evaluation results. Executive Chairman’s responses and
action plans have also been discussed amongst the Directors for
formal endorsement.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and
has been appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is
responsible for facilitating the procedures/activities of the
Board and the Board Committees as well as good communication
flow amongst the Board members, shareholders and Senior
Management.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is subject
to Board approval. The Company Secretary reports to both the
Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer.
The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for matters
relating to Directors’ duties, such as giving advice on corporate
governance developments and compliance and facilitating the
professional development programme and induction programme
of Directors. All members of the Board have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secretary.

During the year, the Company Secretary undertook over 15
hours of external CPD training courses to keep abreast of latest
regulatory changes and corporate governance practices and to
refresh her skills and knowledge.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. To achieve this, the Board ensures
that there is an effective framework of risk governance and
ongoing risk management process to promote the long-term
success of the Company.

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility on an
ongoing basis for ensuring that appropriate and effective risk
management and internal controls are maintained to provide
against misstatement  of
information. Main features of the risk management and internal

reasonable assurance material

control systems are described in the sections below:

Internal Control

The Company has had in place an internal control system, which is
developed based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) components for internal
controls, to manage and mitigate rather than to eliminate business
risks. The key underlying components of effective internal control
system areillustrated as below:
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Assessing risks and reviewing the effectiveness of internal
controls is a continuing process in the Company. Our internal
control system is designed to give reasonable assurance that:

° Assets are prudently safeguarded,;

Business activities are conducted in an effective and efficient
manner;

Financial reporting is accurate, timely and complete; and
Laws and regulations relevant to the business are complied.

Under the Company’s internal control system, management is
charged with the responsibility to design and implement the
internal controls while the Board and the Audit Committee

oversee the effectiveness of the internal control system that have
been putin place.
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Internal Audit

Group Internal Audit (a team under Group Internal Audit and Risk
Management Department) plays a critical role in monitoring the
internal governance of the Company.

The scope of services of the department is set out in the approved
Internal Audit Charter and includes:

° Unrestricted access to all the Company’s activities,
personnel, properties, and other information
sources required to carry out internal audits;

records,

° Review the effectiveness of internal control over
operational, compliance and financial reporting as well as
risk management function; and

° Special reviews of areas of concern identified by

management or the Audit Committee.

Group Internal Audit, reporting to the Audit Committee, provides
independent assurance as to the existence and effectiveness of
risk management functions and controls in business operations.

Using risk assessment methodology and taking into account
the Company structure, management’s concern, nature and
complexity of operation, and operating environment, Group
Internal Audit prepares its annual audit plan which is reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The risk assessment
methodology assists in identifying business risks and determining
audit frequencies. Based on the approved audit plan, Group
Internal Audit schedules its internal audit programmes to conduct
an independent review of different financial, business and
functional operations and activities with resources focusing on
areas with higher risk.

During FY2018/2019, Group Internal Audit issued reports to
Senior Management covering various operational and financial
units of the Company and its subsidiaries. Group Internal Audit
also conducted reviews of major projects and areas of concern
identified by management.
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Risk Management

Risk management framework with effective governance structure
and management process are in place. Such framework enables
the Company to adopt a proactive and structured approach to
identify and manage risks across the Company with ongoing
monitoring and oversight.

Our risk management framework is illustrated as below:
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Risk Governance Structure

The risk governance structure consists of three layers of roles and

responsibilities as explained below:

BRI
@Em%%@%Tﬂ‘@ﬁﬁZﬁé&%a:

Layer Roles and Responsibilities BE BEBEERBE
Oversight Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board ER [RREZGERZES

. Oversee the Company’s risk management and SEERAQNTAZEBEERRA
internal control on an ongoing basis. EBEEYE o

. Oversee those risks that warrant the c ERZEREEIE SRR
Committee’s attention and supervise risk WEERKEERER  UEREGE
management process as part of good corporate R2¥EER -
governance.

Group Internal Audit SERIET

. Conduct independent review on the - HRKREERANIPEERG 2K
effectiveness of risk management and internal BETEBLEN ATRNERES
control systems and provide risk assurance to SIRERBERE
Audit Committee.

Risk Enterprise  Risk Management Executive [ ©TGXRKREEREIHITZEEREZEHE
Monitoring & Committee & Country CEOs EER BITBER
Review #R

. Design, implement and monitor the risk - BEF ERREEBRKBEERA
management and internal control system. EBEEIE R4 ©

- Provide assurance to the Audit Committee . ﬁ]%ﬁéééﬁfﬂﬁ@ﬂ@ﬁﬁ
on the effectiveness of risk management and RATBEIE RGN IRTE
internal control systems.

Group Risk Management, an independent EERKBEEASERTSETRA

team under Group Internal Audit and Risk R EEIMET 2B LB

Management

- Support the Audit Committee and Enterprise - XEERZEERTCERKBER
Risk Management Executive Committee. HITEES -

. Develop and implement risk management c BB ARRE L RIITRER
frameworks, policies, tools and methodologies EEER -BKR - TARFE-
with all subsidiaries.

- Monitor status of risk and communicate with - BEEEREANR  WERETE
the Executive Committee and Audit Committee EERERZESHERR -
on an ongoing basis.

Risk & Control Department Heads & Individual Employee EE  HHEERERST
. -~
Ownership - Ownership of managing risks, executing ié:r - REEEEFEERR > HT
=

control activities and identifying new risks in
daily operation.

2E B A B b o
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Risk Management Process

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily operations,
financial activities, compliance, strategy development & business
planning, investment decision and external factors. The processes
are as follows:

1.  Anticipate: Potential risks and threats that are related to
different business processes and relevant to the Company’s
objectives will be anticipated and identified by all individual
staff members. Risks are grouped into six clusters (including
reputation, strategy, market, liquidity, credit and operation)
to facilitate the assessment appropriately.

2.  Rate: Each identified risk is evaluated on the basis of
impact and likelihood consistent with the risk appetite set
by the Board. The risk impact and likelihood will be rated
according to the historical records, statistical analyses and
relevant experiences, specialist and expert judgments by
management. Group Risk Management team facilitates the
evaluation process including the summary discussion in the
Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee and
Audit Committee.

3.  Respond: A delegated management is assigned to each risk
as risk owner to fully respond on each risk. Risk management
strategies and corresponding control owners are identified
by risk owner to deploy appropriate control activities.

4.  Regulate: We take a closed monitoring on the current status
of risk, which is being monitored through key risk indicators
with defined thresholds, occurrence of related incidents,
control effectiveness and audit results. Any change in
current status of risk to a worsened level will trigger a react
process through creation of a mitigation plan.

5. React: When there is a change on the current status of risk,
the corresponding owner will coordinate mitigation plan
with action details, responsible person and timeline to
address the status.
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6. Report: To support the oversight of the Board on the
effectiveness of Vitasoy’s risk management, risk reporting
requirement was approved by the Board of Directors under
risk management framework. Periodicrisk reportis provided
to the Enterprise Risk Management Executive Committee
summarizing the results of risk monitoring, mitigation plans
and the current risk management implementation progress.
Besides, since the launch of the Governance, Risk and
Compliance System (“GRC System”) in mid-2018, Enterprise
Risk Management Executive Committee and risk owners
are able to obtain real-time risk status through the relevant
system dashboards.

In the coming year, we will improve the effectiveness of the
Company’s process in managing incident, and in addressing to the
change of current status of risk. The Incident Management and
Mitigation Plan Modules of the GRC System will be revamped in
order to achieve this.

Risk Management Activities

° Enhanced Enterprise Risk Management Framework
To enhance the overall maturity of risk management
development, an enhanced Risk Management Framework
was introduced in mid-2018. The “regulate” and “react”
elements of the risk management process are further
strengthened to provide a more comprehensive monitoring
on the current status of risk.

° Implementing the GRC System

The GRC system has been implemented since mid-2018 to
engage various level of staff in the risk management process.
It facilitates the whole enterprise risk management process
and dashboard to monitor changes in the current status of
risk. In addition, with the help of the GRC System all risk
management activities can now be displayed as dashboard
format to provide a real-time Enterprise Risk Management
information to facilitate management decision.

° Risk Management Trainings
During the fiscal year, training workshops were organised
by Group Risk Management team for Senior Management
and targeted staff members to enrich their risk awareness
and risk mitigation capabilities. Furthermore, our internal
employees newsletter is used as one of the communication
channels with our employees for cultivating risk awareness.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal
Controls Effectiveness

Group Internal Audit team has conducted annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system, including those of its operating companies. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the findings and impartial opinion
of Group Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board, with confirmation from management, considered the
risk management and internal control systems are effective and
adequate for the year ended 31st March 2019. No significant
areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational
and compliance issues and risk management functions of the
Company were identified. The scope of this review also covered
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions and their training and budget.

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware
of the requirements under the applicable Listing Rules and
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the overriding principle that
inside information should be announced as soon as reasonably
practicable after such information comes to our attention unless it
fallswithin any of the safe harbours provisions under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance. The Company has had a system in place
with established policies and procedures for complying with the
Inside Information disclosure requirements under the regulatory
regime. The Board has adopted a Disclosure Compliance Policy
on 27th November 2012 which has further been updated on 2nd
September 2016. The Policy has been formulated by reference to
the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission. The purpose of the Policy is
to provide Directors and employees with guidelines on assessing,
reporting and disseminating inside information, maintaining
confidentiality and abiding shares dealing restrictions. The
Company has included in its code of conduct and staff handbook
a strict prohibition on the unauthorised disclosure or use of
confidential and inside information.
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External Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as the External Auditors of the
Company by shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting.
An amount of HK$5.6 million (FY2017/2018: HK$5.6 million)
was charged for the fiscal year of 2018/2019 for statutory audits
for the Company and subsidiaries. The amount for the other
non-audit services provided by KPMG for the Company and
subsidiaries during the year was HK$24.5 million (FY2017/2018:
HK$19.4 million). The non-audit services mainly comprised design
and execution of digitisation project and tax advisory services. It is
expected that the non-audit fee to be incurred for digitisation will
be gradually decreasing towards the completion of consultancy
services rendered by KPMG.

The responsibilities of the External Auditors with respect to the
FY2018/2019 financial statements are set out in the section of
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 95 to 101.

Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted a Dividend Policy to provide guidance to
the Board and the management of the Company for distribution
of surplus funds to its shareholders.

In determining the level of dividend payment, the following
criteria and consideration must be taken:

- Sharing of success with shareholders

- Liquidity and capital requirement

- Historical trend of dividend payout

- Benchmarking with competitors within the industry
- Fulfilment of financial covenants

- Taxation impact

- Restrictions

- Other factors that may deem relevant

The Company intends to declare dividends to shareholders semi-
annually in an aggregate amount per year of approximately 60%
of the anticipated consolidated net annual profit attributable
to shareholders net of one-off event impact and may declare
special dividends from time to time in addition to interim or
final dividends. The determination to pay dividends and level of
dividend to be distributed will be subject to the discretion of the
Board from time to time.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to convene General
Meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”), shareholders representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at
general meetings are entitled to send a request to the Company to
convene a general meeting. Such request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting and may
include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at the meeting. A request may be sent to
the Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard
copy form or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must also
be authenticated by the person or persons making it.

Procedures for Shareholders to request circulation
of statement at General Meeting

Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder/s representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or at least 50 shareholders, who
have a relevant right to vote, can request the Company in writing
to circulate to the shareholders a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at that meeting or other business to be
dealt with at that meeting. A request may be sent to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s registered office in hard copy form
or in electronic form to ir@vitasoy.com and must identify the
statement to be circulated. It must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it and be received by the Company at least 7
days before such meeting.

Procedures for proposing a Person for Election as a
Director at General Meeting

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, if a shareholder
wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a Director at a general meeting, the shareholder should
deposit a written notice of nomination which shall be given to the
Company within the 7-day period commencing the day after the
despatch of the notice of the meeting (or such other period as may
be determined and announced by the Directors from time to time)
and in no event ending no later than seven days prior to the date
appointed for such meeting. The procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director are also published on
the Company’s website.
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Constitutional Document

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s Articles
of Association. A copy of the latest consolidated version of
the Articles of Association of the Company is published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

We believe accountability and transparency are indispensable for
ensuring good corporate governance and, in this regard, timely
communication with our shareholders is crucial.

The Board has adopted a formal Shareholders Communication
Policy to ensure that shareholders are provided with ready, equal
and timely access to the Company’s information. The Shareholders
Communication Policy is posted on the Company’s website.

We maintain a corporate website (www.vitasoy.com) to keep
our shareholders and the investing public posted of our share
price information, latest business developments, final and interim
results announcements, financial reports, public announcements,
corporate governance policies and practices and other relevant
shareholder information.

The Company views its Annual General Meeting as one of the
important platforms to communicate with its shareholders. All
Directors and Senior Management make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting. At the 2018 Annual General Meeting,
the Chairman of the Board briefed shareholders the business
review and the outlook of the Group and answered questions
raised by shareholders. The chairman of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and the chairman of the Audit Committee
were also present to answer questions raised by shareholders. The
Company’s External Auditors attended the 2018 Annual General
Meeting to address questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the accounting
policies and auditors’ independence.

Separate resolutions in respect of each substantial issue, including
the appointment and re-election of Directors were proposed by
the Chairman at the Annual General Meeting and were voted
on by poll. The detailed procedures of conducting a poll were
explained by the Chairman at the commencement of the Annual
General Meeting to ensure that shareholders were familiar with
such procedures. An independent scrutineer was appointed to
count the votes and the poll results were posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day following
the Annual General Meeting.
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We manage investor relations systematically as a key part of
our operations. We maintain regular bilateral, open and regular
communications with existing and potential investors to ensure
that the investment community has a balanced and updated
view of the performance of the Company and relevant business
development. As such, the Company developed and adopted a
formal Investor Relations Policy as the guidelines for conducting
investor relations activities. We have established a dedicated
contact ir@vitasoy.com for shareholders, fund managers, analysts
and the media for a two-way communication with the related
stakeholders. We keep our investors abreast on the Group’s latest
developments and strategies through direct communications
including result announcement events, group and individual
face-to-face meetings, telephone conferences and email
correspondences with shareholders and investors. All bilateral
meetings are attended by at least two designated representatives
of the Company, while always taking reference of applicable
regulatory requirements and internal guidelines concerning
fair disclosure of information without offering advantage to any
particular investor or financial analyst. We shall also leverage
media platform to update our latest corporate development.
In addition, we are proactive in responding to general enquiries
raised by theinvesting public, individual and institutional investors
and analysts. In order to keep updated with the latest market
practices on investor relations, the delegated persons engaged
in investor relations activities often attend industry seminars or
training sessions on various topics.
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L34l g b Rl

THE 2018 ANNUAL GENERAL ¥

B NEREMEAE

BMERSGHEREREE CBEFR  WREARK
MzEEIE - BRMEREREBEREEREH
MREHRZEEER  UBEREEREHEAAT
ZRERBBEBBRREETEREI2EE -
Hit » ZATREHFTREMAER 2 REEBEK
FOEFAETREZBEIBHZES - BAE
R HPY 2 EEEFE ir@vitasoy.com - F{EEER
R ESKE .  »NMERREZSEHBOHEER
HBOER  RMERRRREEEEERE  £X
BIREBRMHIE - MME—¥H—SH EFF
BRETFHHARE  BREMAZREERGE
BEBRAEERTEREEREZEN - TEER
MHEETHELMERDTIEEZRERLRFE » I
%ﬁ%%ﬁ@“$ﬁ§ﬁﬂ2Lﬁﬁ§E?&W
B85l BESEAENIREE ST HE DT
Bo ﬁ1FﬁDT\§*UFHﬁ¥§E$AE¥ﬁ’D\ﬂﬂi%ﬁ?&vﬂﬁ’%
Woo tbHh s MPBEBEEAR - AARKERE

EURDITESiRE 2 —REH - AEREE
AREHCREARER
AEHERE - B
RATENE ©

SHZEEEITEN
BERBREERBE LTS

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Chairman

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (SBS, BSc, MSc), aged 78, is the
Executive Chairman of the Group. Mr. Lo was appointed
a Director of the Company in 1972. Mr. Lo graduated
from the University of lllinois with a Bachelor of Science
degree in Food Science and gained his Master of Science
degree in Food Science from Cornell University. Mr.
Lo is an Honorary Court Member of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and life member
of Cornell University Council. Mr. Lo is a director of Ping
Ping Investment Company Limited. He is also a director
of The Bank of East Asia, Limited, a company listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was a member of The
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years. He is the father of Ms. May Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company) and Ms. Joy
Cheung Lo (a substantial shareholder of the Company),
the brother of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Mr. Kai-tun Lo and Ms. Irene
Chan (the substantial shareholders of the Company)
and the relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a Non-
executive Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an
Executive Director of the Company), Mr. Christopher
Lye, Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the
substantial shareholders of the Company).

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. the Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI (GBM, GBS, OBE, JP,
MA Cantab. (Economics & Law), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon.
DSc. (Imperial), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh
Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon. LLD (Hong
Kong), Hon. DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. DLitt (Macquarie), Hon.
DSocSc (CUHK), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB,
FBCS, CITP, Officier de I'Ordre de la Couronne, Grand Officer
of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of
the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur
dans I'Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur), aged 80, was
appointed a Director of the Company in 1994. Sir David
is the chairman and chief executive of The Bank of East
Asia, Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. He is a member of the Council of the Treasury
Markets Association. Sir David is adirector of Hong Kong
Interbank Clearing Limited. He is also an independent
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non-executive director of Guangdong Investment
Limited, The Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited, The Hongkong and Shanghai Hotels, Limited
and San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited, all being
companies listed in Hong Kong. Sir David is founding
chairman of The Friends of Cambridge University in
Hong Kong Limited, chairman of the Advisory Board of
The Salvation Army, Hong Kong and Macau Command
and chairman of the Executive Committee of St. James’
Settlement. He was a member of the Executive Council
of Hong Kong from 2005 to 2008 and the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong from 1985 to 2012. He was an
independent non-executive director of PCCW Limited
and SCMP Group Limited (now known as Great Wall Pan
Asia Holdings Limited). Save as disclosed, he has not held
any directorship in other listed public companies in the
last three years.

Mr. Jan P.S. ERLUND, aged 80, was appointed a Director
of the Company in 2006. He graduated with a Master
degree in Law from the University of Aarhus and studied
at the Nordic Institute for Maritime Law, the University
of Oslo. Mr. Erlund was admitted to the Danish Bar in
1968 and was admitted to the Supreme Court in 1976.
Mr. Erlund is now a partner in Copenhagen Chambers
focusing on Danish and international arbitration. He was
apartner of Gorrissen Federspiel Kierkegaard, alaw firm
in Copenhagen, Denmark. He was the president of the
Danish Bar and Law Association, president of the Danish
Maritime Law Association and chairman of the Maritime
and Transport Committee of the International Bar
Association. Mr. Erlund was the chairman of the board of
directors of The East Asiatic Company Ltd. A/S and Dansk
Skovselskab A/S, deputy chairman of ERRIA A/S and a
member of the board of directors of PSA International
Pte. Ltd., all being companies listed overseas. Save as
disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE (CMG, SBS,
JP), aged 71, was appointed a Director of the Company
in 2015. Mr. Nightingale graduated from Peterhouse
College, University of Cambridge with a degree in
Classics. Mr. Nightingale was Managing Director of
the Jardine Matheson Group (“Jardine Group”) from
2006 to 2012. He joined Jardine Group in 1969 and
was appointed a director in 1994. Mr. Nightingale is
currently a non-executive director of Jardine Matheson
Holdings Limited and of other Jardine Group companies.
Theseinclude Dairy Farm, Hongkong Land, Jardine Cycle
& Carriage, Jardine Strategic and Mandarin Oriental.
Jardine Matheson Holdings Limited has astandard listing
on the London Stock Exchange as its primary listing,
with secondary listings in Bermuda and Singapore. Mr.
Nightingaleis also a non-executive director of Prudential
plc, a company with primary listings on stock exchanges
in London and Hong Kong and with secondary listings
on stock exchanges in Singapore and New York (ADRs).
He is also the non-executive director of Schindler
Holding Limited and Shui On Land Limited, companies
listed in Hong Kong or overseas. Mr. Nightingale is a
commissioner of PT Astra International Tbhk. He is a
member of The Chief Executive’s Council of Advisors
on Innovation and Strategic Development, a Hong Kong
representative to the APEC Vision Group, a member
of the HKUST Business School Advisory Council, the
chairperson of The Sailors Home and Missions to
Seafarers in Hong Kong and the chairman of the Friends
of Uppingham School Limited. Mr. Nightingale is the
former chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Commerce and was appointed as a Hong Kong, China’s
representative to the Asia Pacific Economic Cooperation
Business Advisory Council from 2005 to 2017. Save as
disclosed, he has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years.
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Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH, aged 62, was appointed
a Director of the Company in 2016. Mr. Brough
graduated from Nottingham Trent Business School
with a Bachelor’s degree (Honours) in Business Studies.
Mr. Brough is an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute. Mr. Brough is an independent non-
executive director of GL Limited, acompany listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange, the chairman of Noble Group
Holdings Limited (successor company of Noble Group
Limited which was formerly listed on the Singapore
Stock Exchange), an independent non-executive
director of Habib Bank Zurich (Hong Kong) Limited, a
Hong Kong restricted licence bank and an independent
non-executive director of The Executive Centre
Limited. Mr. Brough was an executive director and chief
restructuring officer of China Fisheries Group Limited
(listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange) until 30th June
2016. Mr. Brough joined KPMG Hong Kong in 1983 and
held appointments as its Head of Consulting in 1995
and as Head of Financial Advisory Services in 1997. In
1999, he was appointed the Asia Pacific Head of KPMG's
Financial Advisory Services business and a member of
its global advisory steering group. He held the position
of Regional Senior Partner of KPMG Hong Kong from
April 2009 before retiring in March 2012. Mr. Brough
is a member of the General Committee of The Hong
Kong Club, a director of the Hong Kong Club Foundation
Limited, and a director of Sailability Hong Kong Limited.
Mr. Brough is also a director of Blue Willow Limited, a
private limited company. Save as disclosed, he has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years.
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Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG (GBS, BBS, JP), aged 66, was
appointed a Director of the Company in June 2017. Dr.
Chung holds a Doctor of Engineering Degree from the
University of Warwick, United Kingdom and Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from City University of
Macau. He was re-appointed as an Industrial Professor
by the University of Warwick, United Kingdom in
December 2015. He was awarded an Honorary Doctor
of Business Administration by the Lingnan University in
2015, an Honorary Doctor of Business Administration
by the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and
an Honorary Doctorate Degree by the University of
Newcastle, New South Wales, Australia in 2006. He was
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) Medal and Gold
Bauhinia Star (GBS) Medal by the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Government on 1st July 2011
and 1st July 2017 respectively. He was also appointed as
Justice of Peace by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government on 1st July 2005 and won the Hong
Kong Young Industrialists Award in 1997. In November
2014, he was further awarded the Industrialist of the
Year. Dr. Chung is highly dedicated to the advancement
of industry and was the Chairman of the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries until 5th July 2013. In addition,
Dr. Chung holds positions on a number of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region Government advisory
committees and is also an active member of many social
committees and associations. He has been appointed
as chairman of Vocational Training Council since 1st
January 2018. Dr. Chung is a co-founder and currently
a non-executive director of Techtronic Industries
Company Limited. Dr. Chung is also an independent
non-executive director of TK Group (Holdings) Limited
and Fujikon Industrial Holdings Limited, all being
companies listed in Hong Kong. Dr. Chung retired as
independent non-executive director of Kin Yat Holdings
Limited and KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited effective
25th August 2014 and 27th August 2015 respectively.
Save as disclosed, he has not held any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.
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Non-executive Directors

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO, aged 71, was appointed a
Director of the Company in 1993. Ms. Lo received a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Oberlin College, Ohioin the
United States and undertook graduate studies in Urban
and Regional Planning at the University of Toronto in
Canada. Ms. Lo joined the Group in 1980 and was the
President of Vitasoy USA Groupuntil2001.Ms.Lowas the
president of the Soyfoods Association of North America
which represents more than 30 soyfoods companies
covering the US and Canada. She does not hold/has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
currently and in the past three years. She is the mother
of Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda (a substantial shareholder of
the Company), the sister of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (an
Executive Chairman of the Company), Mr. Kai-tun Lo
and Ms. Irene Chan (the substantial shareholders of the
Company) and the relative of Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo (a
Non-executive Directors of the Company), Mr. Eugene
Lye (an Executive Director of the Company), Ms. Joy
Cheung Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye and Ms. Alexandra Chan
(the substantial shareholders of the Company).

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO, aged 57, was appointed a
Director of the Company in June 2017, Mr. Lo holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Electronic Engineering & Physics
from the Loughborough University of Technology, a
Master’s Degree in Medical Physics from the University
of Surrey, a Doctorate’s Degree in Medical Physics
from the University of London and an Honorary Fellow
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lo is
an executive director and the chief executive officer of
Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is the chairman and a
trustee of Lo Kwee Seong Foundation (a charitable trust)
being a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO. Save as disclosed,
he has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years. Mr. Lo is the relative
of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (an Executive Chairman of
the Company), Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Ms. May Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene Lye (an Executive
Director of the Company), Ms. Irene Chan, Mr. Kai-tun
Lo, Ms. Joy Cheung Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye, Ms. Keiko
Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company).
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Ms. May LO, aged 44, was appointed a Director of the
Company in June 2017. Ms. Lo holds a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from MIT Sloan School
of Management and a Bachelor of Science degree
from Cornell University. She has worked in finance in
various roles, including, as a fund manager for a global
asset management company and has had experience
investing in publicly listed companies. She does not
hold/has not held any directorship in other listed public
companies currently and in the past three years. Ms. Lo
is the daughter of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (the Executive
Chairman of the Company), the sister of Ms. Joy Cheung
Lo (a substantial shareholder of the Company), the
relative of Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo (a Non-executive
Director of the Company), Mr. Peter Tak-shing Lo (a
Non-executive Director of the Company), Mr. Eugene
Lye (an Executive Director of the Company), Ms. Irene
Chan, Mr. Kai-tun Lo, Mr. Christopher Lye, Ms. Keiko
Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra Chan (the substantial
shareholders of the Company).

Executive Directors

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI, aged 56, was appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company on 1st April 2014.
Mr. Guidetti is currently the Group Chief Executive
Officer. Mr. Guidetti graduated with a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics at the Bologna University in Bologna,
Italy in 1987 and further obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration at Centro Universitario di
Organizzazione Aziendale in Altavilla Vicentina, Italy in
1988. Mr. Guidetti completed a Harvard Business School
Executive Education programme in July 2017. Mr.
Guidetti is responsible for the overall strategic planning,
business development and general management of all
the Group’s operations. Mr. Guidetti joined the Group
as the Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st April 2013
and has fully assumed the roles and responsibilities of
the former Group Chief Executive Officer on 1st August
2013. He has 30 years of proven track record in general
management, strategic/business planning, marketing/
commercial leadership, product innovation and new
business development. He has matured his professional
expertise in two of the largest global fast moving
consumer goods organisations and across local, regional
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and global roles in Europe and Asia. He has spent the
last 18 years in this field in Greater China. Mr. Guidetti
is a director of Ariston Thermo Group, a private limited
company incorporated in Italy. He does not hold/has not
held any directorship in other listed public companies
currently and in the last three years.

Mr. Eugene LYE, aged 49, was appointed a Director of
the Company in October 2017. Mr. Lye is currently the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Vitasoy USA
Inc. and Vitasoy North America Inc., the subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lye holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics from the University of Toronto and a
MBA from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Lye is responsible for the general management and
development of the Group’s import business of the
Group’s products for sales in North America. He joined
the Group in 2002 and has been closely involved in all
aspects of the North American business for over 16
years. During his time at Vitasoy USA Inc., Mr. Lye has
held management positions in sales and marketing
in the Mainstream Channel, and has had oversight
responsibilities for both the research & development
and quality control departments as well as serving as
the Senior Vice President of the Asian Channel. He
does not hold/has not held any directorship in other
listed public companies currently and in the past three
years. Mr. Lye is the brother of Mr. Christopher Lye (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), the relative
of Mr. Winston Yau-lai Lo (an Executive Chairman of
the Company), Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling Lo, Mr. Peter Tak-
shing Lo and Ms. May Lo (the Non-executive Directors
of the Company), Ms. Irene Chan, Mr. Kai-tun Lo, Ms. Joy
Cheung Lo, Ms. Keiko Aun Fukuda and Ms. Alexandra
Chan (the substantial shareholders of the Company).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Group Senior Directors

Mr. Chris Kin-shing LAU, aged 56, Group Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. Lau is responsible for the strategic planning, financial
management and control, accounting, corporate finance, investor
relations and corporate services of the Group. Mr. Lau joined the
Group in April 2016. He has 31 years of solid finance management
experience gained in multinationals in Asia Pacific, Greater China
and the US. He also brings a wealth of experience to this role
with managing start-ups, post-merger/acquisition integration,
business process improvement and Enterprise Resource Planning
system implementation in addition to Treasury, Tax and Credit
management. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Economics
from the Australian National University and a Graduate Diploma
in Computing Studies from the University of Canberra. He is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a Fellow of CPA Australia.

Ms. Wendy Hui-san NG, aged 46, Group Chief Human Resources
Officer. Ms. Ngis responsible for all aspects of our people strategy
globally including leadership development, talent management,
capability building, organisational effectiveness, compensation
and benefits, as well as diversity and inclusion. She works closely
with our operation CEOs and senior leadership team to ensure
we continue to build a culture that attracts, retains and develops
a winning team. Prior to joining the Group in January 2019, she
has extensive HR experience in building diverse talent, culture
and organisational capabilities to enhance performance and
drive sustainable strategic and operational business results for
both large multinationals and start up organisations globally. Her
career included assignments in North America, Asia Pacific and
emerging markets.

Mr. Frank Changbo SI, aged 49, Group Senior Director,
Manufacturing and Project Management. Mr. Si is responsible for
the formulation of the Group’s manufacturing and project policy
and strategy as well as the management and support of plant
capital expenditure project and manufacturing performance. He
joined the Group in 2012. He has extensive experience in different
multi-national companies focus on quality, manufacturing and
project management.
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Dr. Joanna Shwu-Pyng Tzeng CHEN, aged 60, Group Chief
R&D and Quality Officer. Dr. Chen is responsible for developing,
leading and executing research and development and quality
strategies to meet the business needs of local and overseas
markets. She plays a strategic role in driving global product
direction and innovation while assuring compliance, safety,
sustainability and quality excellence. Dr. Chen joined the Group in
2010. With Advanced Food Science education training, she joined
company with diversified working experiences with prominent
multinational companies in the United States, Greater China and
Asia Pacific region. Her expertise covers technical management
and commercialisation in areas across food ingredient, food
product research and development/manufacturing, regulatory
compliance and quality assurance.

Mr. Terence Chiu-kit CHOW, aged 47, Group Senior Director,
Internal Audit and Risk Management. Mr. Chow is responsible for
developing and maintaining acomprehensive, risk-based financial,
operational and IT system audit framework for the Group as well
as managing group risk management function in achieving long-
term growth and sustainable development. Mr. Chow joined
the Group in March 2014 and has over 20 years of extensive
experience in different multi-national companies focusing on
identification of financial, operational and compliance related
controlweaknesses and formulatingrecommendations toimprove
the control environment, while minimising risk. Mr. Chow holds
a Master’s degree in Business Administration. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
American Institute of Certified Professional Accountants and
Chartered Global Management Accountant. He also holds a CISA
(Certified Information Systems Auditor) certification issued by
the Information Systems Audit and Control Association.

Mainland China

Mr. Eric Ting-yi ZHONG, aged 45, Chief Executive Officer,
Mainland China Operation. Mr. Zhong is responsible for the
general management and development of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. He joined the Group in February 2018. Mr.
Zhong has over 20 years of full management experience covering
different roles across different fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) categories, and has worked with many multinational
companies in Mainland China.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSEEEAE

Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)

Ms. Dorcas Shing-suet LAU, aged 49, Chief Executive Officer,
Hong Kong Operation. Ms. Lau is responsible for the general
management and development of the Group’s operations in
Hong Kong, Macau and various export markets. She joined the
Group in March 2017 and has 26 years of proven track record
in Customer Development, Marketing, General Management,
and most recently in Digital and eCommerce in one of the largest
global fast moving consumer goods company across Hong Kong,
Taiwan, Mainland China and North Asia markets. In 2012, she
was awarded Women To Watch by Advertising Age’s in Mainland
China.

Australia and New Zealand

Mr. Christopher John GILLARD, aged 47, Managing Director of
Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. Mr. Gillard is responsible
for the general management and development of the Group’s
operation in Australia and New Zealand. He joined the Group in
November 2014. He has extensive experience across the Asia-
Pacific fast moving consumer goods industry. Based in and a
native of Melbourne, he returned from almost a decade living and
working in Greater China. He has a strong track record in Sales,
Marketing and General Management.

Singapore

Mr. Christopher Llioyd MARCHANT, aged 40, General Manager
of Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd., the Group’s
tofu manufacturing company in Singapore. Mr. Marchant is
responsible for the general management and development of
the Group’s operation in Singapore. He joined the Singapore
operation in September 2016 after spending 4 years heading up
the Vitasoy Australia and New Zealand Sales team. Mr. Marchant
has extensive experience across the fast moving consumer goods
(FMCG) industry in Asia Pacific, and is very familiar with the
Singapore market having spent 14 years in the city state, where
he both started his career and completed his secondary education.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31st March 2019.

Principal Place of Business

Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its
registered office and principal place of business at No. 1 Kin Wong
Street, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

The segment analysis of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) during the financial year is set out in
note 3 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, can be found in the Group Chief Executive Officer’s
Report/Business Review set out on pages 10 to 22 of this Annual
Report. The environmental, employees, customers and suppliers
matters that have a significant impact on the Group, are provided
in the “Sustainability Report 2018/19” to be posted on the
Company’s corporate website at www.vitasoy.com together with
this Annual Report. These discussions form part of this Report of
the Directors.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31st March 2019, the percentage of sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than
30%.

The information in respect of the Group’s purchases attributable
to the major suppliers during the financial year is as follows:

FEEFRMER
RNEBE_E-hhE=ZA=+—RHLEE K&EE
BAREFEREE2EEFHDN30% ©

LT AR RFETRHEBEAEERE
B2EH

Percentage of the Group’s total purchases

EEKERBEBET DL
The largest supplier 22%
RAMED
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 34%

BhAHEESE

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares)
had any interest in these major suppliers.

Recommended Dividend

An interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share (2018:
an interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per ordinary share) was paid
on 20th December 2018. The Directors now recommend the
payment of a final dividend of HK38.0 cents per ordinary share
(2018: a final dividend of HK31.4 cents per ordinary share) in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2019.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$434,000 (2018: HK$617,000).

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group, as at 31st March 2019 are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 25(c) to the financial statements.
Shares were issued during the year on exercise of share options.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

Directors
The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
Annual Report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with Article 104 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH
and Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI retire from the board by rotation at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company
oranyof itssubsidiaries whichis not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Non-executive Directors are appointed under the same terms for
rotational retirement as other Directors, pursuant to the Articles
of Association of the Company.

Directors of Subsidiaries

A full list of the names of the directors of the Group’s subsidiaries
during the financial year and up to the date of this Annual Report
can be found in the Company’s website at www.vitasoy.com under
“Investor Relations/Corporate Governance/Board of Directors/
Directors of Subsidiaries”.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in

Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
The Directors of the Company who held office at 31st March

2019 had the following interests in the shares of the Company
and subsidiaries (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in the register of
Directors’ interests and short positions required to be kept under

section 352 of the SFO:

(1) Interestsinissued shares

EERERS - HEARD R EER
ZHEmRAR

B (BERMERA) FI52HRTRE 2
RERNABEMERHIH R-B-—NE=F
=t-RERZAADESRERREAATR
MEAR (2HR (BSRBEER)) >BHR
BT

(1) REBITRO2ER

Number of ordinary shares

ZEREE
* % of total
Personal Family Trustsand  Total number of issued shares
Name Note interests interests  similar interests shares held *{HE&TR{ADA
®E BieE ARz RikEx ERRkEEER PR m B g BB
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO (i), (iv) 61,583,800 28,702,500 72,678,300 162,964,600 15.35%
ERBEE
Dr. the Hon. Sir David 6,100,000 - - 6,100,000 0.57%
Kwok-po LI
ZEBHT
Mr. Jan P.S.ERLUND 150,000 - - 150,000 0.01%
JanP.S.ERLUND %t 4
Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO (i), (iv) - - 92,582,750 92,582,750 8.72%
ERRLL
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (iii),(iv) 9,198,000 - 121,657,000 130,855,000 12.33%
EEELE
Ms.May LO 2,074,000 - - 2,074,000 0.20%
BHELT
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI (v) 4,874,000 100,000 - 4,974,000 0.47%
MEEEEE
Mr. Eugene LYE 442,313 - - 442,313 0.04%
Bl wE

The percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares

of the Company inissue (i.e. 1,061,581,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st

March 2019.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

(1) Interestsinissued shares (Continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO is deemed to be interested in 28,702,500
shares through interests of his wife.

(ii) Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is interested in 2,576,300 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Charitable Remainder Unitrust, 3,766,150 shares held by
Yvonne Lo Separate Property Trust and 13,562,000 shares held by Lo/
Higashida Joint Trust. Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO is a beneficiary of such
three trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii)  Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is interested in 48,978,700 shares held by two
discretionary family trusts. Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO is a beneficiary
of such two trusts and is therefore deemed to be interested in such
shares.

(iv)  Each of Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO, Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO and Mr. Peter
Tak-shing LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of
East Asia (Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee
for the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a
trustee of the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to
be interested in such shares.

(v)  The family interests of 100,000 shares are jointly held by Mr. Roberto
GUIDETTI and his wife.

(2) Interestsinunderlying shares

Certain Directors of the Company have been granted options
under the Company’s share option scheme, details of which are
set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors of the Company
or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements
Share option scheme

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002

On 4th September 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) under which the
Directors might, at their discretion, grant options to employees
and Directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme was valid for 10 years ended 3rd September 2012.
The purpose of this scheme was to provide incentives and rewards
to employees for their contribution to the Group. The principal
terms of this scheme were as follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; and (b) the average of the
closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

- The options were exercisable for a period to be notified
by the Directors to each option holder, such period not to
exceed 10 years from the date of grant.

- There was no minimum period which an option must be held
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but
the Directors were empowered to impose at their discretion
any such minimum period at the date of offer.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the scheme.

- The maximum aggregate number of shares over which
options could be granted to any one participant, when added
tothe number of shares issued or issuable to that participant
under the share option scheme must not exceed 25% of the
maximum aggregate number of shares for the time being
issued and issuable under the share option scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(1) Share option scheme approved on 4th September 2002
(Continued)

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible Director or employee for a period
of 28 days from the date of offer or such longer or shorter
period as the Directors might in their discretion determine.
An eligible Director or employee had to pay HK$10 on
acceptance of the option as a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of shares issued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
any one participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date
of grant.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was terminated by shareholders
of the Company at annual general meeting on 28th August 2012.
Outstanding share options granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme prior to such termination shall continue to be valid, and
subject to the vesting schedule, exercisable in accordance with
the 2002 Share Option Scheme. As at 31st March 2019, there
were 4,562,000 outstanding options to be exercised under the
2002 Share Option Scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012

On 28th August 2012, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
2012 Share Option Scheme is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions which the Directors, executives and employees of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”)
have made or will make to the Group. It will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with a view to motivating the Eligible Participants to
exceltheir performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining an ongoing
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.
The Board may at its discretion grant options to any Director,
executive or employee of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The principal terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme were as
follows:

- The exercise price of the options is the higher of (a) the
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant, which must be a business day; and (b) the average
of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

- The period within which the options must be exercised
would be specified by the Company at the time of grant. This
period must expire no later than 10 years from the relevant
date of grant.

- There was no minimum period for which an option must
be held nor a performance target which must be achieved
before it could be exercised during the vesting period, but
the Board may determine at its sole discretion any such
terms on the grant of an option.

- The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue on the date of approval and adoption of
the scheme.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]

R EH = @
B RERE @)

(2) R=-FB—Z-FNAZ+NAH#HEZEBR
&

ARABRZE—ZFNAZ+ N\ BRGFIERE
FE([ZE——FERETE]) - =2 ——F
BREFEEEEERREARRD A EEAH
BRAAIZES - THAEBREES ([FEKSH
E|) BREECHELEBBIEL 2B/ - %58
BEEERSHEFEARQTARNG  UWHBEE
KSHEEAREECAFREAERBERYEE ; N
RERSIRIGEAELE 2 EREREEAIEBRE
BREMEBZ2EERSHESE  JENSHEFF
BEBAR EEEUMNBERAQAAREMB LA
ZEAES - (THAESEERTHERE -

—E-CFBRESEZEERTOT

- BREZTEEAUTZERSE : (@ KRHD
REHAH (ERXAREER) EBM
F/ZWHE RO BROREZZHAH
B L& 26 B R B TSRS 2 P9 8 -

- ALEERETBRERETCEREAT
THEZHBR - WERARETEREBER
FHEEEF -

- ERBHA TEBRESAREZRE
HIRNBRETTEAILAZET 2REE
S HEESEUNMRTBREATHREE
EAEMBRRIRAR

- BOEEMERTZEREMTTRITZ
ROBE &S T EBBHERRRE
EHZBBITRM 10% °



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012
(Continued)

- The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes for the time being of
the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed such number of
shares as equals 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

- An offer of the grant of an option remained open for
acceptance by an eligible participant for a period of 28 days
from the date of offer or such longer or shorter period as the
Directors might in their discretion determine. An eligible
participant had to pay HK$10 on acceptance of the option as
a consideration.

- Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in a
general meeting, the total number of sharesissued and which
may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
any one eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at
the date of grant.

During the year, 3,418,000 options were granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. The total number of ordinary shares
available for issue under the 2012 Share Option Scheme as at 31st
March 2019 was 74,056,950 shares, which represented 6.98% of
the ordinary shares of the Company in issue at 31st March 2019.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Equity-linked Agreements (continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012
(Continued)

At 31st March 2019, the Directors and employees of the
Company had the following interests in options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of the Company (market value per share at 31st
March 2019 was HK$38.00) in consideration of HK$10 for each
grant under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share
Option Scheme of the Company. As at 31st March 2019, the total
grant date fair value of unexercised vested options and unvested
options, measured in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 1(g)(iv) to the financial statements, amounted to
HK$24,992,000 and HK$34,943,000 respectively. The options
are unlisted. Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. Assuming that
all the options outstanding as at 31st March 2019 are exercised,
the Company will receive proceeds of HK$286,459,000.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors

EEEWRE

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued) BREHBIHZ @

Share option scheme (Continued) RIS E (@)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012 (2) R=-FB—Z-FNAZ+NAH#HEZEBR
(Continued) e (E)

The Directors of the Company individually and other employees RAFERFER AR ARAEERAEEZ
of the Group in aggregate had the following personal interests in HiEEERBE-_SE_FERETEIR_-Z
options under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share ——EBREFETRBERADTEBER ZBRE
Option Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company EHBEZEAEZOT

during the year and at the end of the year:

Number of
options Number of *Market *Market
Price per outstanding Number of Number of Number of options value value
Period during shareon atthe options options options outstanding per share at per share on
Date of which options exercise beginning of granted exercised forfeited attheend date of grant exercise
Participants grant areexercisable of options the year duringthe duringthe duringthe of the year of options of options
fripieE g year year year EHE i il
KA BT ERkitz Enffz Emgiz BATTEZ BlREZA BlER
48z REAH BRETES ShRER EhEHA A BlEHA BlEsE BhExE ZBHE 8RhE
HKS HKS HK$
% % i
Directors
£
Mr.Winston Yau-laiLO ~ 8/9/2011  8/9/2012t0% 7/9/2021 6.358 1740000 = = = 1,740000 5470
BRERE 31/8/2012  31/8/2013t0 % 30/8/2022 6400 2822000 - - - 2822000 6.700
99/2013  9/9/2014t0 % 8/9/2023 9.370 1704000 - - - 1,704,000 9950
10/9/2014  10/9/2015t0 % 9/9/2024 10.080 1792000 = = = 1,792,000 9890
14/9/2015  14/9/2016t0 % 13/9/2025 13600 1,588,000 = = - 1,588,000 11520
692016 6/9/2017t0% 5/9/2026 14792 1420000 - - - 1420000 15.280
Mr.Roberto GUIDETTI~ 2/7/2014  2/7/2015t0 % 1/7/2024 10.080 400000 = (400,000) = = 9890 26300
BEELE 26612015 26/6/2016t0 % 25/6/2025 13600 1270000 - (916,000 - 354000 13620 26934
24162016 24/6/2017t0 % 23/6/2026 14792 1278000 = (398,000) = 880000 13960 28842
26/6/2017  26/6/2018t0 % 25/6/2027 1629 1254000 = = = 1,254,000 16.200 =
19/6/2018  19/6/2019t0% 18/6/2028 25100 - 1288000 - - 1288000 24000
Eligible employees 2162012 22/6/2013t0 % 21/6/2022 6.274 220000 - (220,000) = = 6.130 25700
working under 28/6/2013  28/6/2014t0 % 27/6/2023 9.370 238000 - = - 238000 9.180 -
employment contracts ~ 2/7/2014  2/7/2015t0% 1/7/2024 10080 306,000 = (118,000) (20000 168,000 9890 26568
REERSHIE 26/6/2015  26/6/2016t0 % 25/6/2025 13600 980,000 - (360,000) (36,000) 584,000 13620 26904
LREREE 247612016 24/6/2017t0 % 23/6/2026 14792 1,144000 - 168,000 (48,000) 928,000 13960 25549
120312007 2/3/2019t0% 1/3/2027 15440 326000 - = = 326,000 15460 =
26/6/2017  26/6/2018t0 % 25/6/2027 1629 1778000 - (130,000) (62000 1,586,000 16.200 29072
19/6/2018  19/6/2019t0 % 18/6/2028 25100 - 1810000 = 60,000) 1,750,000 24000 -
©28/1/2019  28/1/2020t0% 27/1/2029 30350 - 320000 = = 320,000 30000

20,260,000 3418000 (2,710,000) (226,000) 20,742,000
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Report of the Directors

EEEWRE

Equity-linked Agreements (Continued) BREHBIHZ @

Share option scheme (Continued) RIS E (@)

(2) Share option scheme approved on 28th August 2012 (2) R=-FB—Z-FNAZ+NAH#HEZEBR
(Continued) KR ()

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the RIESCEREURDABSZHEEACESZE

names of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners. EER e

* being the closing price or the weighted average closing price of the * BARQAREBRNBEBREREIETEAHA
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the —HEAZEHmERMEFE IR HE -
options were granted or exercised, as applicable.

# options granted to an eligible employee will be fully vested after two # RICEREECERESEREOEMELRES
years from the date of grant. ERERE o

@ 50% of options will be vested after the first anniversary from the date e 50% 2 EREGEREBHET —BFEAERBR
of grant and 50% of options will be vested after the second anniversary 50% 2 EBREKBERE BB MBFRERE -
from the date of grant.

All options except for options granted on 2nd March 2017 AFTEZMEBREHE (BRR=ZZE—1t5=
and 28th January 2019, are exercisable progressively and the AZAR-E—-hAE—-—A=Z+N\ABHZERE
maximum percentage of the options which may be exercised is YN TRESE MR AT EEREZTD
determined in stages as follows: EE EFRRANT -

Percentage of options granted

LEREREZAESHL
On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant 25%
R AR —BAFSRHE
On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant another 55 25%
R HEEAMBEFSREE
On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant another 3 25%
BH AR =BERHEE
On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant another 55 25%

Kb BT BF AR

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted EEREERECETRERENEREBRZ
and the value per option is provided in note 1(q)(iv) and note 23 to ER D R E R B ImRERMET 1(q)(iv) RHIEE23 ©
the financial statements respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other

Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

The Company has been notified of the following interests in the
Company’s issued shares at 31st March 2019 amounting to 5%
or more of the ordinary shares in issue. These interests are in

addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors.

FERRREMATRER G R
B G 2 EE R KXR

A

=t+—H ' ALFEACEMET

BRZ5%HUA EZARRBEELT
SRR TEELNIRE2ESRE

Number of ordinary shares

LERYE
Trusts and Total *% of total
Personal Family Corporate similar ~ number of shares issued
Substantial shareholders Note interests interests interests interests held shares
HEEBT
ERN et
FERR s DN FikiER NTER REkR FishhEy LB
Commonwealth Bank of Australia (i) - - 127,181,069 - 127,181,069 11.98%
BN
Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (i) (i) - - - 100,653,000 100,653,000 9.48%
BRALT
Ms. Irene CHAN (i) 23,514,700 - - 72,678,300 96,193,000 9.06%
REFELL
Mr.Kai-tunLO (i) 18,508,950 - - 72,678,300 91,187,250 8.59%
EHSEE

*

March 2019.

This percentage has been compiled based on the total number of shares
of the Company in issue (i.e. 1,061,581,500 ordinary shares) as at 31st

* HESLEDREAAANR=ZE—NE=A=+—H
CEBTZROEE (8011,061,581,500 R @) 5+

o
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes:

(i) These interests are held by Commonwealth Bank of Australia through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

(ii) Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is interested in 27,974,700 shares held by Lo
Myrna Trust. Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO is a beneficiary of such trust and
is therefore deemed to be interested in such shares.

(iii)  Each of Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO, Ms. Irene CHAN and Mr. Kai-tun
LO is interested in 72,678,300 shares held by The Bank of East Asia
(Nominees) Limited which holds such shares as a nominee for the Lo
Kwee Seong Foundation, a charitable trust. Each of them is a trustee
of the Lo Kwee Seong Foundation and is therefore deemed to be
interested in such shares.

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be
recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFO have
been notified to the Company.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Remuneration for Senior Management SEEEAEBZHE
The emoluments of the Senior Management by bands are as RERE S EEBEEAEZHMENT
follows:
Number of individuals
A
Below HK$2,000,000 1
SB¥5 2,000,000 T T
HK$2,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3
7B ¥ 2,000,001 JT £ 78 #5 4,000,000 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 3
JB¥ 4,000,001 7T Z 5 ¥ 6,000,000 7T
HK$6,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 2

7B 6,000,001 7T £ B % 8,000,000 T

Employees and Human Resources Policy
Details of the number and remuneration of employees, human
resources policy, development and learning of the Group’s
employees are set out in the “Sustainability Report 2018/19” to be
posted on the Company’s corporate website at www.vitasoy.com
together with this Annual Report.

Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
of the Company is currently in force and was in force throughout
this year.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was maintained during
the year.

Related Party Transactions

Details of material related party transactions entered into by the
Company in the normal course of business during the year ended
31stMarch 2019 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
In respect of each related party transaction disclosed in note 28,
the Company confirms that it has reviewed the transactions which
are complied with the relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules (if applicable).

EBERANERBER
TEBZEEHEREFHN ANERBKUKE
ERREREIZFBEANI=ZZ—N"=2—-H
FABERRBE] ZREBERRFRNAK
ARE 2 A EHY (www.vitasoy.com) 3% o

EZCRERE
BRADTESWRENBERL (ZHREB
CRTHEB) £ 46918) REBERRNAEE—
AN -

EERITHRABZEE R
AEER  ARACREESRITRABERER
@O

BEALRS
RRARBEE-NEF=ZA=+—-RILFEE
B-REBBEILCERBEA LR FHIEH
B3R M 5 28 o BUFEE 28 PR 8 2 & 1R S
BATRZME @ ARARICDEERS MR
o8B EWRRAET ZEERE (MEA) -
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Report of the Directors

EEEWRE

Employee Retirement Plans EERAKHE

Particulars of employee retirement plans of the Group are set out BREAEEES RN B ZFHBEERR I KR &M
in note 22 to the financial statements. 3220

Five Year Summary hEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEERBELIBANBEECX%E EEREE
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 233 and RHEHNRNFEIRFE 233K 234 H ©
234 of the Annual Report.

Auditors BB ED

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re- EFERENERAMTREER  SEKLESE
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as Eif - FRERESRESTMEEAEETERATR
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming BREMZRARAREREERREFAE LER -
Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board EEBEN

Winston Yau-lai LO BERE

Executive Chairman HITERE

Hong Kong, 20th June 2019 BB —E-NF~A=-+H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZHERE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 102 to 232, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st March 2019, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31st March 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

BYZHA®RE

FEMNEREERRARKE
(REBAMALAIERLE])

=

AEE (LTERIERM]) SHEAIEARSE
102 Z 22 BB EEAR AT (UT
EREIEQT]) REMBAR (UTHBIEE
Bl MEeMBRE  LPBERREER=Z
—NEZA=+-BNREFBRRREBEZ
RLEFENREERER ReBakAMEEHRK
BR - GEEZEZBRIGERERER  UR
REMBRERWE  BEETESTHBREREE -

EMRS  ZEFEUBRROCREBTBETE
NEREPW(EBMBREER) EEMPHHE
kRxT BEER-Z-NAF=RA=1+—-HHFKF
BYBRRE BEEEEEZALFENGSH
BRERGERERE - USEREBB (A K
BI) ZRHHE

RRNER

HMERBEESBSHMASHEAN(FBETE
BI) ETES - RMEZRSERTAENELES
EARBE [RBET B RSP BERRAENE
FEIBOREE-—SBM - REEBEHAMA
SHEAN(EXSHMERTR) (UTEHBT
Bl BABYR BEEE - XEETTFRFH
HihBRBEEE - HFBEE - RFIMESHE
AREEARNEEHARMNETZIRRER

% o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN E

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

BREEEIR
HARETFRESREXMANEXRAE - ADHHE
HEENBRRNBABRHERZNSH - LS
ERERMBABRGEUBREARBARRE
ETREN - BMATSHELSHEEHEBNE
Bo

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition from sales to distributors and retailers

BRRE T HEENETEHHENKRA

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 139 to 140.

F2HGFEMBRRMTEIRE 139 140 BN EER -

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ESt AR EZEE

The Group’s revenue is principally generated from
sales of food and beverages to a large number of

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
from sales to distributors and retailers included the

distributors and retailers. following:
BEEENBAZTERROZRZ2HBNZERHEE RMARTGEEBREIREIHBNZEFHHENBRANE
Rm&REm ° AREFEFEUATRIE:

Revenue from sales to distributors and retailers is
recognised when the customer takes possession
of and accepts the Group’s food and beverage
products, which generally occurs when the products
are delivered to the location designated by the
customers.
REDHBNSEMHENRAETEFEE RE -
¥ BEfENRGRUmERNGER  E—REE
MAEEEFIETEMIREE o

There are a large number of individual sales
transactions each year which increase the risk of -
errors arising in the recognition of revenue.
EEESFRERENERNEERS  EEMTK
AR HIRERA A ©

. assessing the design, implementation and operating

effectiveness of management’s key internal controls
over revenue recognition;

- AMEEEERBEWAEIWERAIEH R - Bit

RETERML

inspecting sales contracts with distributors and retailers,
on a sample basis, to understand the trade terms agreed
with individual customers and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
REAEEREH)HEBHNZERRITNHEESR » U
T REFERNEFNENRS RN XBERTEFE
BB ETE SEENRAERREEE ;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN E

Key audit matters (continued)

FARETEE ;)

The Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ESt AR EZEE

We identified the recognition of revenue from
sales to distributors and retailers as a key audit
matter because the revenue generated therefrom
accounts for the majority of the Group’s revenue and
involves large number of individual sales contracts
and because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group which increases the risk of
misstatement of the timing and amount of revenue
recognised by management to achieve specific
performance targets or expectations.
KMEEIARBDHEENZERHEENWATI AEH
BEGTEE RAHELENBRAML SSEERAN
BRI ESRAEEFIHEESR » BREERBI
AR EEEMNHEHD-EHERERER  E8EMT
EEEBRABRISTHXEE SRR MEREI B A
R R A S REA RS ©

. comparing, on a sample basis, sales transactions

recorded during the financial reporting period with the
corresponding goods delivery notes, which contained
evidence of acknowledgement of the customers’ receipt
of the goods, and assessing if the related revenue was
properly recognised in accordance with the trade terms
set out in the respective sales contracts;

- BEAREEBMBEREPBACENEER S EEE

NWREE #ECSEREFBERREEYNER » F
HAEERAREERBEEENEESRTMANT S 1F
MR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether specific revenue
transactions recorded around the end of the financial
reporting period had been recognised in the appropriate
financial period by inspecting the trade terms agreed
with the individual customers and the delivery status of
the relevant products;
BEAEEZBRERBENEFFABEZRZIHRAAR
HEERNMRE  FEEEMBERERERARLE
HHERARZEECEEENTEHBAER

- identifying significant credit notes issued and sales

returns from the sales ledger subsequent to the financial
reporting period and by making enquiries of management
and inspecting relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue had been accounted for in
the appropriate financial period in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
and

- B BBREPRNESRAFNCHAZERNETEMN

HERD - WiEB A EEE R B AR SIF T
EHBVARBERRBETETEANRENEENY
% AR

inspecting significant manual adjustments to revenue
during the reporting period, enquiring of management
about the reasons for such adjustments and comparing
details of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BEVBREPAHBRAFENERFEHRARE  ER
BEABRAZRNIESR R B IEREABRE M IF 3 -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN E

Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
amaterial misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the

consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

BB B ET R e M B RRARE
MR

RANEE  EHERAMBRRERRETHE
MR R R E RN EA SRR A IE
R LHABERPERORBFRS - R
RRBES (R AKH) FASHENRE - ED
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foA+EERFRERES -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN E

R AT BT 4R S I I SRR AR IE
HET @

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7]
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BN E

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of

the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resultingin this independent
auditor’s report is Lau Tai Cheong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20th June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBER

For the year ended 31st March 2019 BZE=—ZE—-hEFE=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2019 2018
e —Z-N\F
Note Fff&E $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Revenue 3 7,526,495 6,464,525
' ON
Cost of sales (3,484,665) (3,044,767)
SHERA
Gross profit 4,041,830 3,419,758
EF
Other income 4 40,144 27,829
HAebg A
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses (2,104,514) (1,729,371)
HE  HERIHER
Administrative expenses (635,281) (559,096)
THEHR
Other operating expenses (365,019) (336,872)
Hihicz & A
Profit from operations 977,160 822,248
R A
Finance costs 5(a) (1,700)
A& RS
Share of losses of joint venture (17,814)
it & & N RS
Profit before taxation 5 955,838 802,734
BRBL AT F
Income tax 6(a) (208,143) (160,679)
FriSH

Profit for the year 747,695 642,055
ARF B F
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEEmK

For the year ended 31st March 2019 BZE=—ZE—-hEFE=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2019 2018
—EB-NhEF —E-N\F
Note Fff&E $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Attributable to:
THALHE
Equity shareholders of the Company 695,907 585,774
AATREFEA
Non-controlling interests 51,788 56,281
R
Profit for the year 642,055
A F A
Earnings per share 10
SREF
Basic 65.6 Cents il 55.5 Cents Il
HAx

Diluted 65.0 Cents {lli 55.0 Cents 1l
#E

The notes on pages 112 to 232 form part of these financial %1122 232 B2 MDA Rz 2 — 3017 ©
statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the EREAFEGHNPEATFARATREREAZR
Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note B BERMIEE25 (b) ©
25(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRERAMEEEER

For the year ended 31st March 2019 BZE=—ZE—-hEFE=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2019 2018
—E-NnE —=N\E
Note Fff&F $000 Tt $000 F it
Profit for the year 747,695 642,055
REERF
Other comprehensive income for the year (after tax) 9

FEERMEEKE (BRBR)

Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

HEfraREss BEBm2EAE @

Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit
liabilities 6,095

EBERNENEEZENTE

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:

HEAREER I EEER2EE

Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements of subsidiaries and joint venture outside
Hong Kong (122,804) 145,272

RBREFBUIM BB R RREE AR ZBHRKM
EEZERERE

Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve

ReRBHH  WHREFEE

5,685

Total comprehensive income for the year 615,662 799,107
rEEEHKNEETE

Attributable to:
THALHE :
Equity shareholders of the Company 580,823 730,802
AATREFEA
Non-controlling interests 34,839 68,305
RS

Total comprehensive income for the year 615,662 799,107
AEELHINEETE

The notes on pages 112 to 232 form part of these financial F112F 232 B2 MDA Rk 2 — 015 ©
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

At31stMarch2019 R=E—-AE=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2019 2018
—g-nE —=-N\F
Note Fff=E $'000 F 7T $'000 F T $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment 11(a)
W - BERRE

- Interests in leasehold land held for

own use under operating leases 176,428 67,134
-REKEHEREEERZ

HE LR
- Investment properties 3,628 4,088
-REMHE
- Other property, plant and equipment 2,759,250 2,277,653

- Bk - BERRE
2,939,306 2,348,875

Deposits for the acquisition of

property, plant and equipment 11(g) 1,586
BEYX BERRKEZIT
Intangible assets 12 3,922
wmEERE
Goodwill 13 18,983
e
Interest in joint venture 15 45,291
BENRZER
Deferred tax assets 24(b) 103,362
EERIEEE

3,103,158 2,522,019

Current assets
REBEE
Inventories 16 748,284 709,312
"E
Trade and other receivables 17 984,008 954,944
JE AT B R I EL At PR UK
Current tax recoverable 24(a) 37,727 10,209
FE R HAR 18
Cash and bank deposits 18(a) 1,005,032 985,694
RERRITEN

2,775,051 2,660,159
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR

At 31stMarch2019 R=ZE—hF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2019 2018
—g-nE —=-N\F
Note Fff=E $'000 F 7T $'000 F T $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Current liabilities
REBEE

Trade and other payables 19 2,213,401 1,863,772
FEAT RN R HLAth FEAS TR
Bank loans 20 44,508 27,085
IRITER

Obligations under finance leases 21
RMERE 2 E®

Current tax payable 24(a)
FEIREABIIE

921
31,265

2287044 1,923,043

Net current assets 488,007 737,116
BREBEE
Total assets less current liabilities 3,591,165 3,259,135

REERRBRE

Non-current liabilities
FREBEE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities 22(b) 22,624 16,066
EERKEFERE
Deferred tax liabilities 24(b) 98,981 73,923
BERBEAE

121,605 89,989

NET ASSETS 3,469,560 3,169,146
FEE
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR

At 31stMarch2019 R=ZE—hF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2019 2018
—g-nE —=-N\F
Note Fff=E $'000 F 7T $'000 F T $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BARKf#E
Share capital 25(c) 898,961 857,335
&S
Reserves 2,266,451 2,052,422
&
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 3,165,412 2,909,757
AATREREABLERERE
Non-controlling interests 304,148 259,389
FERER
TOTAL EQUITY 3,469,560 3,169,146
ERBH

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on R-E-NFEARA-ZTHEZEESHENRER

20th June 2019. 1 o

Winston Yau-lai LO Roberto GUIDETTI
BERE FEEE

Director Director

EE EZE

The notes on pages 112 to 232 form part of these financial F£ 1128 232 B2 IR Rz 2 — 5017 ©
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31st March 2019 BZE=—ZE—-hEFE=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RARREREARE
Share-based
compensation Non-
Share Capital~ Surplus Other  Generl  Hedging  Exchange  "®¥V€  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reseve  ROEH profits Total interests equity
RE ARG BERRE  BERE KRR WMRE  ENRG  RERR  REEA Bt FiEREE ER4E
(note (note (note (note (note (note (note
B0 2 e 250 ) 2 25(di)
(W2l (st (MaEasid) (R 2500 (W25l (WE2s) (P 2si0)
fi) fi) i) ) (i) W) (v)

Notellit  $000F7  $000F%  $000Fm  $000F% $000Fxm  §000FT  $000FRT  §000FT  S000FRT  $000FT  S00FRT  $000FT

Balance at 1st April 2017 774248 4281 58459 (48,622) 2261 (1105 (90119) 37085 1696292 2471369 218337 2689706
N-2-tERA-BEG

Changes in equity for the year:

REEZREED:

Profitfor the year - - > = = = = - 58574 585774 5281 642055
KEREA

Qther comprehensive income 9 - - - - - 5,685 133,248 - 6,095 145028 12024 157,052
EfteENE

Total comprehensive income - - - - - 5,685 133,248 - 591,869 730,802 68,305 799,107

Transfer from retained profits to
surplus reserve - - 11970 - - - - - (11970) - - -

BREEHERZRARE

Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits 25(d)i) - (4087) - - - - - - 4,087 - - -
RERRRERZREEA

Shares isslied on exercise of share

options 83089
ATEBREMETRG

Equity settled share-based

transactions - - - - - - - 8273 - 8273 - 8273
HRBBATER RS

Final dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 25(b)(i) - - - - - - - - (285831  (285831) - (285831)
HEBRL-EE2RBRE

Special dividend approved in

respect of the previous year 25(o)ii - - - - - - - - (44.299) (44.299) - (44,299)

HEBRL-FE2RARE

Interim dividend declared in

(13:485) = 69,604 = 69,604

respect of the current year 25()(i) - - - - - - - - (40.161) (40.161) - (40,161)
ERREE RS
Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests - - - - - - - - - - (27.253) (27.253)
mEERERRERS
Balance at 315t March 2018 857,335 38785 70429 (48622) 2261 4580 43129 3873 1909987 2909757 259389 3169146

WZE-NEZA=1-AfH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EREREHR

nVT\

For the year ended 31st March 2019 BEZ=% ﬁ,¢ A=t+—HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#sHE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RARREREARE
Share-based
compensation
' ) reserve ) Non-
Share Capital Surplus Qther General Hedging  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  RAEE profits Total interests equity
RE  BAGE EBRE  BERE KRR HMRE  ENRG  BERR  RELA A FEREE REEE
sl ol i wlbh ol 25((5)"056
HEN (WE‘EZS(Id{ itz E'd) wﬁ;zzs‘ih) B i zsv(‘d;
fi fi 1) ) (iv) (v (v
Noteffit  $000F7%  $000Fxm $000Fx §000Fx  $000Fx  §000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  S000Fm  §000Fkm  $000F%

Balance at 1t April 2018
RZ3-NEMA-RER

Changes in equity for the year:

AEE EGEY:
Profit for the year
REERA

Qther comprehensive income

Hb2EkE

857,335

Total comprehensive income

SEYEAE

surplus reserve

EREENERERGRE

Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits
BERGRERZRERA

Shares issued on exercise of
share options

WRBRENSTRE

Equity settled share-based
transactions

NRRBRHER 225

Final dividend approved in respect

of the previous year

HERRL-EE2RBR2

Interim dividend declared in
respect of the current year

ERFEEZ RS

Dividends paid to non-controlling

interests

A ERERERS

Partial disposal of equity interest

inasubsidiary to
anon-controlling interest

nfERERHESANELT
it

Capital contribution from
anon-controlling interest

bR A

25(dl)

25(c)i) 41,626

25(b)i

25(pl)

i

Balance at 31st March 2019

898,961

38,785

(3,609)

35,176

70429

85910

(48622)

(48.242)

2261

2,061

(4.088)

(4.088)

43129

(105,855

(105:859)

(62726)

31873

38214

1909987

695907

(5,141)

690,766

(15481)

(333,191)

(40,324)

2215366

2909757

695907

(115,084)

380,823

34446

(333,191)

(40,324)

3165412

259,389

51788

(16,949)

34839

(26,723)

25238

11405

304,148

3169146

747,695

(132,033)

615,662

Transfer from retained profits to

(333,191)

(40,324)

(26,723)

25,618

11405

3,469,560

W=B-nEZA=1-AEH

55112 % 232 H 2 MR I A B Bk 2 — 3B 10
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mERTRER

For the year ended 31st March 2019 BZE=—ZE—-hEFE=A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

Note Kt

$'000 F T

Operating activities

RERY

Cash generated from operations

REXBABRE

Tax paid:

EHBIE ¢

- Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

-ERHBEBREHR

- Tax paid outside Hong Kong

- BB UM ERIE

Net cash generated from operating
activities

REFHRERSFR

Investing activities

REED

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

BEYX BERREZRIEA

Proceeds from sale of property, plant
and equipment

HEMZE - BEREZFEMEIIE

Proceeds from partial disposal of
equity interest in a subsidiary

AR B A R IRAEFTS 7 E

Government grants received for
acquisition of plant and equipment

W R & 5 2 2 WU BY

Investment in joint venture

REERRZRE

New loan to joint venture

aaENEfEHZIEN

Interest received

2HFE

Net cash used in investing activities

REEB AR S FHE

18(b)

29

11(a)

15

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

2019
—E-hE
$'000 F T

1,464,896

(34,076)

(157,590)

1,273,230

(910,191)

(33,638)

13,581

(897,654)

$'000 F T

2018
—B-N\F
$000 ¥t

1,274,140

(53,726)

(154,874)

1,065,540

(421,142)

21,930

10,913

(65,018)

9,859

(443,458)




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
an\ IE%/)H;E%%

For the year ended 31st March 2019 BZE=—ZE—-hEFE=A=+—HIEFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#EHE)

2019
—E-hE
Note FffzE $'000 F 7T $'000 F T

Financing activities
REEE
Capital element of finance lease rentals

paid 18(c)
S RERERE2ERTH
Proceeds from new bank loans 18(c)
FIBIRITE RS RIE
Repayment of bank loans 18(c)
BERTER

Interest element of finance lease
rentals paid 18(c) (21)

EffmEREERS 2R EZH
Interest paid 18(c) (2,065)
2RE

Proceeds from shares issued on
exercise of share options 34,446

PATERBRERITRD SR

Capital contribution from a non-
controlling interest 29

REFERERZTE

Dividends paid to equity shareholders
of the Company (373,529)

EARQ B REFEARERE

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (26,723)

R ERIRERE
Net cash used in financing activities (337,381)
RMEFESFARSFEE

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

RERRELSEBBEMNFER

Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April 985,185
RUA—BZRERRESEEIER

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes

EREH o TE

Cash and cash equivalents at 31st
March 18(a) 1,004,538

REZA=Z+—HZRERREEEER

2018
—B-N\F
$000Fr  $000 Fr

(1,244)
27,229
(207,461)
(121)
(1,579)
69,604
(370,410)
(27,253)

(511,235)

110,847

852,649

21,689

985,185

The notes on pages 112 to 232 form part of these financial F 1128 232 B2 MEE D AREI Rz 2 — 3015 ©

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IS ERAR MIEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective termincludes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
March 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in a joint
venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that derivative
financial instruments are stated at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out in note 1(t).

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

1 EESHEE

(a) BHIEH
FUBHREEZRBAAERZ (FBUBRELE
) EBARSERAREB (R ERH) 28
EMmmE -(EBYBIREER) —FAREEE
S ASEM 2 IEEAZ BN (EBMHR
HER)  (BRETER) RBE - APBHE
THEERBERZMAERAAES LHHRA
(TEWRA) 2BRAKBERE - AEBERAZ
TESH RN T URE -

RS ASCEME THITREBT (&
BYBREER)  IRAEERARQBZER
SEIHBERERHAHIER RS - BRERAL
SEARAEE I ZR I BN ER RIBE
S EAETRREH R BERERA
R - BRAERENHEE 1(c) °

(b) FMBWERZHEREE
BE-T-NFZAS+-ALFEZRANE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

(i)  Overview

The HKICPA hasissued anumber of new HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

- HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
- HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

- HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance
consideration

1 FESHEE @
(b) BMEHRZ2EEEE @)

ERERATRANE (BBYBRELR) 28t
BHRREFFEHELESTERER  UREE -
B WARZHZHRESE 2 HE - A5 RR
R o WEMATTRAABEBRREREATERMNEE
EREERBERARSE 2ZHEAMERAES
HERBHUEEEBEEERBEREMRTHNRE
HEERBBZREEREFLAB 2R - &
PR SR A RE A BIRME AT B o

EEEETHEMSEMGTNEBERE - HES
FHEFTZ BT R EE - - ARBITESE
REHERT B AR - HMRERTHERAAR
HEYAERE  AEFELERT 2 BBEMARYE
R -

FREEEEEREA(ERMBRELED) KAAE
HEPBBRRBEANGE ZHE - UK
ERRZEBERRZARBAR » ERMEE2

() EFEERzZF

(i) #E

BSOS EM T ZERAEREERN S5 H
BEXERZHET (BEBMBHRELER) K (FE
MBMELRNEFT - Hep - THBRRELKEH
ZEIEHRERAE

- (ERUBREEADFIRIMTA ]

- (EBUBHREER) FISR[FFLFEIHK
Al

- BB (EARMBBRERBEES) £225%
[IMERX 5 KT 1CE ]
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  Overview (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period, except
for the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation, which have been adopted at the same time as
HKFRS 9.

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 9 in relation to
measurement of credit losses and hedge accounting. The Group
has also been impacted by HKFRS 15 in relation to accounting for
consideration payable to customer and presentation of contract
assets and contract liabilities. Details of the changes in accounting
policies are discussed in note 1(c)(ii) for HKFRS 9 and note 1(c)(iii)
for HKFRS 15.

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments: recognition and

measurement. It sets out the requirements for recognising and

measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts
to buy or sell non-financial items.

(@) Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with the
expected credit losses (“ECL") model. The ECL model requires an
ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with a financial
asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier than under the
“incurred loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial assets measured
at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and loan to joint venture).

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy for accounting
for credit losses, see note 1(k)(i).

(b) Hedge accounting

The Group has elected to adopt the new general hedge accounting
model in HKFRS 9. Depending on the complexity of the hedge,
this new accounting model allows a more qualitative approach
to assessing hedge effectiveness compared to HKAS 39 to be
applied, and the assessment is always forward looking.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)  HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including the
amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with
negative compensation (Continued)

(b) Hedge accounting (Continued)
The adoption of HKFRS 9 has not had a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements in this regard.

For an explanation of how the Group applies hedge accounting,
see note 1(t).

(¢) Transition
Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of
HKFRS 9 have been applied with following impact:

- All hedging relationships designated under HKAS 39 at 31st
March 2018 met the criteria for hedge accounting under
HKFRS 9 at 1st April 2018 and are therefore regarded
as continuing hedging relationships. Changes to hedge
accounting policies have been applied prospectively.

(iii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the accounting
for construction contracts.

a comprehensive framework for

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect transition
method. Comparative information has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 11 and HKAS 18. As allowed
by HKFRS 15, the Group has applied the new requirement only to
contracts that were not completed before 1st April 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iii) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes on previous

accounting policies are set out below:

(a) Consideration payable to a customer

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to account for consideration payable
to a customer as a reduction of revenue, unless the payment to
the customer is in exchange for a distinct good or service that the
customer transfers to the entity.

The Group has reassessed the nature of payments to customers
and only those for exchanging distinct goods or services with
the customers are separately recognised as expenses. There
was no significant impact on revenue and marketing, selling and
distribution expenses upon the adoption of HKFRS 15 for the year
ended 31st March 2019.

(b) Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has
an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises
the related revenue before receiving the consideration or being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration for the promised
goods and services in the contract, then the entitlement to
consideration is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract
liability, rather than a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

As aresult of the adoption of HKFRS 15, “receipts in advance from
customers” previously grouped under “accrued expenses and
other payables” within trade and other payables is now separately
disclosed in note 19.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the date

of the transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange

rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or

income (or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity

receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the
date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance of recognising
the related item, the date of the transaction for each payment
or receipt should be determined in this way. The adoption of
HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any material impact on the financial
position and the financial result of the Group.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

Aninvestmentinasubsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions
and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controllinginterests inthe results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans
from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with notes 1(n) or (o) depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect
the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as
adisposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or joint venture (see note 1(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(k)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Joint venture

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment isinitially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment
(if any). The cost of the investment includes purchase price, other
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the joint venture that forms part
of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (see notes 1(f) and (k)(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the joint
venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in
an associate or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

FESHEE @

) AT
ENAAREESIRQAAREMATZENRE
ToOOEFER FEEREREZZH -

[EEN
> H
i

—

e

a

A
=
=z
=

BREEDRNKREND AR FHESIMAR D
BARFHENHEARI  REEQRTANRKRE
EERHRECAGESMBERE - LHLUBAEA
IR ZRABAREERUEE B EEZIREN T
FEEZQAEMBHEAZEMEE (WA) -
REBABEREER EERBRUBREZ
Hitp AR BRAEBRERE D25 E
RNAZEMEERE - T8 THABEWBERE
SEBRGZREFEE 2RI RAEME 1) K (k)
(i) i B BRI ERRIER K - (MBI R
ZHEA - AEBREZREVBRNC KRB
ARFEANEARERASERSBERARE
w0 MAKEREZREWBRANS R 2 Hi
2HKEERNERSBERAMEERERA

23]
o ©

EXREEHAEARAAENSEEBBEMLE
B AREMCERESHLES  YBETH
HRBENEE  BENAKREARTAERHEER
% FRBIREFELARAURRI o BEWE - &
SEFMGESEURBEDEATERENRA S
BURBEELRBRAEEESEARREFE
—#B D BV R AR o

FEERESERNAZEARZMEENARBRE
o ERARERZRE SRR RIKH
BUAREREEEACEREELRRE - A
SRR ETHER o

WR—BEERRAZREES/N—HHELQT
ZRESIR TR ARENVESTREHN
B MZRESEERAEREAR -

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Joint venture (Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
investee at the date when joint control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

(f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned
or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties held under operating leases are accounted
for as if they were held under a finance lease (see note 1(j)).
Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of investment
properties using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no
more than 50 years.

The useful life of investment properties is reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 1(u)(iii).

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the statement of financial position at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)):

- Freehold land and buildings;

- Land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the land and
buildings cannot be measured separately at the inception
of the lease and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 1(j));

- Buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land, where the fair value of the building could be measured
separately from the fair value of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease (see note 1(j)); and

- Other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see note 1(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciationis calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

(i)  Freeholdland is not depreciated.

(i) Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 25 years.

(iii) Leasehold land and buildings are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated

useful lives, being no more than 50 years.

(iv) Other plant and equipment:

Factory machinery and equipment 4 - 25 years
Fixtures, furniture and office equipment 3-12years
Motor vehicles 4 - 10years

No provision for depreciation is made for construction in progress
until such time when the assets are substantially completed and
ready for use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

1 FESHBEK @

(h) Efb¥%  BERRE @)
TEDRYE BERREER ZHRAREEE
HESEE () ERES TERAEERAE
R T BB e -

(i) KAFEZLHBIWEITE -

(i) RKAEEzLIHEZBFURBRB2F
A A R E I E -

(i) AETHREFRAEREEHR A
ERFH (TBB50F) MER ZEEERT
% o

(iv) EAmERRE

T RS K 5%t 4-25%
HE - BZMRPHLERE 3-12%
AE 4-10%

HEEEREEC A TH R AIHEERAR - WER
FEEIRELITERE -

fis — M - BERRBET 2EBHBERE 2T
ERFEH  ZREZAAESEL S RESH
7 MEED BB FHRITE -

BEZTHEAFHRENSEE (0F) BRE
R o



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(k)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:
- Brand name 20 vyears
- Customer list 7 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

(j) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Leased assets (Continued)

(i)  Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

- Property held under operating leases that would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property is classified as
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under afinance lease (see note 1(g)); and

- Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the inception of the lease,
is accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For
these purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from
the previous lessee.

(i)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased assets, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years, or where it is
likely the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in notes 1(g) and 1(h).

Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 1(k)(ii). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the
period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R SEBI - BN )
1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Leased assets (Continued)

(iii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset.

Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an investment property
(see note 1(g)). Impairment losses are recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(k)(ii).

(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets

(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments

(a) Policy applicable from 1st April 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and loan to
joint venture).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1st April 2018 (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Where the effect of discounting is material, the expected cash
shortfalls are discounted using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation thereof for
trade and other receivables.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables is always measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. ECLs are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

1 FESHEE @
k) EEBEREERE @)

(i) ZWMTAZIEEEE (&)

(a) BZE—NFEA—AEBAZEE (&)
FEHEEREBZE ()

TRz EBER  AFEHRSEZESRKAE
WER R R H A FE K HI i TR RIS E & 2 BIRFI =
HEFLUETR -

A RREEEEREE 2 &RPBATER
HEREERR 2HRREQIHE -

HETEEMGEEEER  AREZEAERAE
EMEFMHBZNRAXELES2ER -5
BREEBEBESMN - B ARREEMRRTE
RIRER

EMEEBRERTIEP —[AEETE :

- TDTEAZEHFERE : EHRKREA
HE+T-—ERRTRREZENSEHAME
BeEE R

- HUEAFHAZABEESRE  AHREK
AEMEERRREX B EAHTEA
FHAMBTRREZENEHMERZ
&8 -

PR B0 % S A PN 2 A B B — AR AR B
AEAENA 2 ANEEFBZSEHE - B
EHEBBDEAERAEBBEREEFRCR
BEERETEE  LHAEE B BEEAZS
72 AR S AT R T BB SR 2 3P4 T
iR -



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued)

(a) Policy applicable from 1st April 2018 (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off.

The adoption of the ECL model under HKFRS 9 has no material
impact on the Group.

(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1st April 2018

Prior to 1st April 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used to
measure impairment losses on financial assets not classified
as at fair value through profit or loss (e.g. trade and other
receivables, available-for-sale investments and held-to-maturity
debt securities). Under the “incurred loss” model, an impairment
loss was recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment included:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Credit loss from financial instruments (Continued)

(b)  Policy applicable prior to 1st April 2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was determined
and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where these financial assets
shared similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and had not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreased and the decrease could be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss was reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
animpairment loss was only recognised to the extent that it did not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

When the recovery of a trade debtor carried at amortised cost
was considered doubtful but not remote, associated impairment
losses were recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group was satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off against the gross
carrying amount of those assets directly. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account were
reversed against the allowance account.

Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwiill,
an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating
leases;

- investment properties;

- other property, plant and equipment;
- intangible assets;

- goodwill;

- interest in joint venture; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(k) Creditloss and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assetsinthe unit (or group of units) on a pro ratabasis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
or value in use (if determinable).

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would
at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Costiscalculated using the first-in, first-out method and comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

(m) Receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)(i)).

(n) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Payables and contract liabilities

(i)  Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(i) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue
(see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note
1(m)).

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessedfor ECLinaccordancewiththe policy setoutinnote 1(k)(i).

(q) Employee benefits

(i)  Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement
plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their services in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net
defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised in profit and loss

» o«

and allocated by function as part of “cost of sales”, “marketing,

» o«

selling and distribution expenses”, “administrative expenses” or
“other operating expenses”. Current service cost is measured as
the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from employee service in the current period. When
the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed,
the portion of the changed benefit related to past service by
employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised
as an expense in profit and loss at the earlier of when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs and when related restructuring
costsorterminationbenefitsarerecognised. Netinterest expense/
(income) for the period is determined by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of
the reporting period to the net defined benefit liability/(asset). The
discount rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans
are recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Long service payments obligation

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plans that
are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The discount
rate is the yield at the end of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligation. The obligation is calculated by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

(iv) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is included in the amount recognised in share capital
for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1

(r)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate toitems recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Currenttaxistheexpectedtaxpayableonthetaxableincome
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

(ii)

(iii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1

(r)
(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (Continued)
(Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (Continued)

(v) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously;
or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R SEBI - BN )
1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(t) Cashflow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency
risk of a committed future transaction, the effective portion of
any gains or losses on re-measurement of the derivative financial
instrument to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedging instrument is a non-derivative monetary item, which
is permitted only for foreign currency risk, then the effective
portion of the foreign currency gains or losses on the hedging
instrument also are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging reserve. The
ineffective portion of any foreign currency gains or losses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the
associated gain or loss reclassified from equity is to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the non-financial asset
or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of afinancial asset or afinancial liability, the associated
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the same
period or periods during which the asset acquired or liability
assumed affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or
expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding
two policy statements, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods during
which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the hedge
relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains in equity
until the transaction occurs and itis recognised in accordance with
the above policy. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected
to take place, the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from
the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by others
of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service is
transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to use the
asset, at the amount of promised consideration to which the Group
is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products are a partial fulfilment of a
contract covering other goods and/or services, then the amount
of revenue recognised is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract, allocated between all the
goods and services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of goods was
recognised when the goods were delivered to the customers’
premises or picked up by customers or when goods are shipped
on board/arrived the designated port, which were taken to be the
point in time when the customer had accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership.

(i)  Service fees
Servicefeesarerecognisedwhentherelatedservicesare provided.
Service fees exclude value added tax or other sales taxes.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

1 FESHBEK @

(u) WAFER
AEBR—REBKBREPEHHEEEY - BHRKE
FEMALFEAAEEHEEEEERARSE
WA

WARERBRE 2=t EEBEEFHAEA
FRERAEERER  SRALEERYEEE
BBz EZHERE  BEFEERKRE=ZFREZE
BEH - WATSIBERRNEMHEER L HBR—
DEZITH

TR A KRR RE A 2B 2 —
S -

(i) EBYZ#HEHE

i EFERLEMNERINBIBA - HEZEER
ABROBREAMENR SRB 258N —H2 -
AIWAZ EREANETRSERAE 2 SEL
BIFUARER » WIRREHB Y EEEELESHE
TZIBREENR RS 2 BETIE -

RATLLEHRE - REHEEW 2 WMAREER
BEFZEMAEFURENREGNTE FE
EEBD (NEFEMEYREREZAERR
FEIR) BT o

(i) HRIEE
R ENRUEEIRBEER - REETSIEE
B H A SHER -

(i) REHEZHELKA
RELEHERRZESWAERNEEHITRE
ZHER  LWEEEERAER - MERZHEE
REDREZTERAEVFHEHENSREE 2L
EID o AARE SN EBREEF 2 25T ERER
BUWA o

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised cost
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of
the asset (see note 1(k)(i)).

(v) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses
are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss, except those non-derivative monetary items used
to hedge foreign currency risk which are recognised in other
comprehensive income (see note 1(t)).

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical costin aforeign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the
fair value was measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(v) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, are translated
into Hong Kongdollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that subsidiary
outside Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items
that in substance form part of the net investment in an operation
outside Hong Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified
to equity on consolidation.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing cost as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

(x) Repair and maintenance expenditure
Repair and maintenance expenditure, including cost of overhaul,
is expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRREHEA - LB )
1 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(y) Related parties

(a) Aperson,oraclose member of that person’s family, is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)  hascontrol or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) Theentityiscontrolled orjointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

2 Accounting judgements and estimates
Notes 13, 22 and 23 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment assessment,
defined benefit retirement liabilities and the fair value of share
options granted. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

1 FESHBEK @

7) TEPERE
EEIBRAVBERRFAER2EIHEES
B DRBEHAARESEEEASREMHAZH
BHETHED - SEEEASRBEZEREIE
ERFAKEREER R U R ZEER
Keithig iz RIT

—

%

RPBREMS > EHNEREEDBFEHFER
] RIFZEDHEBRLUEEERREERNR
RBME - LERFME FFRAERER - 2
HERIEHBBARAZSAREERENE
FEEE - @B S LI EEE 2 EED IR
B ERAEMDEEE - BIAJRERE 2

2 BFtHETREE

MIEE 13 « 22 Rk 23 D BB BN BRI E T
RERAEREEREREBREZAABZR
HEHEABEZZER - A TRERZZHM
FEFRRMOT :
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates

(Continued)

(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying values of property,
plant and equipment may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of assets. Under HKAS
36, these assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs
of disposal and the value in use. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to their present value, which requires significant judgement
relating to level of sales volume, selling prices and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount. However, actual sales volumes, selling prices
and operating costs may be different from assumptions which may
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets
affected. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment are disclosed in note 11.

(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (see note 11) are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual values, if any. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives and the estimated residual
values, if any, of the assets at least annually in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based
onthe Group’s historical experience with similar assets and taking
into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

2 Accounting judgements and estimates 2 EFHETREE @

(Continued)

(c) Write down of inventories (c) MBEFE

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts TEBSEFERESN BHRAREAZRE
of inventories as disclosed in note 16 with reference to EE HE HEECREEETEHNEH (B
aged inventories analysis, expected future consumption and MEE 1615 E) - MEFEZHF IR FERER
management judgement. Based on these reviews, write down of REREE  IXEESRBESFM 2 &R MR
inventories will be made when the estimated net realisable value FEZEEBE - AT BRFEASTEEGTER
of inventories decline below the carrying amount. However, TE - mibEst 2 AT EER o

actual consumption may be different from estimation and profit

or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation.

(d) Deferred tax assets (d) BEZEHIBEE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and BEEREEEDRAB AT EEERR TIRINERE
temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets EEMER c HRZEEREHEEERRAET
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future BEE AR B) AR B UK 22 SR IE 8K B 12 FE SR B 3 i B
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax TERR  BULEEEEEHE B RESERS
benefits can be utilised, management’s judgements is required mAZ AR - AKEBETEEMEER 2
to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s il KRR FERBURR g FIEER BEEW U E - &
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax ERAEIZELERIBELERE - BEHEEE2H
assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable BRIRAEEFBERMEE 24(b) #E -

profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered. Details

of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are

disclosed in note 24(b).

3 Revenue and segment reporting 3 WARZHBE

(a) Revenue (a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and sale AEBFFEXEK AR ERHEERRREM ©
of food and beverages.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of KAECEERZBEEEBEE EIRIT
returns, rebates and discounts. e

No disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers HRAEEEZFRARBEEREERERRE
is presented as entire revenue of the Group is derived from m TRE-REEER  RUEEEINEFEN
manufacture and sale of food and beverages, and is recognised at Ol

pointin time.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which are organised
by geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

- The Mainland China business mainly represents the
manufacture and sale of soya milk, tea, juice, etc. in Mainland
China;

- The Hong Kong Operation (Hong Kong, Macau and Exports)
mainly represents the manufacture and sale of soya milk,
tea, water, juice, tofu, etc. in Hong Kong, sale of beverages
in Macau, export of beverages from Hong Kong and the
operating of tuck shops and catering businesses;

- The Australia and New Zealand business mainly represents
the manufacture and sale of soya milk and other plant milk
products in Australia and sale of beverages in New Zealand;
and

- The Singapore business mainly represents the manufacture
and sale of soya related products in Singapore and sale of

soya related products in overseas.

All of the Group’s revenue is generated from the manufacture and
sale of food and beverages.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of interest in joint venture,
deferred tax assets, current tax recoverable, goodwill and
unallocated head office and corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors and bills payable attributable to the
manufacture and sales activities of the individual segments, bank
loans and obligations under finance leases managed directly by the
segments and current liabilities with the exception of employee
retirement benefit liabilities, deferred tax liabilities, current tax
payable and unallocated head office and corporate liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit from
operations”. To arrive at “profit from operations”, the Group’s
profit is further adjusted for (i) items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as finance costs, share of losses of joint
venture and unallocated head office and corporate expenses and
(ii) goodwill impairment. Income tax is not allocated to reporting
segments. Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus a profit
margin.

3 WARDEHRE @
(b) DEHE @)
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TR [EEHER ] AEEZERF () LA -
BRMER DB 2IEE (WBMERK - FiIiEEE A
ABERASE2ABRAREEERM) K

FEREFEHE-DHE - IERLEIARED
2B o D ESEHE DR A INEFRFEEE -

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBEHIE - LUBRE)
3 Revenue and segment reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)  Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for

3 WARDEHRSE @)

(b) DEEHE (@)
(i) DEfE BEREE (F)

BEZE-NER=ZZE-NF=ZBA=+—HLHF
E EROAEERSEBITHEEABREZE

the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment BRRERDHREN G2 ARSI IERETIM
performance for the years ended 31st March 2019 and 2018 is T
set out below:
Mainland China Hong Kong Operation  Australia and New Zealand Singapore Total
HE R BEEH BNRER s @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ZE-NE ZE-\F ZB-AF ZEZ-N\Ff ZE-hAF ZE-N\E ZB-hF ZE-\F ZB-AEF ZE-)\F
$000Fx $000F7 $000F7 $000Fm $000Fx $000FT $000Fx $000Frm $000Frm  $000F 7
Revenue from external customers LYYLETN 3700034 WWIZXIIM 2,158 936 522,468 501,807 111,521 103,748 WEYIYVEMM 6,464,525
RESMEREE WA
Inter-segment revenue 77,263 66,128 67,190 47,406 2,092 899 3,136 2519 149,681 116,952
AHERA
Reportable segment revenue 3766162 2206342 502,706 106267 |RAILRVLR 6581477
BREDBZUA
Reportable segment profit from
operations 720,303 542,267 339,149 352,088 867 1,153,100 996,327
BREIPZEEERN
Interest income from bank deposits 2,758 6,963 13,581 9859
RITFERZASMA
Finance costs (2,026) (2,086) (1,700)
RERHA
Depreciation and amortisation for the
year (WCYXZEM  (140,313) (79,685) (93,933) (17,614) (12,313) (4,501) (264,644) EVENZY)
REEZIEREH
Reportable segment assets KPLANYAN 2568086 [REYSXIYAN 2842352 421,820 406,790 69,119 WMALNENN 5886347
BREIRZEE
Reportable segment ibilities 1498014 575,619 121,176 16279 [P 2211088
BREINEE
Additions to non-current segment assets
during the year 765,445 237301 184,743 122,148 985,907 428258
REEMECERDIHEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continved) 3 WARZEEHE @0

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE @)
(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profitor (i) ELERA - 1B BEREREZ
loss, assets and liabilities ¥‘9‘§E
2019 2018

—E-NhF —E-N\F
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Revenue

'ON

Reportable segment revenue 7,676,176 6,581,477

AHREDEBZWA

Elimination of inter-segment revenue (149,681) (116,952)

DEBEUA = Hti g

Consolidated revenue 7,526,495 6,464,525

2019 2018

—B-hE —E-N\F
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T

Profit or loss

Bx

Reportable segment profit from operations 1,153,100 996,327

BERE DB 2 L& m A

Finance costs (note 5(a)) (2,086) (1,700)

RE A (FffEE5(a))

Share of losses of joint venture (19,236) (17,814)

it & & R REEE

Recognition of impairment losses on goodwill (note 13) (18,342)

EREEZREEE (ME13)

Unallocated head office and corporate expenses (175,940) (155,737)

RAOBMzBARREEER

Consolidated profit before taxation 802,734

AR BRBLADER]

955,838
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3 WARZHEE @

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE @)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profitor (i) ZBIREZ KA - Bz - BEREREZ
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) ¥R (#)
2019 2018
S —Z-N\F
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Assets
BE
Reportable segment assets 7,214,780 5,886,347
BAREDH2EE
Elimination of inter-segment receivables (1,539,207) (909,792)
73 3B B FE U R 2 I g
5,675,573 4,976,555
Interest in joint venture 59,290 45,291
BE QR ZER
Deferred tax assets 81,169 103,362
EERIBEE
Current tax recoverable 37,727 10,209
PEWGR A% 18
Goodwill 18,375 18,983
L
Unallocated head office and corporate assets 6,075 27,778

AOBMzBLRAREEEE

Consolidated total assets 5,878,209 5,182,178
REHERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3 WARZHEE @

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE @)
(i)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profitor (i) LKA - B BERBEZ
loss, assets and liabilities (Continued) ¥‘:T,§E (#8)
2019 2018
—e-nE —2—N\F
$'000 T $000 T T
Liabilities
8f&
Reportable segment liabilities 2,596,923 2,211,088
BfHREsHzEE
Elimination of inter-segment payables (363,957) (344,300)
7 BB FEAS TR 2 i 8H
2,232,966 1,866,788
Employee retirement benefit liabilities 22,624 16,066
EEENKRENERE
Deferred tax liabilities 98,981 73,923
EEHEEE
Current tax payable 29,135 31,265
FE{S IR HAR 18
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 24,943 24,990

AWz BLRREEERE

Consolidated total liabilities 2,408,649 2,013,032
e N =
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

3 Revenue and segment reporting (Continued) 3 WARZHEE @

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE @)

(iii) Geographic information (iii) HEEF

The following table sets out information about the geographic T%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂi’%%% B E R EZ
location of the Group’s property, plant and equipment, deposits BEVE BMERSREZIE  BEEE -

for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\A“ ARz ER ([BEFRRBEE])
assets, goodwill and interest in joint venture (“specified non- ZER - BYE BMERIERBEVE BE
current assets”). The geographic location of the specified non- kEEziIems BEFRBDEEZHENE
current assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in DIRBZEECERIEE  RBFEEERD
the case of property, plant and equipment and deposits for the EMSIEEERE 2 EKFEH  BREEA
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and the location of R ERME BB FTEH ©

the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible

assets and goodwill and the location of operations, in the case of

interest in joint venture.

Specified non-current assets

BEFRBEE
2019 2018
—E-NnE —2-N\F
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Mainland China 2,022,727 1,526,578
FEIR
Hong Kong Operation 642,081 541,409
BRER
Australia and New Zealand 244,126 247,742
BN R P
Singapore 53,765 57,637
ES Il
Other country 59,290 45,291
HAhEIxR

3,021,989 2,418,657

The revenue from external customers and specified non-current BB (REEfEH) BAREEREIPEEE 2K
assets of the Group attributed to Hong Kong, the Group'’s place ARBEEBEFRREBEED A 1,961,417,000
of domicile,amounted to $1,961,417,000 (2018: $1,875,456,000) 7t (ZZE—\F : 1,875456,0007T) K 635,381,000
and $635,381,000 (2018: $534,437,000) respectively. Tt (ZZF— )\ : 534437,0007¢) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

4 Otherincome 4 HWA
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7t
Government grants (note) 3,570
BB (FeE)
Interest income from bank deposits 9,859
RITIFRZFIEWA
Interest income from loan to joint venture -
aaE N EfEHERZFIEWA
Rental income 3,667
HEWA
Scrap sales 1,019
Reversal of long outstanding other payables 2,441
REANEEEMEMREE
Sundry income 7,273
B A
Note: st

Government grants mainly relate to value-added tax refunded and other BFHBEREPEARLIME ([HE]) BFREZE
financial assistance received from the government of the People’s Republic ERREEWM MU EEY - RBEYE BEK
of China (“PRC”). Other government grants received in relation to the RV Ht BT H B 2 B E E 2 AR (st
acquisition of property, plant and equipment were netted off against the cost 11(a)) ©

of the related assets (note 11(a)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

5 BRBIATRA
BERDRFIE IR (GHA) :

5 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$'000 ¥t $'000 F 7t
(a) Finance costs:
BN
Interest on bank loans 1,579
RITERZFIE
Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 21 121
RIEHSERMBEER
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7t
(b)  Staff costs:
BT/ :
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans 83,211
REMRFCR ARG S 2 HR
Net expenses recognised in respect of:
LUTIER 2B HRERFE
- retirement gratuities (note 22(c)(v)) 3,734
- RIRE (FFEE22(c)(v)
- long service payments 616
-REBRBS
Total retirement costs 97,676 87,561
BRI A
Equity settled share-based payment expenses (note 23) 13,521 8,273
RO ARNHRER 2EMR (MiEE23)
Salaries, wages and other benefits 1,417,062 1,297,844
e TERHAMWER
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

5 Profit before taxation (Continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
(Continued)

5 PBREBDER (@)
BBAEFITHG (3FA) © ()

(c) Otheritems:
Hibigg

Amortisation of interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases

RELEHEREFEACEE L thiEs 2 #H

Amortisation of intangible assets

B EEZ#HE

Depreciation

e

- Investment properties

-REWME

- Other assets

-HithEE

Recognition of impairment losses

BRREEE

- Trade and other receivables

- FEWBR R R EL A PRI K

- Property, plant and equipment

- MERRE

- Goodwill

-

Auditors’ remuneration

ZEMME

- Audit services

- BRTE

- Tax services

- B AR

- Other services

- Hib AR

Operating lease charges: minimum lease payments

KREHEEBR HREHEENRK

- Hire of properties

-THAWE

- Hire of factory machinery and equipment

-FARA IR REE

- Contingent rent

-HAHEE

- Other assets

-HithEE

Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEME BERRZEZER - (W&E) F8

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

SNERIE, (WEs) FEE

Net (gain)/loss on forward exchange contracts not designated as
hedging instruments

FEEREPIAZEMNESHZF () FE

Cost of inventories (note 16(b))

FERA (M 16(b)

2019

2018
—EB-N\F
$'000 F T

460

260,317

152,608
2,110
1,072

534
3,341

4,097

(101)

3,496,975

1,585

379

526

248,254

256
13,625

18,342

5,580
978

18,394

111,618
1,256
930
330
(7,117)

(514)

920

3,048,655

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE & @



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

6

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss represents:

6 HEBEZRRZHMEHR

(a) HREBBBRZBEAMT :

2019 2018
=F-NF —2-N\F
$'000 F 7T $'000 F 7T
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
RHABIIE - HEEFEHR
Provision for the year 40,282
FREE
Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years (100)
DEFEZBETE (SHEHE)
40,182
Currenttax - OutsideHongkong AN
BHABIE - HEUMEE
Provision for the year 125,504 158,500
FRiEE
Over-provision in respect of prior years (612) (7,504)
LEFEzSERE
124,892 150,996
Deferredtax 45499 | (30,499)
ELER IR
Notes: g
(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 is calculated at (i) ZE-NF2ERAEHEBRERRFRN ZMEER

(i)

(iii)

16.5% (2018: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance notes, the statutory income
tax rate applicable to the Company’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen, Foshan,
Shanghai, Wuhan and Dongguan is 25%.

In addition, the Group is subject to withholding tax at the applicable
rate of 5% on distribution of profits generated after 31st December
2007 from the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC.
Deferred tax liabilities have been provided for in this regard based on
the expected dividends to be distributed from the foreign-invested
enterprises in the PRC in the foreseeable future in respect of the
profits generated after 31st December 2007.

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and Mainland China
is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant tax jurisdictions.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

BN L16.5%(ZF—\F 1 16.5%) ZBEFTE ©

(i)  REMBETEEEFAEEE  EZRRERESIFE
B BARARXRZRY - Bl BF - ERR
ZMB LR EEMRERER25%

o AEBARAEETEANELEUR-EZ
tFTZ A=+ -BREEZEFEL 22 TRE
5%E AR RHMENH - FEBECHUREPE
HERERARERRETUR=_ZZLF+ZA
=T -HREEZBFNDIKZREFHRELERES
&

(i) BEBRFEREIUIME BRI RHELRE
EREEEERE 2 RTEARENE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

BARS R AR MYt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

6 Income taxin the consolidated
statement of profit or loss (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

6 HmEBBIRZMBH @

(b) BB HEGEIEREARR

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: AR ZER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Profit before taxation 955,838 802,734
R A% Al
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated at the rates applicable
to profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 209,756 186,902
REBMBIERZEREREAZFEBHEFERBANGER 2 ERHE
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7,607 14,897
AR 2 B IE S &
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (4,837) (3,611)
FERBIUMA 2 BIBRE
Withholding tax of the PRC subsidiaries 8,732 10,783
BT E A R 2 FRRBIE
Tax effect of recognition of tax loss not previously recognised (110) (24,415)
BRERARER ZHBER BB
Net over-provision in respect of prior years (308) (7,604)
DEFEzSHBHERE
Others (12,697) (16,273)
Hith
Actual tax expense 208,143 160,679
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation

are as follows:

7 EEZME

RIBEE B (D ERGI) % 383(V) 1R (AT (KHE
EENRER) RO F2BHRBE2ESHES M
T

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Directors’ inkind
fees  HeBER
EShe iR
$000 F 70 $000 ¥ 710

Executive Directors

HiiEs

Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO
BRERE

Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI
Mr.Eugene LYE
il

5,874
7,057

2033

Non-executive Directors

FiiTEE

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO
BRERnt
Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO
BEREE
Ms.May LO
BHZnd

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHTEE

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI
FHEET

Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND

JanPS.ERLUND &

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE
REERE

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH

Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4

Dr.Roy Chi-ping CHUNG

EEYAL

14,984

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

Discretionary
honuses

RiERH2 A

$000 T10

2019
ZE-nE
Share-
Retirement hased
scheme payments
contributions Sub-total HiRBA Total
BIRGH R Nt BRI fazt
(note)
(H3t)
$000 710 $000 1t $000 F 70 $000 Tt

11,521 1490 13011

12,346 5,031 17377

2947 2947

29,319



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHPAN  LUBEHE)

7 Emoluments of Directors (continued) 7 EBEzZ2ME @

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the RIBEB CQARMEH) 55 383(1) IR K (A F (HE
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies EENRER) RO F2REEEEZHE W

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation T (&)
are as follows: (Continued)

2018
“E-N\E
Salaries,
allowances Share-
and benefits Retirement hased
Directors’ inkind  Discretionary scheme payments
fees  He 2R bonuses  contributions Sub-total DSr! Total
EE20kS EVEA  WERRCEL  BGEHR gt A @it
(note)
(i)
$000 F 1 $000 ¥t $000 ¥t $000 ¥t $000 F 7 $000 Tt $000 1
Executive Directors
#iTEE
Mr. Winston Yau-lai LO 240 5,582 3822 K| 9,985 3,159 13144
BREfE
Mr. Roberto GUIDETTI 120 6,700 3,774 235 10829 3,726 14,555
REREL
Mr. Eugene LYE (appointed on 1st October 2017) 60 2,001 - 55 2116 - 2116

Bhlks (R=F-tE+A-BEZA)

Non-executive Directors

FirEs

Ms. Myrna Mo-ching LO (retired on 1st October 2017) 68 - - - 68 - 68
BRagt (R=3-tETR-REA)

Ms. Yvonne Mo-ling LO 136 - - - 136 - 136
BERGT

Mr. Peter Tak-shing LO (appointed on 24th June 2017) 92 - - - 92 - 92
BERRE (W-B3-LEAA-THREER)

Ms. May LO (appointed on 24th June 2017) 9 - - - 9 - 9

Xt (W_2-tE/A-THEEZR)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUFHEE

Dr. The Hon. Sir David Kwok-po LI 429 - - - 429 - 429
ZEERT

Mr. JanP.S.ERLUND 417 - - - 417 - 47
JanPS.ERLUND %4

Mr. Anthony John Liddell NIGHTINGALE 417 = = = 417 = 417
REERE

Mr. Paul Jeremy BROUGH 442 = = = 442 = 442
Paul Jeremy BROUGH %4

Dr. Roy Chi-ping CHUNG (appointed on 24th June 2017) 252 - - - 252 - 252

ESTEL (W25 A-tMBEZEE)

2,765 14,283 7,596 631 25,275 6,885 32,160
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

7 Emoluments of Directors (continued)

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
Directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(q)
(iv) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 23.

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2018:
two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2018:
three) individuals are as follows:

7 BEEZHE @

Mz : AR AER A RIERBAD T 2BRETER
FESCBREZGTEE  LEBREZEED
RIBMEE 1q)(iv) FEANEEFRURDASRER 2
REEACETBERMETE » MRBEZER B
HBTFERAMARHNRATIEERBACH®
Rz BB & FEFTE 2 A% -

HEEYEN 2FHE (BFCRECBREZTE
HRRRBE) NESERE [BRESE] —BRRH
FE23 IR o

8 mEMEAL

ERERSHEALH WE (CB-—N\F W
£) BEE  HEZMORHETPRE - He
£ (SF-N\EZ8) ALZMEBENT

Salaries and other emoluments
FeRHEMME

Retirement scheme contributions
RIRET IR

Discretionary bonuses
BB Mz EAL

Share-based payments

LA 7 BB 2 (45K

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

2019 2018
S = G
$'000 7t $000 F 7t

10,400

367

1,806

1,695

14,268




Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments

(Continued)
The emoluments of the three (2018: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

i

e AL @

it

8 &

ZH(ZE-N\F =38 &5MEAT 2z
IFUTAER

$4,000,001 to $4,500,000
4,000,001 Tt £ 4,500,000 T
$4,500,001 to $5,000,000
4,500,001 Tt £ 5,000,000 T
$5,000,001 to $5,500,000
5,000,001 Jt £ 5,500,000 Jt
$6,000,001 to $6,500,000
6,000,001 Jt £ 6,500,000 T
$7,000,001 to $7,500,000
7,000,001 Jt £ 7,500,000 T

2019 2018
—g-he —2-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A N
1
1
1

9 Other comprehensive income

(a) Tax effects relating to each component of

9 Hitp2mEWKE
(a) FEAHME2EWES M 2B

other comprehensive income: e
2019 2018
= i “E-N\E
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
amount credit amount amount expense amount

RBA 28 REHER

$000 7t

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of

subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong (122,804)
RAEEBIMENBAARGE N A BHRRMEENE

REE
Cash flow hedge: net movement in the hedging reserve (4,896)

ReREHn  WiREEED

Remeasurement of employee retirement benefit liabilities (6,142) 1,

EERMERGEEMTE

(133,842) 1,

$000 7t

808

001

809

NBHESE  BHALE HEER JIKRHESE
$000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fi

(122,804) 145272 = 145,272
(4,088) 6,808 (1,123) 5,685
(5,141) 7,303 (1,208) 6,095

(132,033) 159,383 (2,331) 157,052
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

9 Other comprehensive income (Continued) 9 Hib2mEUWE @
(b) Components of other comprehensive income: (b) HfhZmEUWz 240 :

2019
—E-hF
$'000 F 7t
Cash flow hedges:
BeRaet

Effective portion of changes in fair value of hedging instruments
recognised during the year

FARIZEFTAEAAEEB 20

Amounts transferred to initial carrying amount of hedged items

BREWTEESYREE2EHE

Net deferred tax credited/(charged) to other comprehensive income

REMEEEERTT A GIR) ZIELER 8T

Net movement in the hedging reserve during the year recognised in

other comprehensive income

FAREMEEREER 2SR EFEE

10 Earnings per share 10 BREF

(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXZEF

2018
—EB-N\F
$'000 7T

21,385

(14,577)

(1,123)

5,685

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the REXBAMNDIRBERAAGABRERZTE A
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of FE {5 %% F695,907,0007T ( = & — N\ F:
$695,907,000 (2018: $585,774,000) and the weighted average 585,774,0007t) R F A B B ITE B 2 INFEF

number of 1,060,585,000 ordinary shares (2018: 1,055,541,000 ) 1R #1,060,585,000 R EER (=& — N\F :
ordinary shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows: 1,055,541,000 R Z @A) 51 & - HFt&EWT -
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EiERZINEFTRE
2019 2018
—B-hF —ZE-N\FE
Number of shares Number of shares
BREOEE RHER
'000 FM% '000 FH%
Issued ordinary shares at 1st April 1,058,872 1,051,692
RUA—BZERTEER
Effect of share options exercised 1,713 3,849
EITEEREZZE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March
(note 10(b)) 1,060,585 1,055,541

RZ=ZA=1+—H2EBERZIETHRE (FIEE 10(b))

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7




Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

10 Earnings per share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
$695,907,000 (2018: $585,774,000) and the weighted average
number of 1,071,436,000 ordinary shares (2018: 1,064,205,000
ordinary shares) after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

10 EREF @)

(b) BREEER
FREERADIRER D G RERE AELEF
695,907,000t (=& — J\ & : 585,774,000 7t)
RYMFEABEEERAcERR 2 FEMEL
FREZ TR R MEF IR E1,071,436,000 &
TIEIR (ZZ—\F : 1,064,205,000 IR 38 A% )
FE - HFTEWNT ¢

BERZINE IR (8F)

2019 2018

=F-hF —E-N\F
Number of shares Number of shares
RHEE RIDEE

'000 F % '000 F A%

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31st March
(note 10(a))

R=A=+—BZEBERZMEFIRE (M 10(a))

Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under the Company’s share
option scheme for nil consideration

BREBRBFA AR ZBREASUBESXBTEERZZE

1,060,585 1,055,541

8,664

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31st March
REA=+—BHZ2EBRZMEFIRE (#5E)

1,071,436 1,064,205
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment 11 Y% - BERRE
(a) (a)
Interestsin
leasehold
Other property, plant and equipment and held
At BEREE for own use
under
Land and Factory Fixtures, operating
buildings ~ machinery furniture leases
held for and  andoffice REfe
ownuse  equipment  equipment Motor ~ Construction Investment &R B

BEEA:  IRMER £E HAR vehicles inprogress  Subtotal  properties  EAZAE Total
1iRET R BOERE AE GEIR Nt REME DbER Eh)
$000Fx  $000Ffrm  $000Fm  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fm  §000Fw

Cost:
A

At 1st April 2017 966,593 2488049 297,614 134,105 46675 3933036 22698 72736 4028470
R=E-tEMA-A

Exchange adjustments 59756 147,722 10,148 4,654 6,087 228,367 - 7751 236,118
Additions 4002 162,986 31984 15,460 213417 427849 - - 427849
HE

Transfer - 85,065 12226
Bl

Disposals (13730) (57,205) (6,072) (8,337)
HE

At 31stMarch 2018 1016621 2826617 345,900 145,882 168888 4,503,908 22698 80487 4,607,093
B 1 o =
Accumulated amortisation, depreciation and

impairment losses:

il FERAEER:

(97,291) - = = -

(85,344) e = (85,344)

At 1st April 2017 382072 1300601 189,330 74553
RZE-tEMA-A

Exchange adjustments 19,147 62,676 4171 2,357 - 88,351 - 1214 89,565
kS

Charge for the year 34,737 176,169 25772 11,576
AEERHRNE

Recognition of impairment losses - 8424 5201 -
BRRERE

Written back on disposals (5,828) (53,333) (4.590) (6,780)
HERRE

At 31st March 2018 430128 1494537 219,884 81,706 - 2226255 18,610 13358 2258218
B LS s =

Net book value:

REFE:

1,946,556 18,084 10554 1,975,194

248254 526 1,585 250365

13,625 > = 13,625

(70,531) e = (70,531)

At 315t March 2018 586493 15332080 126016 64,176 168888 2277653 4088 67134 2348875
RZE-NE=A=t+-H

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7
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BARS R AR MYt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a) (Continued)

11 W% - BERKRE (&)

(a) (80)

Other property, plant and equipment
A% BERZG

Landand
buildings
held for

own use
KBERZ
1HRES
$000 F 70

Cost:
A

At 15t April 2018
RZE-NERA-A
Exchange adjustments
ExA%

Additions

HE

Transfer

-

Disposals

HE

1,016,621
(47,794)
6,355
22460

(626)

At 315t March 2019
REB-NEZAZ1-H

Accumulated amortisation, depreciation and

impairment losses:

Ritl#  FERAERR:

At 1st April 2018
RZE-NEMR-A

Exchange adjustments

EREE

Charge for the year
AEERERTE

Recognition of impairment losses
BARERR

Written back on disposals

HERHD

997,016

430128

(15,841)

33411

At 31st March 2019
RZE-NE=B=1-H

447423

Factory
machinery
and
equipment
TRHER
#
$000 70

2,826,617
(126,284)
295327
190,095
(138,702)

3,047,053

1,494,537
(60,061)
188,103
818
(130,834)

1,492,563

Fixtures,
furniture
and office
equipment
#E GAR
BLAERE
$000 F 70

345,900
(7,955)
60,832
15,938
(20,057)

394,658

219,684
(3,560)
26498
1,197
(19,281)

224738

$000 70

Motor  Construction

vehicles
hE

145,882
(3071)
12,864

1456

(11,245)

145,886

81,706
(1,799)

12,305

(10.354)

in progress
HRIE
$000 T1t

168,888
(11,218)
493498

(229,949)

421,219

$000 T

Sub-total
/J\§-|-

4,503,908
(196,322)

868,876

(170,630)

5,005,832

2,026,255
(81,261)
260,317
2,015
(160,744)

2,246,582

Interests in

leasehold

land held

forownuse

under

operating

|eases

it

Investment ~ AELAE
properties  BAZAEE Total
RENE  1HER &5t
$000Fm  $000Fxm  $000F%

80487 4,607,093
(5088 (201,410)

116,995 985,871

(170,630)

192394 5220924

2258218
(82,136)
264,265
2,015
(160,744)

15966 2281618

Net book value:

REFE:

At 31st March 2019
RZE-AF=A=1-B

549,593

1,554,490

169,920

64,028

421219

2,759,250

176428 2,939,306
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBAEHBAI - LUBEEETE)
11 Y% - BEKRKE @

(a) (Continued) (a) (&)
Government grants of $431,000 (2018: $10,913,000) were FARARFBEBFUEEBRBEERENRENBF
received from the PRC government in relation to the acquisition # Bh431,0007t (=2 — A £ : 10,913,000 7T)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

of plant and equipment and were netted off against the cost of the SHRBREE AR ©
related assets during the year.

(b) The analysis of net book value of properties is

(b) MEZREFEZTHME :

as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
In Hong Kong
B
- medium-term leases 105,131 113,484
- FHEAFEA
Outside Hong Kong
BRI E
- freehold 68,320 75,213
- KA R
- long-term leases 13,297 10,673
- REIFED
- medium-term leases 542,901 458,345
- FHEAFEA
657,715
Representing:
K% :
Land and buildings held for own use 549,593 586,493
BEEEBRZL i RIETF
Investment properties 3,628 4,088
REME
Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating leases 176,428 67,134
BIEKEHEREIEER2HE iR

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7




Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(b) The analysis of net book value of properties is
as follows: (Continued)

In compliance with HKAS 16 which requires an annual review
of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment, a
review of the estimated useful lives of all major factory machinery
and equipment and motor vehicles located in Hong Kong was
undertaken by management from Production Department and
Engineering Department of the Group during the year. The Group
considered the estimated useful lives of these assets would
change from 3 to 10 years to 5 to 10 years, which could more
accurately and appropriately reflect the changes in the Group’s
expected consumption pattern of economic benefits embodied in
these assets.

The changes in accounting estimates are implemented with effect
from 1st April 2018. As a result, the depreciation charge for the
period decreased by $19,723,000.

(c) Property, plant and equipment held under
finance leases

At the end of the reporting period, no factory machinery and

equipment are held under finance leases of the Group (2018:

$2,782,000).

At 31st March 2018, in addition to the leasehold land classified as
being held under finance leases, the Group held factory machinery
and equipment under finance leases expiring from one to seven
years. None of the leases included contingent rentals. The Group’s
obligations under finance leases were secured by the lessor’s
charge over the leased assets.

(d) Property, plant and equipment leased out
under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under an operating

lease. The leases runs for an initial period of three years, with an

option to renew the lease after that date at which time all terms

are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

11 V¥  BERRE (&)
(b) MEZREFEZDWMOT © (@)

(BRETEL) F16RREAMNE - BER
B2 A ERFRETFERY  MAKE
SEBRIEHERECBTEREL  NF
ARMUREB A TE T HERRREUR
B AEAFRETRN - ARERR &
SEEZMAUERAFHSHEIFEI0FEES
S5EZ10%F » WBEAFERREE M RRAEE
REZLEEMES 2KBENRRAREREE N 22
B o

St SR S \FHA —BHIT -
Hit » NEEZITEBA T 19,723,000 7T ©

() UREHEREZYE BER
B3

RERA - AEESEURERSHE 2 TR

BERERME (ZZE—\F : 2,782,0007T) °

R-ZF-NF=ZA=+—8  RIELURERE
BE2HEL N REBEBN—ZLFRE
HrmERE  SEIMKERSE Z5HE
TREFERAES - AEEREMERE2EH
DU AZHEEERCELRR -

(d) RELEHERL2NE - BE

K&k
FEENEERERHRENE - REAEDS
AE=F  YAABREENNEAEN  ER
FAGRYTESBE - ZEHESBEERRA
ik
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment leased out
under operating leases (Continued)

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating lease are receivable as follows:

11 Y% -  BEKRE @

(d) BEKLHEEHRLEZVE - BE

kE&fE @
AEBREFTHRBR S CSHASEABERS &
RIS RBENT

Within one year

—FR

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
$'000 T $'000 F 7t

918 918

(e) The fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties at 31st March 2019 is
$65,900,000 (2018: $63,200,000) which is estimated at their
open market value by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties (2018: same basis of valuation adopted).
The valuationwas carried out by anindependent firm of surveyors,
Roma Appraisals Limited, who have among their staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in
the location and category of the properties being valued.

The fair value measurement is categorised as a Level 3 valuation
under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available; and

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of investment properties is determined by using
direct comparison approach with reference to the market price
of comparable properties and adjusted for building quality and
timing of the reference transaction. The significant unobservable
input in the fair value measurement is the property-specific
adjusting rate, which ranged from 0.95 to 1.05 (2018: 0.94 to
1.05). The fair value measurement is positively correlated to the
property-specific adjusting rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEI - LUBHIE)
11 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 11 M% - BERSZE @

(f) Property, plant and equipment pledged against  (f) RMBITERIERH2ZYE - BER
bank loans B

At the end of the reporting period, no property, plant and RERAD @ AEEHEIKIFTAYE  BERR

equipment of the Group are pledged to secure bank loans or bank B UEREAEEER ZIRITERRIRTEE -

facilities granted to the Group.

(g) Deposits for the acquisition of property, plant (g) BEVXE BERREZIT
and equipment

As at 31st March 2019, the Group paid deposits totalling RZBE—-HhF=ZA=+—0 xEEEBEY

$1,601,000 (2018: $1,586,000) to acquire property, plant and ¥ BENREBBMEZATE51,601,0007T (=

equipment. The remaining amount of the consideration for the ZT—\F :1,586,0007t) - BEREZHT 5

acquisition is included in capital commitments (note 27(a)). FTABEAREIE (MiFE27(a)) ©
12 Intangible assets 12 B EE
Brand name Customer list Total
mE B EFERE #st
$’000 F T $'000 Tt $'000 F T
Cost:
AR
At 1st April 2017 7,291 10,958 18,249
R-EB—+tFWmA—H
Exchange adjustments 553 = 553
RS
At 31st March 2018 7,844 10,958 18,802

e S = = it~ N

Accumulated amortisation:

REt#e -

At 1st April 2017 3,281 10,958 14,239
R-Z—tFWNA—H

Exchange adjustments 262 - 262
[ 5 %

Charge for the year 379 - 379
NEFE

At 31st March 2018 3,922 10,958 14,880
R-ZE-N\F=A=+—H

Net book value:

ARENFE -

At 31st March 2018 3,922 = 3,922

R=—ZE—\F=A=+—H
Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &




Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

12 Intangible assets (Continued) 12 BELEE @)
Brand name Customer list Total
mBEE EFERE st
$°000 T $'000 F 7t $'000 F T
Cost:
B :
At 1st April 2018 10,958 18,802
R=Z—N\FMA—H
Exchange adjustments (251)
& 5 A
At 31st March 2019

REB-AFZA=T-B

Accumulated amortisation:

Rt -

At 1st April 2018
A—E—N\FMNA—H

Exchange adjustments

0 5 A

Charge for the year

NEFEEE

At 31st March 2019

R—Z—NF=A=+—H

Net book value:

BRMEFEE -

At 31st March 2019
R-ZE-NF=A=+—H

The amortisation charges for the year are included in “other AEEZHEBERCTAGEERRZ [ HME
operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or EERAIR-
loss.
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

13 Goodwiill 13 B8
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\FE
$°000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Cost:
AR
At 1st April 37,966 35,293
AUA—H
Exchange adjustments (1,215) 2,673
0 X A%

At 31st March

36,751 37,966
R=A=+—H

Accumulated impairment losses:

KETRERR :

At 1st April
REB—H
Impairment loss
HIEEE

Exchange adjustments
P 5 %

At 31st March
R=A=+—H
Carrying amount:

ARMEE :

18,342

641

18,983

At 31st March
MR=B=+—H

18,983
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

13 Goodwill (Continued)
Impairment tests for cash-generating unit
containing goodwill

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of the entire share capital in
Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“VIS”).

The recoverable amount of the VIS operation is determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period (2018: three-year period). Cash
flows beyond the five-year period (2018: three-year period) are
extrapolated using an annual growth rate of 3% (2018: 3%). The
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the business in which the VIS operation operate.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation:

13 & @)
BEREBZREELEENZRBERS

72 [# U B8 Vitasoy International Singapore Pte.
Ltd. (TVIS]) 2 2 ERRAMELE -

VISHH 2 B U B8R T AR S E R A BT B
EeRHEERRERBHRAEZESN (=
—N\EZEH) HEBEEBRIASKER
Mo BT (CB-N\T STH) UEZRS
REAGEM%(ZF—/\F : 3%) 2 FERER
¥ o BERETRBVISEBCEEY 2 R
FHRRE -

AEEREENRAZEERRAOT :

2019

2018
—2-N\F

- Gross margin

- EFE

- Average annual sales growth rate for the five-year period
(2018: three-year period)

-EEH (SB-N\F  SFH) S TUFHERESR

- Pre-tax discount rate

- BREBLAT TR R

36.1%

6.5%

14.0%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and sales
growth rate based on past performance and its expectation
for market development. The discount rate used is pre-tax and
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant segment.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BARS R AR MYt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of the subsidiaries of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(d)
and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

14 ME QA

TEREAEAEENBAR 2FHE - REBEH
o AEEBBE 2RO B REER

LE B8 A B39 B FIEE 1(d) PR R E 2 I FIMT B
DR WEAKEZHBHRRAGETE

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest
establishment and  Particulars of issued ERERRLE
operation  and paid-up capital  held by the held by a Principal
Name of company SR BRETRAR Company subsidiary activities
ARER RIREE DS BAHE AQEEE KWBLAAEE TEEK
% %
Vitasoy USA Inc. United States of 100 shares - 100 Sale of soya
America 100 R A1 related products
XNEERE HEDRER
Vitasoy North America Inc. Canada 1,000 shares 100 - Sale of soya
mex 1,000 B4 related products
HEDRER
Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and The PRC RMB80,000,000 85 - Manufacture and
Beverage Company Limited (note (i) ] AR sale of beverages
T (£8) RAEFBIARAR () 80,000,000 7t FERHEERR
Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited (note ThePRC ~ RMB216,000,000 - 85  Manufacture and
(ii)) H AREE sale of beverages
ol (R5) BRAE (M (i) 216,000,000 7T EEREENM
Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (note (iii)) ThePRC  RMB200,000,000 - 85  Manufacture and
A (L) AR (MIEE (iii) FE N sale of beverages
200,000,000 7t FEREERR
Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited (note The PRC HK$219,461,176 - 100  Manufacture and
(iv) F ol sale of beverages
Hetbh (%) BRAE (K (v) 219,461,176 7t EEREENR
Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited (note (v)) ThePRC  RMB170,000,000 - 100  Manufacture and
#fin (RF) BRAR (HEWV) FE AR sale of beverages
170,000,000 7t EERHESRR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued) 14 Bﬁ%ﬂﬁ] (&)
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest
establishment and  Particulars of issued ERERRLE
operation  and paid-up capital  held by the held by a Principal
Name of company SR BRETRAR Company subsidiary activities
AR EH B RE RN RAFE ARXREE  WELREE TERER
% %

Vitasoy Australia Products Pty. Ltd. (“VAP") Australia V class shares: - 51  Manufacture and
(TVAP]) BN A$8,925,000 sale of beverages
N class shares: EERHERD

A$8,575,000

VER:

8,925,000,

NEER :

8,575,000 7T
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada Macau MOP100,000 100 - Distribution of
%40 ORF) BRAF A P9 100,000 7T beverages
pax L
Produtos De Soja Hong Kong (Macau) Macau MOP10,000 - 100 Dormant
Limitada BF APFI¥ 10,000 7T gEEx

EB5m (BM) BRAF

Vitaland Services Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares 100 - Operation of
Bt KRR &8 300,000 AR B 13 tuck shops and
concessions
REERPRIR
PREN
Hong Kong Gourmet Limited Hong Kong 2shares - 100 Provision of
ERXRERAT &8 24 catering services
RILEHRE
The Hong Kong Soya Bean Products Company, Hong Kong 2 shares 100 - Property
Limited B 2[R investment
HESmARLA NERE
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued) 14 Bﬁ%ﬂﬁ] (&)
Place of Proportion of
incorporation/ ownership interest
establishment and  Particulars of issued ERERRLE
operation  and paid-up capital  held by the held by a Principal
Name of company SR BRETRAR Company subsidiary activities
AR EH B RE RN RAFE ARXREE  WELREE TERER
% %
Vitasoy (China) Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
A (PE) ERERAF N 1RR %D RERR
Vitasoy Investment Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
BB ERREBRAR &8 1RERG rg®
Vita International Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2shares 100 - Investment holding
EMEREEERAT &8 2Rk RER

Vitasoy International Investment Limited Hong Kong 1share 100 - Investment holding
EMTERRERRAR EiB 1R REER
Vitasoy (China) Investments Company Limited Hong Kong 2shares 100 - Investment holding
A (PE) REBRAF BB 2Rk REER
Vitasoy Holdings (Malta) Limited Malta Ordinary shares: - 100  Sales of beverages
St HK$20,257 HERM

Deferred share:

HK$7

EER A%

20,257 T

EERD - BB

Vitasoy Investment (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore $$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
EIE 10,0003 7T REZR

Vitasoy International Singapore Pte. Ltd. (‘VIS”) Singapore $$79,800,000 - 100  Manufacture and
(Tvis]) ES b 79,800,0003% 7T sale of soya related
products

LERHE

ZEEM

Vitasoy Distributors (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore $$2,500,000 100 - Dormant
3K 2,500,000 7 ek
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Shenzhen Vitasoy (Guang Ming) Foods and Beverage Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Vitasoy”) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established
inthe PRC and is to be operated up to 2049.

Vitasoy (Dongguan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Dongguan”) is a
sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be
operated up to 2067. On 1st January 2019, the Group disposed of 15%
equity interest in Vitasoy Dongguan, decreasing the Group’s equity
interest in Vitasoy Dongguan from 100% to 85% (see note 29).

Vitasoy (Foshan) Company Limited (“Vitasoy Foshan”) is a sino-foreign
equity joint venture established in the PRC and is to be operated up to
2049.

Vitasoy (Shanghai) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned
subsidiary established in the PRC and is to be operated up to 2045.

Vitasoy (Wuhan) Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned subsidiary
established in the PRC and is to be operated up to 2064.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7
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FieE -

(iii)

(iv)

MIEBAR @

RYIAEM (8) BRRECEIARA R (DRI
B1) BRFEIRIZRIIEGEERE DT KEHE
ZEOAFLE -

H# (Rx) BRAT ([REEMIP]) BRF
BRI zHIIEEGERT  KEHE_SRtHF
Lt RZZB-—NF—A—B FEBHERZH#M
13 15% 2 RARE R - AREMMN R HE A1) 2 R AR
7 100% 52D % 85% (R iz 29) °

M (FRl) BRATE ([EILAEMTE]) BRHE
BRI ZzHHEGEGE AR KEHE_ZMAFLE -
#fgh (£)) BRABDA/NPERN 22 INEME
NE KEHME_TORFLE -

#h (RUF) BRABDA/NFBIRL 2 2INEME

NE REPEZBOFL -
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

14 Subsidiaries (continued) 14 MBATRE @

The following table lists out the information relating to Shenzhen TREVCREEBERFERER ([ FIERE
Vitasoy, Vitasoy Foshan, VAP and Vitasoy Dongguan, the =) ZAREBMWE QTR ~ L4
subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-controlling 3 - VAP RREEHMPI 2 ER o T2 2875
interests (“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented BRI EREH T A RBMEEAT 2 £ 58 o
below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.
Shenzhen Vitasoy Vitasoy Foshan VAP Vitasoy Dongguan
FY A Bl REEMD
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

ZE-hE “E-\§ ZE-hE “E-)\§ ZE-hE “E-\§ ZE-hE -0\

$000 7 $000 Tt $000 7 $000 Tt $000 7 $000 Tt $000 ¥ 7 $000 1t
NCl percentage 15% 15% 15% 15% 49% 49% 15% -
FEREREAL
Current assets 187,935 191,333 302,782 186,971 185,624 158917 61,830 -
nBEE
Non-current assets 171,904 181,566 563,819 581433 244,126 247,742 186,996 -
FRBERE
Current liabilities (71,692) (75,369) (144,167) (150,812) (137,294) (120,878) (292) -
nEEE
Non-current liabilities (911) (116,425) (107,137) (11,605) (3,758) -
FREEE
Net assets 287,236 297,530 606,009 510455 280,851 282,023 248,534 -
FEE
Carrying amount of NCI 41,803 44,630 87,478 76,568 137,587 138,191 37,280 -
FERER 2 REE
Revenue 605,419 647,549 1,340,126 1,141,831 524,558 502,706 -
KA
Profit/(loss) for the year 59,087 92,875 191,459 146,691 38,979 41,522 (3,568) -
rEER/ (BB)
Total comprehensive income 59,087 92,875 191,459 146,691 40,066 41782 (3,568) -
2EKREEE
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI 7,580 13,931 25,294 22,004 19,069 20,346 (155) -
AREFERER 2R/ (BiE)
Dividend paid to NCI 7,568 10,285 9,489 7,520 9,666 9,448 -
BFEERERRERE

Cash flows generated from/(used in)
operating activities 81,348 61,033 159,061 100,796 45163 57,395 (27,506) -
TeEBme/ (R ReRg
Cash flows (used in)/generated from
investing activities (27,932) 3076 (98,519) (41,055) (31,412) (61,156) (187,418) -
RETH () /MEReRE
Cash flows (used in)/generated from
financing activities (49,900) (73,974) (63,953) (56,950) (2,270) (2,044) 249,802 -
BETH (FR) /FERekeE

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBEHPAN  LUBEHE)

15 Interest in joint venture 15 REERT 2L

Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is AEEREE QAR 2ER (ERARSENGS
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated BIEERERAALR) FBAT ¢

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

BAERERERLL R
Place of Particular of Group's
Form of incorporation issued and effective

Name of joint business and business  paid-up capital interest  Held by the Held by a Principal

venture structure ARk BERIRAR XE@2 Company subsidiary activity

RENTER EBEBRR B0 RAEFE EREE Z0EKE HWEARER TEXK

% % %

Vitasoy - URC, Incorporated  The Republic of Registered 50 - 50 Sale of
Inc. (“VUR") MY thePhilippines  capital of PHP beverages
(TVUR]) (“the Philippines”) 842,000,000 (note)

FEELANE AR HERM
([3E#SE ) 842,000,000t % {iE)
Note: VUR was established by the Company with a major branded consumer Mzt i VORBADFE-RFRBEIRRBEBAR RS
food and beverage company in the Philippines, the other investor to AR (AREERRAZA—BREE) R - URSE
this joint venture, for sales of the Group’s plant-based beverages in the BREEEAREMENA S REZHRR - VURER
Philippines. VUR is mainly engaged in the sale of beverages. RERRME -

VUR, the only joint venture in which the Group participates, is VUR (AEEM—-SREGENT) A—EF LT
an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted market price is not TRER BXEMEHRE -
available.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

15 Interest in joint venture (Continued)
Summarised financial information of VUR and a reconciliation to
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

15 REE QT ZER @)
VUR > BB SR BER BEa0HRE 2 BEE

ZHRRWBEMT ¢

2019
—E-hE
$'000 F 7t

Gross amounts of VUR’s

VUR Z #%8

Current assets
mENEE
Non-current assets
IEREBEE

Current liabilities
N =R
Non-current liabilities

FRBEE

Equity
&=

Included in the above assets and liabilities:

Bt ALEEREE !

Cash and cash equivalents

ReRRELLEER

Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables)

FRBESREE (NEERMRIKEEMENT)

101,061

79,713

(62,196)

(67,275)

51,303

66,889

(67,275)

Revenue

WA

Loss from continuing operations

SEEERE

Reconciled to the Group’s interest in VUR

BEAKEN VUR ZEEH R

Gross amounts of VUR'’s net assets

VUR ZFEERE

Group effective interest

AEEERER

Group’s share of VUR’s net assets
AEBMEVURFEE

Group’s share of shareholders’ loan (note)

AEEFERRER (M)

51,303

50%

25,652

33,638

Carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements

R MR 2 REE

59,290

2018
—B-N\F
$:000 Tt

122,185

15,396

(46,999)

90,582

111,980

35,840

(35,628)

90,582

50%

45,291

45,291
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

15 Interest in joint venture (continued) 15 REERTIZER @)

Note: MiEE :

The loan to joint venture is unsecured, interest bearing at 4.75% per annum GEEQNRABHEZERAEER  BEF475%5E 0 &
and is repayable on 30th March 2021, 30th March 2022 and 30th March BR-ZE-_—F=A=+HA - ZB--F=A=tHEKZ=
2023. Further details on the loan to joint venture are set out in note 28(a)(iv). BE=ZF=-ZRA=tHEEZE HMAEQ AEHZERZE—

SEEERNMEE 28(a)(iv) ©

16 Inventories 16 7E&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a) FEFBRARFPZEESSE -
financial position comprise:

2019 2018
= —
$'000 F 7t $000 F it

Raw materials 376,283 359,674
A
Finished goods 372,001 349,638
B M
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) ERERANRRABIZTFES
recognised as an expense and included in profit BEoHWE :
or loss is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
$'000 F 7t $'000 ¥ 7T

Carrying amounts of inventories sold 3,465,937 3,040,805
2EFEZREHE

Write down of inventories 31,038 7,850
WRFE

3,496,975 3,048,655
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

17 Trade and other receivables

17 FEWBRRR I E fth FE UK

Trade debtors and bills receivable, net of loss allowance
MR R B RTE - HIBREIBRE

Other debtors, deposits and prepayments
HiEWR - RERFENHKIE

2019 2018

S B \f
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7T
716,425 726,443
267,583 228,501
984,008 954,944

The amount of the Group’s other debtors, deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or charged as expense
after more than one year is $40,589,000 (2018: $37,002,000).
All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivable (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

AEEEHRBB - FRKERNBRAMI2HE
WK « ke RFEFIEA 40,589,000 7T (=
Z— )\ : 37,002,0007T) ° FiEH AR
REMBRRFERR - FAKESERBMAS

(a) RRERA AT
REHRE - BUIRRREREE (ERERER
BRI H AR BB R B H RIS AR
2 RRAATIT :

Within three months
=@EAR

Three to six months
=ZXEA

Over six months

ANEA B E

2019 2018

S -2 \F
$'000 Tt $'000 F 7t
708,851 704,686
7,416 8,239

158 13,518
716,425 726,443

Trade debtors and bills receivable are generally due within one
to three months from the date of billing. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in note 26(a).

FERRR R ERRE —RREERAMET—2=
&8 A A EIER o 26 B3 MR b F AL ERIF R AR
Ao BERFEEEEEERBEBUIRRRER
REMEEZEERKB 2 E—SHBERRMHET
26(a) °
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BRBBEHRBPIN » LUBETHE)

18 Cash and bank deposits

(a) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

18 RERBITER
(a) RERMVITEREIE

Cash at bank and in hand
BITHEEREFRE
Bank deposits maturing within three months when placed

FRHR=EA R ZRTEFR

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement
FEReRERAZESRRSEEER
Bank deposits maturing after three months

FRIBA= A ZRTER

Cash and bank deposits in the consolidated statement of financial
position

EEUBRRARAZRERRITER

2019 2018
—2-nE e
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7T

529,918 338,602
474,620 646,583
1,004,538 985,185
494 509
1,005,032 985,694

At 31st March 2019, certain Renminbi (2018: Renminbi and
United States dollars) bank balances totalling $51,331,000
(2018: $307,125,000) were designated as a hedge against the
foreign currency risk on future purchase of raw materials. The
loss on re-translation of these bank balances at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period was included in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (continued) 18 RERBITER @
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BRBIANEFEKLEEKFEERE
generated from operations: ZHER ¢
2019 2018
—E-hF —Z2-N\F
Note Pff&F $'000 T T $000 ¥t

Profit before taxation 955,838 802,734
RRE AR R
Adjustments for:
T
- Share of losses of joint venture 19,236 17,814
- BIEEE AR
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 5(c) 260,317 248,254
-% BRERREZFE
- Depreciation of investment properties 5(c) 460 526
-REEZNE
- Amortisation of interests in leasehold land held for

own use under operating leases 5(c) 3,488 1,585
- RERLHEREEERZHE D s 2 #H
- Amortisation of intangible assets 5(c) 379 379
- B EE 2 HE
- Recognition of impairment losses on property, plant

and equipment 5(c) 2,015 13,625
- ERYE BERREZRHEER
- Recognition of impairment losses on goodwill 5(c) 18,342
- BREEZRERE
- Interest on bank loans 5(a) 1,579
- RITERZ AR
- Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 5(a) 21 121
- REHEEH 2K ER
- Interest income from bank deposits 4 (13,581) (9,859)
- RITIFRZ R E WA
- Interest income from loan to joint venture 4 (471) -

-AEEAREHERZAERA
- Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 5(c) 3,341 (7,117)

- HEYE  BERREZESE (&) F4E
- Net (gain)/loss on forward exchange contracts not
designated as hedging instruments 5(c) (101) 920

- FEEAHMIAECEBIESN 2F (W) B8
- Equity settled share-based payment expenses 5(b) 13,521 8,273
- R ARRERZER
- Foreign exchange loss 256 81
-EHEE

Changes in working capital:
EEESEE

- Increase in inventories (83,414) (74,432)
-TFEEmM
- Increase in trade and other receivables (57,722) (22,308)
- FEURBR R R EL fth FEUCFRIE 1
- Increase in trade and other payables 358,832 272,319
- BESBR RN R H Ath FE (S FRIE hn
- Increase in employee retirement benefit liabilities 416 1,304
- EERRBEREEIGM

Cash generated from operations 1,464,896 1,274,140
REEBRBRE
Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &




Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from
financing activities.

18 BERIIRITER @)
(c) METBELEZEEYHER

TRASNAEERETHEEZEBEY  EF
BRERERFIRECED METHIEEZEE
EHEREREBNIARRREREZNAEE
FRERERERADEAMETHZRERE

Bank loans
IRITER

$°000 ¥t
(Note 20)
(Ff#=E 20)

At 1st April 2018
R-ZE-NFWA—H

Changes from financing cash flows:
MERESRELE .

Proceeds from new bank loans

FIBIRITE RS FIE

Capital element of finance lease rentals paid
ERERER S 2EREH

Interest paid

2RFE

Interest element of finance lease rentals paid
e MERERES 2R 257

Total changes from financing cash flows

MERSREL LR

Exchange adjustments
LA

Other changes:

Hith# 5 :

Finance costs (note 5(a))
REE A (FffEE 5(a))

At 31st March 2019
R=ZB-NAF=A=+—H

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

18 Cash and bank deposits (continued) 18 BERBITHER @)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) METBEEX2EEYHER @
financing activities (Continued)
Obligation
under finance
Bank loans leases Total
RITER RMEHRE 2 &5 st
$000 Tt $'000 7t $'000 F 7t
(Note 20) (Note 21)
(Ff=E 20) (Mf=E21)
At 1st April 2017 207,329 2,130 209,459
R=Z—tFWA—H
Changes from financing cash flows:
RIERESRELE :
Proceeds from new bank loans 27,229 - 27,229
FTIBIRITE RS FIE
Repayment of bank loans (207,461) - (207,461)
EERITER
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid - (1,244) (1,244)
S RERERS 2 EREH
Interest paid (1,579) - (1,579)
ENFE
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid - (121) (121)
ERERERES 2T 27
Total changes from financing cash flows (181,811) (1,365) (183,176)
RERERESEERE
Exchange adjustments 12 s 23
EHRE
Other changes:
HAth#&# 5 :
Finance costs (note 5(a)) 1,579 121 1,700
RE A (FffEE5(a))
At 31st March 2018 27,085 921 28,006

R=-ZB-NEF=A=+—8
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

19 Trade and other payables 19 BHERARREMENK
2019 2018
—EB-NhEF —E-NF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Trade creditors and bills payable 660,898 574,402
FEATER IR R B R I5
Accrued expenses and other payables 1,063,278 925,747
FEStE AR Hib RN
Receipts in advance from customers 489,225 363,442
FAWZE FRIE
Derivative financial instruments 181
PTESRI A

2,213,401 1,863,772

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled AEERHAEENERERREMESRER

within one year, except for customer deposits amounting to —FREE H#22171000T (ZF— N\F:
$22,171,000 (2018: $17,135,000) which are expected to be 17,135,0007t) 2B F RS AIFBHNER —F#%
settled after more than one year. Bz o

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RERB  BIRIRENERZZEZEARZK

creditors and bills payable, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BROWOT -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
$'000 F T $'000 F 7T
Within three months 659,796 570,706
=EAR
Three to six months 687 3,196
=ZXEA
Over six months 415 500
ANMEAUE

660,898 574,402

The Group's general payment terms are one to two months from REBZ-—MAFRPRABREHHETS—ZEM
the invoice date. @A -

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R SEBI - BN )
19 Trade and other payables (continued)

Movements in receipts in advance from customers

19 BENEREFREMEN &

BAREFE

RIHZ B

2019
—E-hE
$'000 F T

Balance at 1st April
RIUA— B 248k
Exchange adjustments

BE L AR

Decrease in receipts in advance from customers as a result of recognising revenue during the
year that was included in the receipts in advance from customers at the beginning of the

period

HENERWA (ST ABANZBAREFHER) EHRBEFRERD

Increase in receipts in advance from customers as a result of receiving forward sales deposits

during the year
FAWEEREEZRSEHFAKRE S RIEE M

Decrease in receipts in advance from customers as a result of recognising revenue during the

year that was included in the forward sales deposits received during the year

HFNERUA (BT AFRABRERZEREERER) BHEFEREFK

HRED

363,442

(23,370)

(338,310)

4,535,518

(4,048,055)

Balance at 31st March
R=B=+—HBz#&H

489,225

20 Bank loans

At 31st March 2019, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

20 RITER
R-B-NE=A=+-0 RTERART

HABRMEEE -

Within one year or on demand

—FAFEER

As of the end of the reporting period, no bank loans were secured
by charges over property, plant and equipment (note 11(f)).

RE R H
REFER (M 11() ©

2019 2018

e —E-N\E
$°000 F 7t $'000 7t
44,508 27,085

P BERRITERE - BERREE
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

20 Bank loans (continued)

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain financial ratios, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants, the drawn
down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 26(b). As at 31st March 2019 and 2018, none of the covenants
relating to the drawn down facilities had been breached.

21 Obligations under finance leases
At 31st March 2019, the Group had obligations under finance
leases repayable as follows:

20 SRITEFR @)

REEE TRITEEEMSRE TR RER
T W SR T SRR RS
BE o WEAEEEREEZE  UARERE
BOEMCEEE AEEEHERHETRE
REMER  ERAEEETEADHESARE
— S HERHAME260b) c RCE—HER-E
—\EZA=+-0 FEEEEERIAEH
RIS 2 55

21 MERAEZE®
R-B-NE=ZA=+—B  AEEREREE
SEMR AT

2019 2018
=F-NF =F-N\F
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHEE RIEHEE HEHE HEHEE
NRZRE NESE-EE 2R E NG SEE
$'000 ¥t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Within one year 921 943
—FR
Less: Total future interest expenses (22)
W RRFEE AR
Present value of lease obligations 921

HEEB2RE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7
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B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates and participates in a number of defined

contribution and defined benefit retirement plans in and outside
Hong Kong.

(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Defined contribution retirement plans

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement plan,
Vitasoy International Holdings Limited Staff Provident
Fund, which is available for all eligible staff employed by the
Group in Hong Kong and Macau before 1st August 2000.
The plan is funded by contributions from employees and the
Group, both of which contribute sums representing 5% -
7.5% of basic salaries. Forfeited contributions are credited
to members’ accounts in accordance with the rules of the
plan. The plan is administered by trustees with the assets
held separately from those of the Group. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions after
ten completed membership years, or at an increasing scale
of between 50% to 90% after completion of five to nine
membership years.

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining
the defined contribution retirement plan are required to
join the Group’s Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contributionretirementplanadministeredbyanindependent
corporate trustee. Under the MPF scheme, the Group and
the employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions
to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the
central pension scheme operated by the PRC government.
The Group is required to contribute a certain percentage
of employees’ remuneration to the central pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with
respect to the central pension scheme is the associated
required contribution under the central pension scheme.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

For employees in Australia, contributions are made by the
Groupto aregistered superannuationfund for its employees,
at 9% of the employees’ salaries. The assets of the scheme
are held separately by an independent administered fund.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

22 EEERKER
AEBEEBREBUIIMIERIRZMZER

(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

EHRRRAERNRAGTE -

REMFRAKEE
AEERRER-ZZEZRFNR—B2ZA
EERERRMZRBASESERE TR
N —RREHRFORAETE (EMNEREE
BRABDBWERES) - ZtEZEEXRA
BERAEEZHHN EHHASEBE
FZ5%E7.5%  RHRHOREBEFTE 2R
BIBMAGT BN B 2IRF - T EIXRHER
AEE FIBREETHEAREZEEDF
R - E2HEFERTFE BETESR
EMEEHR MBEFIERENFA
ZAZETHARBDLAIBES0%ELEE
90% °

ZRNAEE M I ES IR EH/FCRIANG
BB RET  LAREBEE (BFMLIE
EETEURA)) SMAKEZBHEIEEE
g (MaftAB\Estall) et LEE
HEIR-RRAEMRICRANGE - BB
EETETAEE - REBHEIRESTE
FEEREESBRAZESHBANA (B
WA zSA LR 30,0007T) 2 5% M@=t
R o PEH M AR E T A 2 HKED

HEIE -

TEMNBEARZEEIRTERARYLZ
PREAKSTEZRE - AEBEEARES
e z2E TEDLE P RBRE TSI
R BEANEHRES - FAREFHREN
ST BT RBIT 2 E—EER D REA
TR EELATE 2 BB HEK - mEF XA
ZHRENRFERE o

BNEESE  A5EAREEFEZ
%B—EHRBHEEMR Z2EMBRARES
HA-FEHEEHBYEECESORE
B o BT EIX N2 HRAEERE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(b) Defined benefit retirement plans

At 31st March 2019, the Group recognised employee retirement
benefit liabilities in respect of the following employee retirement
benefits:

22 EEERKER @)

(b) RER/AENKSTE
R-ZB—hE=A=+—B  AEEHTHES
BB ESRINEFIERE -

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERKEFERE
- retirement gratuities (note 22(c)(i))
RIRE (F=E22(c)(i)
- long service payments (note 22(d))

RERBE (M5 22(d))

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
$'000 F T $'000 F 7t

12,605
3,461
22,624 16,066

(c) Retirement gratuities

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong and Macau, who have
completed a prescribed minimum period of service and joined the
Group before a specific date, are entitled to retirement gratuities
upon retirement age. The gratuity is based on the employee’s last
month’s salary and the number of years of service.

A funded defined benefit retirement plan, Vitasoy International
Holdings Limited Defined Benefit Scheme (“the Plan”), was
established for the retirement gratuities. The Plan is administered
by an independent corporate trustee, with assets held separately
from those of the Group. The Plan is funded by contributions
from the Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was at 31st March
2019 and was prepared by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method. The valuation indicates that the Group’s obligation under
this defined benefit retirement plan is 77% (2018: 84%) covered
by the plan assets held by the trustee.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

(c) B#AhE

AEBEEER B2 EEERBEFEER K&
EEZREHRRNRIEEBH ZATMARER
HEREERRRFRIFEINENRS - ERTE
EREMEAHFRREFEEME °

AEERRAKE M —REBRERARAETE-
HEDEREEARARRERMNE ([ZE
21) - ZErBHB L EEEEAER  HEEH
FEEZEEDREAR - ZetEBAKERRE
MREENZEREHER o

Z BB BEGEIR-ZE-—NF=A
=+t -HHERER 2B UEEXSERBEMER
RASEMFEERET ABRAERREAEER
BRRERNERAGEIMABTZEEEFTT77%
(ZF—N\5F : 84%) ZETAFHZBEER
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)
(i)  The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position are as follows:

22 RERKER ()

(c) B#kE (&)
() REAHBRRRERZSENT

2019 2018
=F-hF —E-N\F
$'000 F it $'000 Tt

Present value of wholly funded obligations
TEHEPEEZRE
Fair value of plan assets

SEEEZDRE

80,091 77,647

(61,409) (65,042)

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EERINEFEE

18,682 12,605

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate
this amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months,
as the retirement benefit entitled by scheme members and future
contributions to the plan will also depend on staff turnover and
future changes in actuarial assumptions. The Group expects to
pay $2,810,000 in contributions to defined benefit retirement
plan during the year ending 31st March 2020 (2018: $2,980,000).

FEH LB EIMEHNEBR —FRIEE - A
RN EINEEREZE 2 EREF R AR Z5TE
HRTERFEIRBERFERRARZEE
ME > HWAGHREERRTZEARFERFZ
SETHELRAT AEEEHRBE-Z=
ZE=ZA=+—HLEFEEORERFBRMNKEE
F A4 F£2,810,000 7T (=ZZF— /\F : 2,980,000
TT) °
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)
(i)  Plan assets consist of the following:

22 RERKER ()

(© BikE ()
(i) SEEESETHIEE

Plan assets with quoted price in active market
REBmEREZFEEE
Equities

RE

- Financial

- B

- Consumer discretionary
- EMFHEM

- Industrials

- I%

- Consumer staples

- REHER

- Other

- Hith

2019 2018
= —E-N\F
$°000 F 7t $000 F 7t

14,148

5,261

5,232

3,366

18,338

46,345

Bonds

&%

- Corporate bonds

- AR

- Government-related bonds

- BUSHEEAE S

- Treasury bonds
- BEfE

4,781

6,544

3,772

15,097

Money instruments
EWITH

3,600

Total quoted plan assets

CHREIEERE

65,042
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22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)
(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined benefit
obligations are as follows:

22 BERKER (&)

(c) B#HE (&)
(i) RERNETZRESDHMT :

2019 2018
=F-NF —2-N\F
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
At 1st April 79,494
REAB—H
Remeasurement:
EHETE
- Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions 4,194
- BARSTHRER RS EEEE
- Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from changes in financial assumptions (1,025)
- BB ER B R EEEE (&)
Benefits paid by the Plan (9,608)
ZET B2 A EF
Current service cost 3,351
BERBEHRA
Interest cost 1,241
B A
At 31st March 77,647
R=A=+—H

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is
8 years (2018: 8 years).

(iv) Movements in fair value of plan assets are as follows:

AEEAEEZNEFHIHRESE (BN
)

(iv) FFEIEEZLQAREZBWT :

2019 2018
—EB-NhEF —E-NF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
At 1st April 62,986
REA—H
Contributions paid to the Plan 2,914
A %aT SR 2 iR
Benefits paid by the Plan (9,608)
ZET B2 S EF
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets (119)
B S EEX N 2THER
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 7,892
FFEIEEO®R - TEEFNSRA
Interest income 977
FIEUWA
At 31st March 61,409 65,042
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 22 EERKER (&)

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued) (c) BiKE (&)
(v) Net expenses/(income) recognised in the consolidated (v) REcEizREtE2EBEREI 2B
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (W) FEET -

are as follows:

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Current service cost 3,351
BERBEHRA
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets 119
R 8 EER N ZTHER
Net interest on net defined benefit liability 264
AEBNEEFHEIFFE
Total amounts recognised in profit or loss 3,734
PERTER 2 B
Actuarial losses 3,169
BEEE
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (7,892)

FFEIEERR - TEERMSRA

Total amounts recognised in other comprehensive income (4,723)
REMEE R R 225
Total defined benefit expense/(income) 9,057 (989)

The current service cost and the net interest on net defined AEEMNEEFE2BEERERAREFMNEER
benefit liability are recognised in the following line items in the FEBERPETIESERR
consolidated statement of profit or loss:

2019 2018
—E-nE —=—N\E
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Cost of sales 689
Marketing, selling and distribution expenses 1,009
HE  HERIHER
Administrative expenses 1,555
THER
Other operating expenses 481
Hite& & A
3,734
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(BSEHIIN - LUBHER )
22

(c) Retirement gratuities (Continued)
(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis are
as follows:

Employee retirement benefits (continued)

22 RERKER ()

(c) B#kE (&)
(vi) BEABEBRRESBMEITHOT

2018
—B-N\F

Discount rate
e
Future salary increases

R & 1B 0E

1.40%

1.90%

4.0% per annum
BF4.0%

4.0% per annum
FF4.0%

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligations
would have increased/(decreased) as a result of 0.5% change in
the significant actuarial assumptions:

UT iR RERNEEEREABERRKR0.5%
M LA (TR :

2019 2018
—B-NEF —E-N\F
Increase in Decrease in Increase in Decrease in
EH T EFH Tk
0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
$'000 ¥t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Discount rate (3,147) (3,048) 3,240
HRE
Future salary increases 3,358 3,269 (3,104)
RRFFE LR

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that
changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore
it does not take into account the correlations between the
actuarial assumptions.

(d) Longservice payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employmentin
certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payableis
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

RSB T U BRREERR 2E 228
EEERRAEE  ARIEFABERRZHE
ZEERBRE -

(d) REIRBE

RETE (BREED)  AEEEEETHERTH
HERRESAEERBEELAF 2EERFERK
EXN—FBFE - AN 2SR A TRER
BIEFHFERBRBFEME - LHHMAEBRK
SHEATRERASREMERA 2B ES - A%
B AREEEMEEARETEARGEERE
FEzES -
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

22 Employee retirement benefits (continued)

(d) Longservice payments (Continued)

An actuarial valuation of long service payments was also carried
out at 31st March 2019, by independent professionally qualified
actuaries at Willis Towers Watson, using the projected unit credit
method.

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:

22 RERKER ()

(d) REBE®EE (&)
REBBETIN-B-NFZA=+-AHER
BB SRS EREEMRA AR ENEE
SEEATREHE -

RGEMBRRRER ZEEMNT ¢

Present value of unfunded obligations

BEPEEZRE

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after
more than one year. However, it is not practical to segregate this
amount from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as
the retirement benefit payable will also depend on staff turnover
and future changes in actuarial assumptions.

23 Equity settled share-based transactions
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 4th September
2002 (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Directors
of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including Directors of any company in
the Group, to take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company. At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28th August 2012, ordinary resolutions were passed for the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.
Subject to their respective exercisable periods, all outstanding
options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme will still
be valid and exercisable after the expiration of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the Directors
of the Company and is the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
and (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

2019 2018
= —E-N\HF
$°000 F 7t $000 F 7t

3,942 3,461

R LS EBOERNERE - FREE - AW -
HRENRAEANTERTFETIRBRREER
RABRZEBME  HEURBEERKTZEAR
RFTES A 2 R B T RJAT o

23 LIBRBARRERZRS
ARBR-ZEE-FNANAFRHN—EERER

E([ZEE-FERES]) - Bl 27
ZEEERENBEABAEEZESE (BELE
BETEMALARZES) EMBREUZEARD
AEBR RIE—-HFNAZT+NHETZAK
AERFEFERS L BB T EERMNTERE
SE([ZE——FBEREE]) RERILE=ZEZ
“HEBERETECEBRBRAER - REBEEZRITE
BifR > FTERB-_SZ-_FEREFERE 2K
TEBRER-_SS_FERETEHRERE
B ARBE R A F1TME ©

BREZTEERALNAESETE  BUTZR
BE (RONRREEM (EALEAREHER)
HEEBBAXZMAERLR ([BXF]) 852
WHE  R>)RONRBER L AR AEEXA
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEHIIN - LB E)
23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 URGANRERZRZ @

(Continued)
The options are exercisable for a period not to exceed 10 years BREZTFEHTESHEERE AT 2 +F -
from the date of grant. Each option gives the holder the right to BEBRECEEASEERB-RAARAR
subscribe for one share in the Company. 0 o

(@) The terms and conditions of the unexpired and unexercised (a) RERBZKRERRKTEERE 2GR

share options at the end of the reporting period are as RIGHOT > FEBRESGSURGZEY
follows, whereby all options are settled by physical delivery RREEE -
of shares:
2019 2018
“B-0E —E-N\F
Contractual
life of Remaining Remaining
options Exercise contractual Number contractual Number
Dateofgrant  Exercise period EREz price life of options life of options
RE B T BNEH THE HBENFY BREZEE HHENTH BREZZE
$ '000 & $'000 T
8/9/2011 8/9/2012 to £7/9/2021 10 years & 6.358 2 years 3yearsF 1,740
22/6/2012 22/6/2013to £ 21/6/2022 10 years 6274 3yearsE 4years F 220
31/8/2012 31/8/2013 to Z 30/8/2022 10 years 6.400 3yearsE 4yearsF 2,822
28/6/2013 28/6/2014 to & 27/6/2023 10years F 9.370 4 years & 5years & 238
9/9/2013 9/9/2014 to Z 8/9/2023 10 years & 9.370 4 years 5years & 1,704
2/7/2014 2/7/2015to & 1/7/2024 10years F 10.080 5 years & 6yearstF 706
10/9/2014 10/9/2015 to £ 9/9/2024 10 years 10.080 5years 6yearsF 1,792
26/6/2015 26/6/2016 to & 25/6/2025 10years F 13.600 6 years & 7 years & 2,250
14/9/2015 14/9/2016 to 2 13/9/2025 10years F 13.600 6 years & 7 years & 1,588
24/6/2016 24/6/2017 to & 23/6/2026 10 years & 14.792 7 years 8yearsF 2422
6/9/2016 6/9/2017 to & 5/9/2026 10years F 14.792 7 years & 8yearsF 1,420
2/3/2017 2/3/2019to 2 1/3/2027 10 years 15.440 8 years 9yearsF 326
26/6/2017 26/6/2018 to & 25/6/2027 10years F 16.296 8 years & 9years 3,032
19/6/2018 19/6/2019 to Z 18/6/2028 10years 25.100 9 years & - =

28/1/2019 28/1/2020to & 27/1/2029 10years F 30.350 10 years & = =
20,260
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEHIIN - LB E)
23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 URGANRERZRZ @

(Continued)

(@) (Continued) (@) &

Except for the options granted on 2nd March 2017 which were BR-ZZ—tF=A_HREZERECERE
fully vested after two years from the date of grant and the options HE G MEAEEHEBURR-_E—NE—
granted on 28th January 2019 which will be 50% vested after B+ N\HEREZERESERE AHEFEE
the first anniversary from the date of grant and 50% vested after BFEZESRFENEREBHETE-BFEE
the second anniversary from the date of grant, all the options are ES50%EmEIN 0 IR FITEZBRERE DE
exercisable progressively and the maximum percentage of the SN MERBRATEEREZ2E 2 ERM

options which may be exercised is determined in stages as follows: ™

Percentage of

options granted

LEREREZADL

On or after 1st year anniversary of the date of grant 25%
R HEE —BFRHEE

On or after 2nd year anniversary of the date of grant another 5 25%
R BHEAWEFHIHRE

On or after 3rd year anniversary of the date of grant another 5 25%
BH AR =BFERHEE

On or after 4th year anniversary of the date of grant another 5 25%

R B R B F AR

During the year, 220,000 options (2018: 814,000 options) were FR - 220,000 ERE (ZF— N\F : 814,000
exercised under the 2002 Share Option Scheme, and 2,490,000 MIBRRE) RIE_EZE _FEREECETE
options (2018: 6,366,000 options) were exercised under the 2012 % 2,490,000 7 BB #E (—ZZF — \F : 6,366,000
Share Option Scheme. DR RIE T _—FHERENSICETE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHBI - B E)
23 Equity settled share-based transactions 23 URGANRERZRZ @
(Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) BREZHERMETITHEENT
options are as follows:

2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-NF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
IEFHITEE BREZIHEE METHITEE  BREZHE
$ T '000 F &R $ T '000 T A%
Outstanding at 1st April 10.642 27,034
RO A —BiEARITHE
Exercised during the year 9.694 (7,180)
RERITE
Granted during the year 16.296 3,182
RERKRH
Forfeited on termination of employment of
eligible participants or lapsed during the year 11.745 (2,776)
Ae&ERSEERBMRERZIER KN
Outstanding at 31st March 11.715 20,260
R=B=+—HERTHE
Exercisable at 31st March 10,723

R=B=+—HATf&

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share ETFEZERERFERZITER R 2 MET IR
options exercised during the year was $26.897 (2018: $17.471). BAH 26897 L (ZF—N\F 1 174717x)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREZAARBRRR

The fair value of services received in return for share options AEBUREBERERES2REZAAB
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share options SEZERUBREZANREFE - EREHBRE
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted 2T AAEAN—EAEEXE - BREZ
is measured based on a binomial lattice model. The contractual life ENFHAEZE N2 —ERASY - BERERER
of the share optionis used as aninput into this model. Expectations TEzEHE T AZERMEE 2R -

of early exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice model.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(R SEBI - BN )
23 Equity settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(c) Fairvalue of share options and assumptions
(Continued)
Fair values of share options and assumptions:

23 LR ANRER TS @)

(c) BREZAABERERR @

BREZAREBERRR :

Date of grant
REAH

8/9/2011  22/6/2012 31/8/2012 28/6/2013 9/9/2013  2/7/2014  10/9/2014 26/6/2015 14/9/2015 24/6/2016 6/9/2016 ~ 2/3/2017  26/6/2017 19/6/2018 28/1/2019

Fairvalueat
measurementdate  $0.6057C  $09537 L0437  $18277m  $22447  $§21507%  $20827  $3038%

RrBEHZAR

Share price 954907 $61707  $66207  $9370%  $99507 $100807  $9.9207 $136007
KE

Exercise price 9635870 $62747 64007  $93707%  $9.3707 $10.080% $100807 $136007
%8

Expected volatlity 25% 2% 2% 2% 2% 26% 26% 26%
Rkl

Expectedoptionlife ~ 10years®  10yearsE  10yearsE  10years®  10yearsE  10yearsE  10years®  10yearsE
BREREC BN

Expected dividends 5.5% 50% 50% 40% 40% 35% 3.5% 30%
EHRE

Risk-free interest rate 1750%  0810%  0620%  1720%  2.400% 1870% 1.940% 1750%
EmpAz

922487 $27957  $36397  $3448T 93328T §59U4T  $7.3397T

$118407%  $137007 $15.2207% $154407 $160807 $25.1007 $30.3507

$136007  $147927 $147927 $154407 $162967 $25.1007 $30.3507

26% 26% 26% 24% 24% 23% 25%

10yearsE  10vears® 10years® 10yearsF  10yearsf  10years®  10yearsF

30% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 25% 20% 20%

1730% 1050%  0.950% 1830%  1240%  2230% 1850%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, adjusted
for any expected changes to future volatility based on publicly
available information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There was no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

24 Income tax in the consolidated
statement of financial position

(a) Current tax recoverable/(payable) in the
consolidated statement of financial position

represents:

24 HREVBRRRKRZFTER

(a) AHREHBMRK B (FEH)
BHEAEW T

2019 2018
—E-hF —Z2-N\F
$'000 F T $'000 F 7T

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year

REEFBNEHERE

(37,448) (40,282)

Provisional Profits Tax paid 35,828 43,218
BT 2 FRHRIEH
2,936
Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to prior years -
ERIBIEF EARRE < RIS BB B4R
Taxation outside Hong Kong (23,992)
BB LM EIE
(2106
Summary BHE
2019 2018
—E-NhEF —E-NF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Current tax recoverable 37,727 10,209
JE W IR BA B 18
Current tax payable (29,135) (31,265)
FEAF IR BB 18
(21,056)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

24 Income tax in the consolidated 24 HEBMBERRRZAEH @
statement of financial position (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: (b) CEIELEHRELEE (8E) :

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RESUBERRRBRZELHBEE (BF)
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the ZHERBORFRZEEMT :
movements during the year are as follows:

Depreciation Fair value

allowances adjustment on

in excess tangible and

of the related Future intangible

depreciation benefit of Employee Withholding assets

BHEH tax losses retirement taxon  BEREW Cash flow

WEZHE  HBEEZ benefits ~ Provisions dividends EBEZARE hedges Total
&HE FRFE  EERMERN BfE  REEMB #E BEREHW @t

$000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000FTm $000Fm  $000Frm  $000Frm  $000Fwm

Deferred tax arising from:

RELTEEZELHE :
At 1st April 2017 (61,299) 8,781 3483 55,073 (9,732) (765) 218 (4,241)
R=B-tEMmA-A
Exchange adjustments (59) 737 - 4880 - (46) - 5512
i
(Charged)/credited to

profit or loss (6,214) 21,150 194 20,618 (5,663) 414 = 30,499
B (NRR) /FtA
Charged toreserves - - (1,208) - - - (1,123) (2,331)
R
At 31st March 2018 (67,572) 30,668 2,469 80,571 (15,395) (397) (905) 29439

RZE-NE=f=1+-H

Deferred tax arising from:
KREUTEEZETHE
At 1st April 2018 (67,572) (15,395)
R-E-\EMA-H
Exchange adjustments 830
E5iAE

(Charged)/credited to
profit or loss (51,660) (45,499)

REE (1B) /A
Credited to reserves 1,809
BT
At 31st March 2019 (118,402) 29,307 87,287 (19,452) (17,812)
R=B-N$=A=1+-H
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

24 Income tax in the consolidated
statement of financial position (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised:
(Continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial

position

24 HEMBERRRZAEH @

(b) ERAREEHEEE (BFE):
(%)

e R R R AR

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
$'000 F T $'000 F 7t

Net deferred tax assets

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
RESMBEMRRRIER ZELERIBE E T
Net deferred tax liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
R E IR RER 2 B IBAEFRE

103,362
(98,981) (73,923)
(17,812) 29,439

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses and other temporary differences of $89,597,000 (2018:
$94,747,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses and other temporary differences can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions and
entities.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of $78,895,000
(2018: $84,031,000) which can be carried forward up to twenty
years from the year in which the loss originated. The remaining
balance of $10,702,000 (2018: $10,716,000) does not expire
under current tax legislation.

() RERZELEHEEE

REBMFLU)AB2ETEE > AEELEER
FRARKEEREMERER 9,597,000t (=
ZF—)\F 194,747,000 t) 2 EEFEEE » |7
HEREBERERZEBEREBRAAEES

FigER -

KRERBKEEBHE 788950007 (ZF— N
% :84,031,0007t) ¥ BEEEEZFERLE
HBEZ -1+ F - H££10,702000T (ZF—N
fF 1 10,716,0007T) AT ERIBBITREER ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends 25 EXR - #FERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) RERMEKIBHOZEEH

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBGREEFZZARSOZFNEFREHZ
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out HIERRGEEREER - AATERERIHER
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of HORFNRFERZEEFBHINT ¢

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company ¥
Share-based
compensation
Share Capital General reserve Hedging Retained Total
capital reserve reserve ROER reserve profits equity

B EXfifE —RiktE HiEkE HftE REER ERaE
Note iz $000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Fw  $000Fm  $000FT

Balance at 1st April 2017 774,246 42872 2,261 37,085 (1,105) 1,302,780 2158139
R-F-tFMA-BEH

Changes in equity for the year:
REEVRES

Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits 25(d)(i) - (4,087) - - - 4087 -
BEARGBEREREEN
Shares issued on exercise of share options 83,089 - - (13,485) - - 69,604
ATEEREMRTRE
Equity settled share-based transactions - - - 8273 - - 8273

NRDBNRER 2R S
Final dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 25(b)(ii) - - - - - (285,831) (285,831)
HEBRE-FE2RERE
Special dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 25(b)(ii) - - - - - (44,299) (44,299)
HEBRE-FE2RRIRE

Interim dividend declared in respect

of the current year 25(b)(i) - - - - - (40,161) (40,161)
ERAEE 2 HRE
Total comprehensive income for the year 9 - - - - 5,685 369,334 375,019
REEREWGEE
Balance at 31st March 2018 857,335 38,785 2261 31873 4580 1,305,910 2,240,744

RZB-NFZA=t-B&H
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continuved) 25 B - #ERRE @)
(a) Movements in components of equity (Continued) (a) REZRAEEBD 22 (@)

The Company (Continued) KN E] (#)
Share-based
compensation

Share Capital General reserve Hedging Retained Total

capital reserve reserve ROER reserve profits equity

B EXfife -REE RlEkE papal- 1 REEF Eiag
Note fffzt $000F%  $000F7m  $000Fm  $000F;w  $000Fk  $000FT  $000FR

Balance at 1st April 2018 857,335 31,873 4,580 1,305,910 2,240,744
R=Z-NF0A- AL

Changes in equity for the year:
REEVRRST

Transfer from capital reserve to

retained profits 25(d)(i) (3,609)
BEARGERZREET
Shares issued on exercise of share options 25(c)(i) (7,180)
ATEBREMRTRG
Equity settled share-based transactions 13,521

NRDANTER 2R S

Final dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 25(b)ii) (333,191) (333,191)

HEBRL-FECREBRE

Interim dividend declared in respect

of the current year 25(b)(i) (40,324) (40,324)
ERAEEZTHRE
Total comprehensive income for the year 9 (4,088) 774,234 770,146
AEERENEEE
Balance at 31st March 2019 898961 35,176 2,261 38,214 492 1,710,238 2,685,342

R-E-nE=A=t1-B&8
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

Company attributable to the year

25 BEXR - FERRKRE @
(b) BE
(i) ENFELGREFEAZKRFEFERE

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
$'000 F T $'000 F 7t

Interim dividend declared and paid of 3.8 cents per
ordinary share (2018: 3.8 cents per ordinary share)

EERREZTZ2HERE -SREHER 3.81L
(ZE—N\F : SREBER3.81)

Final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period of 38.0 cents per ordinary share
(2018: 31.4 cents per ordinary share) (note 25(e))

FAESR A B ER 2 REIR S - SREEAR 38.01L
(ZZ2—N\F : SREBER3L40L) (MEE25())

40,161

332,520

443,898 372,681

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period
arebasedon 1,062,037,500 ordinary shares(2018: 1,058,979,500
ordinary shares), being the total number of issued shares at the

date of approval of the financial statements.

The final dividends proposed after the end of the reporting period
have not been recognised as liabilities at the end of the reporting

period.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year

NERBBERZAHRE IR ERBHRRE
AT TIRMAEE 1,062,037,500 RZEIKR (=&
— N\ : 1,058,979,500 JRE @) 5HE -

REHH 2K RARSNERB AL RERR
afE-

(i) BRE—RIRFE  URFAMER
NFEREAREFBEAZEMRE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
$’000 F 7t $000 F 7t

Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year of 31.4 cents per
ordinary share (2018: 27.1 cents per ordinary share)

BRE-BBFE  IRFARERSZNZ

REARE -BREBRKR3ILAW (ZE—N\F : SREBERKR27.110)
Special dividend in respect of the previous financial year,

approved and paid during the year of nil
(2018: 4.2 cents per ordinary share)

BRE-MBFE  URFARERSTZEHIRE -F

(ZE2—N\F  SREBER421M)

333,191 285,831

44,299

333,191 330,130
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BBEHIIN - LB E)
25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continved) 25 EZA - EERKRE @

(c) Share capital ((G:Z:S
(i)  Issued share capital (i) BBTRK
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R E £58 BREE &8
'000 F & $°000 Tt '000 F % $000 Tt

Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:

EBTREHMEEBR :

At 1st April 1,058,872 857,335 1,051,692 774,246
RMA—H

Shares issued on exercise of share options 2,710 41,626 7,180 83,089
MATEEREMBTRG

At 31st March

1,061,582 898,961 1,058,872 857,335
R=A=+—8H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as ZERZEFEATBERARERZRKRE TR
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share ARB 2 RKELBERBNEE EREE - H
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with ARABZRBEENS  MEZERZERSE
regard to the Company’s residual assets. F o

(i)  Shares issued under share option schemes (i) RIZBREBIRITZRG

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for FA - JRE2710000 B AREHBR 2 BR
2,710,000 ordinary shares in the Company. The net consideration FEETTE - RIEBEEA 34,446,000 T E HWAR
of $34,446,000 was credited to share capital. $7,180,000 was 7K © 7,180,000 7T E R 5 M 5T 1(q)(iv) FT & =2 B ZR
transferred from the share-based compensation reserve to the BERAERFHEEREBRARKIE -

share capital account in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(q)(iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)  Capital reserve

As part of the restructuring of the Group in February 1994, the
Company disposed of a property to a former subsidiary and
consideration was received in the form of cash and another
property. A total gain, representing the difference between
the historical carrying value of the property disposed of and
the fair value of the consideration received, resulted from such
transaction.

The gain arising from this transaction was divided into realised
and unrealised portions in the ratio of the amount of cash and the
fair value of the property received (“the property”). The unrealised
gain was taken to capital reserve and is realised on depreciation
of the property. During the year, $3,609,000 (2018: $4,087,000)
was transferred from capital reserve to retained profits.

(ii)  Surplus reserve

The surplus reserve has been set up by Shenzhen Vitasoy,
Vitasoja (Macau) Limitada, and Vitasoy Foshan in accordance with
regulations in the PRC and Macau respectively.

(iii) Other reserve

The other reserve arose from the equity transactions with non-
controlling interests of Shenzhen Vitasoy in 2011 and Vitasoy
Dongguanin 2019.

(iv) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging instruments
used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for cash flow hedges in note 1(t).

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong and the foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of monetary items
that in substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(v).

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

25 BEX - FEERE @)
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(i) BAXFE
ERAERN— A ANE- BT MY — 5
% AAEE—EHHE AR HE—EYE - £
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Wb BIFTHEYL S By EEEED KA EA
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ZERZZWHREWRERYE (THWE]) A
REZEHPACBRRRESRIHG o REBW
WO AERGEE > WHFTEWEITERER -
RER » 3,609,000 7T (=F— /\F : 4,087,000
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(i) BEFRAE
RO EERIER D - &0 (RP) BRA
=R 1L A 45 5 BUAR I8 o B R RPT 2 R

jo

(i) Eftf#E

HinfFEEE B RINEMD R REEMT D B
CE—EFERIE-NFHFEREROERZR
% °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve

Share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note 1(q)

(iv).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31st March 2019, the aggregate amounts of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $1,712,499,000 (2018:
$1,308,171,000).

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed
a final dividend of 38.0 cents per ordinary share (2018: 31.4
cents per ordinary share), amounting to $403,574,000 (2018:
$332,520,000) (note 25(b)(i)). These dividends have not been
recognised as liabilities at the end of reporting period.

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practices, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For
this purpose, the Group defines debt as the total of bank loans
and obligations under finance leases, and adjusted capital as all
components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

25 BEXR - FERRKRE @
(d) fFEEZHERAZE @

(vi) RPEREE R
BOERBEBBELSRTAEERE ZERH
A BE2ERITEBREZANE  BRBER
RETIRIBMIEE 1(q)(iv) FTERL AR 1 B ERE 2 5K
RN SRR MR ©

(e) At IRfEE
RZE-AF=A=+—8  RESB(AEME
) 58 6 Z 2 R ETE 2 ATt 2 K F A 1 B IR #E
BB AZ#EH#REER1,712,499,000 T (ZF—N\
£ :1,308,171,0007T) °

REHRBR  ESEIRERBRESRIER
O (ZE—NF : SREBERILAWL) > £
#(£ 403,574,000 7T (—F—)\F : 332,520,000
7o) (MEE25(b)(i) ° ZE R EAER B W ARER
RBE&E-

() BEXEE

FEEEEREAR CEEEERREREERE
FHELEMEY - BRRBERRRBENERTR
HEEBEBNKTRREERABERE €5
REESKRREHDBRESEMFZABEALE
RIS o

AEBEREBREMHEARBETRIRER
DEBRSRREBRIEMFRSEEKFEER
BERRRFR 2 BZRRERIG T4 - WEE
EBRRE 2 B{CHERBELTAZ -

REZERES  FAEEUSEHEHBERL R
EREREERERZEE - FILEN » AEEH
HEEREARTENNNEHEEK 2B
ERBERDER 2 AR R IE R SR
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25 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(f) Capital management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from the year ended
31st March 2018, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio below 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31st March 2019 and 2018
was as follows:

25 EX - BEREKRE @

(f) EXEE @)
ARBeKRERE S - \F=A=1+—HI
FERETE  BEGHKRABRERLRERRN
0% AT ° BRENABEMLE - AEENS
ARMBRRNZREESHE  BITHRG - @R
REMER BEHMEEMESHEEELRE
BfE-

RIBE-NERZE-N\F=ZA=+—H2ZERE
RSB E R ZNT

Current liabilities:
TEEE

Bank loans (note 20)
RITER (KIEE 20)
Obligations under finance leases (note 21)

BMERE2EH (MEE21)

Total debt
SEHE

Total equity

SRR

Less: Proposed dividends (note 25(b)(i))
W BEURERE (BEEE 25(b)(i)

Adjusted capital
REER

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
$'000 F T $'000 F 7T

27,085

921

28,006

3,469,560 3,169,146
(403,574) (332,520)
2,836,626

3,065,986

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio
BEHCHBEERLE

-

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to fulfilment
of covenants which include maintaining the Group’s debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio below a certain amount and maintaining the
Group’s net worth ratio above a certain amount. Except for the
above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposures to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a) Creditrisk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s cash and bank deposits are placed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings, and the management
consider the Group’s exposure to credit risk is low.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

Trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in
trade and other receivables)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or country in which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At the end
of reporting period, 16.9% (2018: 17.0%) and 37.1% (2018: 38.9%)
of the total trade and other receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade debtors and bills receivables
are generally due within one to three months from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

26 BIEREEREMTAZA

RE
AEEE-REKBEPFEGE  RABES -
FZER EERE - NEBHR 2B BRRERAE
BREEZERRMEA VKRR EERERE
BRI T o

(a) EER
FEERBRERZHERESGNEIMEINAE
B TEET 18 2 R o

JiE]

AEBZFERBREERERURT R HMBRK
R EEEHREFERR MAHRZEBEER

RRBFEZ I -

FEBEZRERBITERDERRNE RFEER
ReThiE  EEERRATEEERZEER
PR ARIE

AEBYERREAESAEEEREERR 2
R e

FERERSGRERER (EEIERERERRE
HEERA)
AEEHEZEERBREIFESEEF 2ERER
MAEFREERMEZTESIBREE B
It EXEHEERBRFERAEEHEREEE
FrzEREREHEE RERAD  XEERAE
FPREREF 2 RF5 BIG FE Y BRI & H At FE UL
MBREZ216.9% (ZZE—N\F : 17.0%) % 37.1%
(ZZ—N\F :38.9%) °

FBEERBBAEERESHZTFIYAETER
EEE - ZEFEETREFBEZIHER
RERIRFEREED  YEEZREF2HEER
LR BBREFEEMEZEERE - BURIKR
RUREE-—BRREEALT—E=EARIH -
—RM = AREFERFFHEERR -
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26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade debtors and bills receivable (which are included in
trade and other receivables) (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and bills
receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade debtors and bills
receivable as at 31st March 2019:

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @
(a) EERBR (@)

BUREHREKEE (EBFEREREMK
Ht WA ) ()
REBERUERT KBRS 2B REE —RIZEE
ERAEAFHRNZEREERE (RAREE
E:H) 22HE - - ARAEEBEFERSE
ERITEBERTEAEFIBZBREXNFEEX
EZR  HRBEAHKRA BB RREELEE AR
EETREFHEFE-STED -

TEREHBRAEER-Z-NF=RA=1+—H
IR K B W RIE A iR 2 E &R b R A
FEBREZEN

Gross carrying Loss
amount allowance
IREAE EiaRAE
$'000 F T $'000 ¥t

Current (not past due)

BIER (SRiEER)

Less than one month past due

BHROR—EA

One to three months past due

BE—Z=1EA

More than three months but less than twelve months past due
BHEB=EAEBLR+=@EA

More than twelve months past due

BHERT @A
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26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1st April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment (see note 1(k)
(i) - policy applicable prior to 1st April 2018). At 31st March 2018,
trade receivables of $1,022,000 were determined to be impaired.
The aging analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that were
not considered to be impaired was as follows:

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @
(a) EERBR (@)

(BBEER) BI9OHKET Z A LLEEF
N—_ZE-N\FNA—-HA REEEEEESR
BREEEFER (RME1UK0O)-R=F-N1
FUA-—BAEAZEE) - R=ZE-N\F=A
=+—B  FEWIRN 1022000 T EERER
{8 - WERKRFCREZ BURAKEBRREZ
SRECDOATANT -

2018
—E-N\F
$'000 F 7t
Neither past due nor impaired 643,415
A R R A
Less than one month past due 66,819
BHOR—EA
One to three months past due 13,096
mE—Z=1 A8
More than three months but less than twelve months past due 2,919
BHEB=EAELR+=MEA
More than twelve months past due 194
BHEE+ @A
726,443

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believed that no impairment allowance was necessary in respect
of these balances as there had been no significant change in credit
quality and the balances were still considered fully recoverable.

BTN R RE 2 R 9 B BT B 3 S e KR
Rz BZEFAR - ARELERE 2 BK
REZEBUEFAH  ZSEFELEERZ
FEALHERY - RIBBEKR  ANHEEEER
WEEAEE  EEEEEHANZEEHREL
RERE  FNR/ZSERMOTRENKE -
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(RBEHBI - LB E)
26 Financial risk management and fair

values of financial instruments (continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable and contract assets during the year
is as follows:

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @
(a) EERBR (@)

R SRR A TR DA & KO 2 AR R
RENZBBMT :

2019
—E-hEF
$'000 F T

2018
—EBE-N\FE
$000 F it

Balance at 1st April
RO A — B4k

Exchange adjustments

BE 5 AR

Impairment losses recognised
HRREREE

Uncollectible amounts written off

A1 £ 58 s

3,375

143

256

(2,752)

Balance at 31st March
R=B=+—H#&k

1,022

1,277

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management for daily operation, including placing
short term cash deposits and raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. Cash surplus over operating needs are
closely monitored and managed by the Group’s central cash and
treasury management system. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term. The Group’s exposures to the liquidity risk and its policies
for managing such risk were unchanged from the year ended 31st
March 2018.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7
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26 Financial risk management and fair 26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
values of financial instruments (continued) AE @
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBHEELEE (&)
2019
—E-hEF
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SHAXRITHEBRER
Within
1 year or Carrying
on demand Total amount
—FRFHIRER st BREE
$°000 Tt $'000 F 7t $'000 Tt

Trade and other payables (excluding receipts
in advance and customer deposits) 1,543,744 1,543,744 1,543,744
P BRF R Bt AR
(TEEARRIEREFRE)
Bank loans

RITER

1,588,335 1,588,335 1,588,252

2018
—B-N\F
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRARTRRSREH
Within

1yearor Carrying

on demand Total amount
—FRAHRER 5 IREE
$000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t

Trade and other payables (excluding receipts

in advance and customer deposits) 1,351,498 1,351,498 1,351,498
FEAT RN R HLAth FEAS TR

(TEERRFEREFRE)

Bank loans 27,130 27,130 27,085
RITER
Obligations under finance leases 943 943 921
REHRSE 2 &%

1,379,571 1,379,571 1,379,504
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26 Financial risk management and fair 26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
values of financial instruments (continued) AE @
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REESRE (8
2019 2018
“E-nE ZE-\%
Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow  Contractual undiscounted cash (outflow)/inflow
ANAITEES (FH) /KA ARKITEES (i) /RA
More than More than
Within 1 year but Within 1year but
1 year or less than 1yearor less than
on demand 2 years ondemand 2years
Ak —E&{E Total -ERZ —F#%8 Total
REX WER dct BRER RER a5t

$000Fx  $000Fxm  $000Fm  $000Fm  $000Frm  $000FRm

Derivatives settled gross:

BEEMMETASE:

Forward foreign exchange contracts (note 26(d))
EEMNESH (MEE26(d)

- Qutflow

-

- Inflow

SRA

(6,813) - (6,813)

6,628 = 6,628
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26 Financial risk management and fair 26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
values of financial instruments (continued) AE @)
(c) Interestrate risk (c) FI=E B

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows FZEBESHIEZARBERARRESRE
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in TSRS E MRS 2R o
market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest- AEECHNEZEREIEREMEBE - NEBE
bearing borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its fixed rate RETERZFEMFEKT - REEHEEEEE
and variable rate borrowings. The Group’s interest rate profile as ZFZRE R T S (i) 18 ©

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIEEH
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s TRHAVNAEBNHEBGENRERB 2FNRE
interest-bearing borrowings at the end of the reporting period: #:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BRFIZE -] ERFI=E o}
% $'000 F 7t % $'000 F it
Fixed rate borrowings:
EEEE:
Obligations under finance leases 7.50 921
RIERE 2B
Variable rate borrowings:
FEREE:
Bank loans 3.00 27,085
IRITEN
Total borrowings 28,006
BERER
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26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31st March 2019, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits by approximately
$312,000 (2018: $190,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits in respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting
period. The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation and
retained profits is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest rates. Management assumed
that certaininterest-bearing borrowings maturing during the next
reporting period will be rolled over upon the maturing for daily
operation purposes.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at fair
value through profit or loss, and the Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its debt obligation. The fixed rate
instruments of the Group are insensitive to any change in market
interest rate. A change in interest rate at the end of the reporting
period would not affect profit or loss.

The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March 2018.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and borrowings which give rise to receivables, payables,
cash balances and obligations under finance leases that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United
States dollars (“USD”), Australian dollars (“AUD”), Singapore
dollars (“SGD”), Philippines Peso (“PHP”) and Renminbi (‘RMB”).
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26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @
(c) FI=mEBE (@)

(i) SR
\ZE-NFZASt+ A HHAEEE
LR/ TH-EELY  EFAEMTEDEE
RETRZERT - AEERBEERRRBE
RIS LD, 040 312,000 7T (ZB—/\F -
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REEFRRB G 2 BREE - NEBRRBLEZ
ENREEENAZZE  DRANZREBHHTE
XMz FEFEMET - EEERRNT — @R
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26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD”), all sales and purchases are denominated in either HKD
or USD, except for certain transactions with group entities and
purchases that are denominated in AUD, SGD, PHP and RMB.
Given the HKD is pegged to the USD, management does not
expect that there will be any significant currency risk associated
with such USD denominated transactions.

For group entities whose functional currency is a currency
other than HKD, except for certain sales and transactions with
group entities and certain borrowings from group entities that
are denominated in HKD, most of the other transactions are
denominated in their functional currencies.

The Group’s policies for managing such risk were unchanged
from the year ended 31st March 2018. During the year ended
31st March 2019, the Group uses bank balances to hedge its
currency risk arising from the purchase of raw materials that are
denominated in foreign currency and classifies these as cash flow
hedges as set out in note 18(a).

The Group has also used forward exchange contracts to manage
its currency risks.

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts that
economically hedge monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss. There was no
liabilities for net fair value of forward exchange contracts used by
the Group as economic hedges of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at 31st March 2019 (2018:
$181,000), recognised as derivative financial instruments.

In respect of other trade receivables and payables denominated
in foreign currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

26 BiEBREEREMIAZA
AE @)

(d) E¥REk (@)

RIS REE ([B]) SEEBRmHS -
BT REMEEETYRSREBURT « &
7T HERARMESESN  FIEEEYREES
ETHE - NBMEETHY  EEERSE
BZZUERTEZRSTEIMEASHE

B o

FIMBEERRBE LI zER 2 EEERMS
BETHEREEEERET IR UREEE
BECETEERBREITEN  HitABHRS
YREREEREHE -

BBZE-—ZE-\E=ZA=+t—HLEER K&

—hWE=ZA=+t—-RLLFE  XEEFNBRITE
FHHHBEUIMNESSHEZ EMBEAELE ZE
R - WKL 18() MBS RS RITEESD
BRREREH -

FAEBTAAERNMNESHEELERAM -

AEREE P UNNEHECEREEREBZER

HMEEHNZANBEEBRERZAER - R

—NE=ZRA=+—H  KEBERELEE LI

B E2EBEERBEZRAMNESH ZFA

AREXREEEE (ZZ—/\F : 181,0007T) » J3
SR BTESRTE -

FLASNE EHE 2 H R AR R B SRR S
FEBEEFERRNPERTEMNG  UEE
BHEIRERR  BERFERT AR AT EAK

I o

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE &



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s significant exposure at
the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are
shown in HKD, translated using the spot rates at the year end
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong
into the Group’s presentation currency, the exposure arising
from the borrowings from group entities that in substance form
part of the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank balances
that are designated as a hedge of the Group’s foreign currency
risk of highly probable forecast transactions or committed future
transactions are excluded.

BRREEREMIAZD
RAE @)
(d) E¥mEp @)

(i) AEEzZEERRE
TRFAVNAEENERDUERAER 2 HEER
PN EBHEZCRREENRERELEZE
REBRR FHERRBAEsSEDRFERZ
EERBERBEEZIZA - BEFBUIN
HWEMBARRSERRDZHBHRRALEE 2
R2HNEMMEL =0 KEEEERZEE
(BEBRRKBAR2REFH 2 —#H) 2B
B BURIEE RSP ARERPRTREETZ
RBBCEEET ZRERZ 2 NS Az RIT
EELTEEER -

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in HKD)

HERRAS (NEHHE)

2019
ZE-E

2018
ZE-)\E

usb SGD HKD RMB PHP AUD

ES) B A N S A7
$000Fx  $000Fx  $000Fm  $000FT  $000Fm  $000 %

Cash and bank deposits
RERBOHR

Amount due from group
companies

RUEERENANE
Loantojoint venture
MREARIELZERH
Trade and other receivables
Bt E L L
Trade and other payables
BARHRALENR

(Gross exposure arising
from recognised assets
and liabilities

BEZAERREEL AR

23,201

(2237) (3822)

68711

Notional amount of forward
exchange contracts used
as economic hedges

RlESES 2 ES
NERNZEEE

Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and
liabilities

ERZEEREMELY
BRAERE

68,711 33,638 12072
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UsD SGD HKD RMB PHP AUD

EY 87 it AEH it A7
§000F%  $000F%  $000Fm  $000F:m  §000Fm  §000FR

216,359 1699 92991 = 7

7551 1336 9,129 75% = 7273
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(27,268) (365) (3445) - (230)

196,694 ! 10,828 97142 7050

= = = s (6,813)

196,694 ! 10,828 97142 = 27
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26 Financial risk management and fair 26 BIRAMEERESHMIAZA
values of financial instruments (continued) AE @

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥mEp @)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SRS

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the TRITRERBAEESEBREHERARZ
Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits that would ERNZEHEEE B A EBRFARER
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group entities have RABGEFN B EE (REMEEMEIRTTE
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed BHREZHEFTE) UM E > DEERABMEEE
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant. THBEZRFTERETHREMER 2 TMERE
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the ERBEMIZINERTLE -

HKD and the USD would be materially unaffected by any changes

in movement in value of the USD against other currencies.

2019 2018
=F-NF —B-N\F

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (decrease)

Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit

(decrease) after taxation (decrease) after taxation

in foreign and retained in foreign and retained

exchange profits exchange profits

rates BREE IR A rates BRE BB

ERLH RARE G E=LEH, RAREBER

(F®%) EH (T (T¥)  EFH(TE)

$°000 F Tt $'000 F 7t
usD 5% (79)
E (5)% 79
SGD 5% 41
T (5)% (41)
HKD 5% 482
pitid (5)% (482)
RMB 5% 3,974
AR (5)% (3,974)
PHP 5% -
k& (5)% -
AUD 5% 13
BT (5)% (13)

Annual Report 2018/2019 FE & @



Notes to the Financial Statements
B RS R R M EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after taxation measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements
of subsidiaries and joint venture outside Hong Kong into the
Group’s presentation currency, the exposure arising from the
borrowings from group entities that in substance form part of
the net investment in subsidiaries and the bank balances that are
designated as ahedge of the Group’s foreign currency risk of highly
probable forecast transactions or committed future transactions.
The analysis has been performed on the same basis for the year
ended 31st March 2018.

(e) Fair value measurement
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
consolidated financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

@ Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @
(d) E¥mEp @)

(i) SBBMEDH (&)
IREBZAMERBERAEESERUZTADY
BEEEBHECRBIZERN  RERABITZER
30 R I e D3R 4 a8 A IS S o

PRSI ERERSBEARENTEAE
ERERAFESAREEEMNERM 2ZEE
BMTHE BFAKEQATABUERARERAZ
DEEBUN 2 ERTEZBIRKREY - 2
TAEERAEEBUIIMBERBRARRSE R
AU BRERATEBZ2NERMEE 2=
B REEEEEZFE (EEBRRHELH
ZREFE B0 MEEZERE - UREE
R R AREEAMRAURET ZRE R A
ETZRARRS 2SR ZBRITHEF - BEZ
E-N\FZA=T-HLEFEZSMIRRER
EEET -

(e) AREFE
() BAAEBTEZETHEERER
DRERE

TREJIEHRERAFEAEBRFRS ST
AEnnfE  BR(BBMB|MELR) F135K 2
AEEIREZ=ZRAABRBESTIE -
HRAEFEDE2ERNESENTHERE
iR ABEZTBEEERERMRERE ¢

- B-RhE: EERF-REARE (R
SAEAREEERRBENERTE ZRE
ARWE) FFEZDE
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26 Financial risk management and fair
values of financial instruments (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is measured using
Level 2 inputs. The fair value is determined by discounting the
contractual forward price and deducting the current spot rate.
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant government
yield curve as at the end of the reporting period plus an adequate
constant credit spread.

(ii)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

All other financial instruments of the Group carried at costs or

amortised costs are not materially different from their fair values

as at 31st March 2019 and 2018.

27 Commitments
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31st March 2019 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

26 BIEREEREMTAZA
RE @
(e) AAEFTE (#)

() BAREFBZETHEERER (M)

DAERE (8

- BIHGE - ERE-RWARE (BIREE
EXFE R UBERARE) BXRER
ERTHEERAMBITEZARE T
THEHABBREDSHE2BARE -

- BZRMEE: EAEXTIUBRBARE
FFEZARE-

EHMNESHN 2 ARETRBE R ABET
B WEBMBESNERERRIBRBNBPE
REE o IR A2 BN RZRNER B 2 BB
BEWERHE  ZMEHZBEERFERET
o

(i) WHBERAAESRZEMTEZAE

RZB-AERZZS-N\E=ZA=+—0 ' &&
B EMtR R AR ER Ay R e/ T A8
HAABETEERESR -

27 i
(a) R=B—NE=A=+—R *EHBER
KNEE RN EARREMT :

Contracted for
EHES
Authorised but not contracted for

ERBERFTA

2019 2018
—E-hE —znf
$'000 F T $’000 F T

522,838 256,082
1,771,365 1,806,128
2,294,203 2,062,210

Asat 31stMarch2019,the Groupiscommittedtocertaincontracts
for the acquisition and construction of plant and machinery and
buildings.

RZZB-NF=ZA=+—0 AEEEEETSE
THEREEREREBURBFTZEH
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27 Commitments (Continued)

(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint

27 EIE @)
(b) kAESFALNAEEEESEATZER

venture not included above are as follows: EENT

2019 2018

—g-h& —2- N\

$'000 F T $'000 T 7T

Contracted for 25,216

254

Authorised but not contracted for 25,181
EREERETY

20,343 50,397

(C) At 31st March 2019, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

(c) WZ=—hE=A=+—8 BEFTAH
MReKEHETHREEN 2REHEENRK

payable as follows: HBEET -
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F

Factory Factory

machinery machinery

and and

equipment equipment

Properties TRRH%EE R Properties TMkee R

L/ES RYE LES B

$000 Tt $'000 F 7t $'000 T 7T $'000 F 7t

Within one year 140,857 2,175
—£R

After one year but within five years 204,564 1,138

—FREHEFR

After five years 55,867 -

hF#

The Group leases a number of properties and items of factory
machinery and equipment under operating leases. The leases run
for an initial period of one to six years, with an option to renew
each lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated.

Some of the leases of the Group include contingent rentals
determinable at certain fixed rates on the turnover of the relevant
concessions in periods in which the leases relate to.

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

FEERBEEHERRSEWER ZH TR
BEEERE ZSHENSI /Y —FEAF  ALH
BRRZSHEEERREERD  ERABHRRS
AEHBEE °

AEEBHAETRZAEEEBREENEZ
SR ETEELRBE 2HABESE -
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28 Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
inthese financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a)
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Transactions with related parties

The products of the Group are distributed in Australia by a
related party (non-controlling interests of the Company’s
subsidiary) and a management fee is charged for the
provision of services. The management fee is calculated
based on a pre-determined percentage of the net sales of
products distributed by the related party. Total management
fees charged by the related party for the year amounted
to $26,111,000 (2018: $25,202,000). The amount due
to the related party as at 31st March 2019 amounted to
$6,679,000 (2018: $6,052,000).

On 29th July 2013, the Group entered into a distribution
agreement with a related party (non-controlling interests
of the Company’s subsidiaries) in New Zealand pursuant to
which the related party agreed to distribute the products
of the Group in New Zealand. A management fee is charged
for the provision of services. The management fee is
calculated based on a pre-determined percentage of the
net sales of products distributed by the related party. Total
management fee charged by the related party for the year
amounted to $6,784,000 (2018: $6,492,000). The amount
due to the related party as at 31st March 2019 amounted to
$1,687,000 (2018: $1,620,000).

The Group has entered into a distribution agreement with a
joint venture in the Philippines pursuant to which the Group
agreed to supply soya related beverages to the joint venture.
Total sales to the joint venture for the year amounted to
$40,013,000 (2018: $30,610,000). The amount due from
the joint venture as at 31st March 2019 amounted to
$4,629,000 (2018: $2,487,000).

The Group has entered into a loan agreement with the joint
venture pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide a
loan to finance the business activities of the joint venture.
The loan bears interest at 4.75% per annum, is unsecured
and is repayable on 30th March 2021, 30th March 2022
and 30th March 2023. Total interest income from the joint
venture for the year amounted to $471,000 (2018: nil). The
loan to joint venture as at 31st March 2019 amounted to
$33,638,000 (2018: nil).

28 EXBAEALRS
BREHBRESERBELRS RESIN AL
BRI TEABMEALRS ©

(a)
(i)

(iii)

EHEEALTZRS
rEBzERHA—SBEEAL (KATKE
NAZIEEBEER) RBMNDEE ZAL
BIREBREUNEEER EHEBEAERE
ABECZBEATISHERBEEFEZ
BALHE - FR > ZEAEATHRZE
HEHE£26111,000T (=& — \F:
25202,0007T) e R=E—NAEFE=ZA=+—
HENFZEEA LT ZFIES 6,679,000 T
(ZZ—)\F : 6,052,0007T) °

R-ZZE—Z=FtA=-+NA KEEHE—
FHREALT (RKATWB AR 2 ERE
=) R — B2 #EHE Bt
ZBEATRERTARIEAREZE
Mo ZHAEALTHRIEHREVNRERE
R-EEEBARELAEE2ZBEEALY
HERHETHEZ2EIUHE - FR - &
BEATIEIZEEEASH 6,784,000 T
—Z2—N\F :6,492,0007T) c R=F—H
F=A=1+-—HENFZEEATZNE
#1,687,0007T (=& — \ £ : 1,620,000
JT) °

AEBECHE-EFEESE QR —E
DEHE B FXEERERDZEER
AMHEAZHEBSRER - FR AEZEERQ
FE K 2 8 & 48 %8 540,013,000 7T (
Z — \ £ :30,6100007T) e R=F—H
F=A=1+T—"HEWRZEEQTZRES
4,629,0007C (ZZF— )\ : 2,487,0007T) °

FAEBOHESE QT L - HERWGE

Bt XEERERE-ZER AEZS
ERNACEBTHRE - ZERREER
475%5tE > WHEIKH > BAR-ZE=—F

=B=+H -ZEBE-ZZH=ZA=+RHEK=
Z=F=ZA=1HEZE-FX  KEZ
EENTZRNEWALEEEE471,0007T (=

E-N\F H) RIZE-NF=ZA=+—
B m&EAREH2E/»R 33638000
T(ZE—N\F )~
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28 Material related party transactions

(Continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

The related party transactions in respect of (i) and (ii) above
constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However they are exempt from
the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
as they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

(b) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s Directors as disclosed
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in
note 8, is as follows:

28 EAXBEALIRS @)

(a) BERFEALTZRS (@)
FREBEORMEZBEEALRSEBR LD
RAEAASFRT 2 BEERS - AT > |
RZZER SERE 14A76(1) I RIEPIE - Bt
EHEET I HRANE UASIWERT -

(b) AREBEAEZME
FEBBRERASZHS (BEMETNE
EAARESIA 2 RBARMES B EE
FREHFEEXNZRE) O :

Short-term employee benefits
EHESER
Post-employment benefits
BRI R A

Equity compensation benefits

A ERE A

2019 2018
=EF-hF —E-N\F
$'000 F it $'000 Tt
36,430

1,285

8,115

55,774 45,830

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
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29 Equity transaction with non-controlling
interests

On 31st December 2018, the Group entered into an agreement
with Shenzhen GuangMing Group Co., Ltd (“Guangming”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell, and Guangming
agreed to purchase, 15% equity interest in Vitasoy Dongguan
at a consideration of RMB50,250,000, which was determined
with reference to the registered capital of Vitasoy Dongguan of
RMB335,000,000.

On 1st January 2019, the Group disposed of 15% equity
interest in Vitasoy Dongguan to Guangming at a consideration
of RMB22,500,000 (equivalent to approximately $25,618,000),
which was determined with reference to the paid up capital
of Vitasoy Dongguan of RMB150,000,000 at that time. At 1st
January 2019, the carrying amount of Vitasoy Dongguan’s net
assets amounted of $168,251,000 and the disposal has resulted
in an increase in non-controlling interest of $25,238,000 and an
increase in other reserve of $380,000.

On 27th February 2019 and 19th March 2019, the Group
and Guangming contributed additional capital totaling
RMB66,000,000 (equivalent to approximately $76,033,000) to
Vitasoy Dongguan in proportion to their shareholding of 85% and
15% in Vitasoy Dongguan respectively, of which RMB9,900,000
(equivalent to approximately $11,405,000) was contributed by
Guangming and was presented as capital contribution from a non-
controlling interest in the consolidated cash flow statement.

29 EFERERZERRS

RZZB-NF+ZA=+—H  AEELRIIH
KXAKEBERAT ([XBE]) FTM - 15
it AREREHEMAARSBEERTEMY
15% PR iEREs - ER ARY 50,250,0007T @ J5
SRR T4 M) 2 E M E AR AR B 335,000,000
TEERE °

RIZE-NF-F—B AEERXHALHERT
#fth gl 15% RERER - REAR AR 22,500,000
7T (FHE R #25,618,0007T) @ JH 2 BBER = 41
MERZHERA AR 150,000,000 TEE ©
R-ZZE-NF—B—H RE#MHZFEE
ZERME{E A 168,251,000t * BHESZEESH
IR AE R R 25238000 T RS Hi B E R
380,000 7T °

R-ZE-—NEFE-A=-+tAR=-ZF—NE=A
TAB > RNEERKBECDHIRE R R4 M)
Z IR 85% K 15% FE SN R 4E b 43 5E &
A AR% 66,000,000 7T (HHE R # 76,033,000
7)) Hih AR #99000007 (18 & R &
11,405,0007T) AXBEIETRGEERETRE
RURBIFRRER ZFELY -
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30 Company-level statement of financial

position

30 ATFEBMEZMEAMRR T

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment

M - BERRE

- Investment properties

-REYHE

- Other property, plant and equipment
-Hitu% - BERRE

Interest in subsidiaries

RE QR 2R

Deposits for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

BEMXE  BERREZITE

Current assets

REEE

Inventories

A

Trade and other receivables
JFEE LAY B R R Lt P LR
Amounts due from subsidiaries
FE AT Bf BB xR R IR
Current tax recoverable

FE R AR 18

Cash and bank deposits
RERBITER

Current liabilities

nREAE

Trade and other payables
FEAT RN R HAth FEAS TR
Amounts due to subsidiaries
FEASFfTB X RIFRIE
Current tax payable
FEIREABIIE

Net current assets
BREBEE
Total assets less current liabilities

REERRBEE

Vitasoy International Holdings Ltd. #Efh i EIFR B AR A 7

2019
—E-hE
$'000 Tt $'000 F T

3,628
505,594
509,222

1,600,707

1,185

2,111,114

182,551
479,130

168,877

497,338

1,327,896

592,000
89,990
514

682,504

645,392

2,756,506

2018
—B-N\F
$000 Tt $000 F it

4,088

436,030

440,118

987,354

1,283

1,428,755
163,414
464,114
123,145
2,329
683,485
Lettaty
496,279
65,466
,,,,, el

874,742

2,303,497
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30 Company-level statement of financial

pOSitiOl’l (Continued)

30 AREBHEZMEMRRET @

Note iz

Non-current liabilities

ERBEE

Employee retirement benefit liabilities
EEERNEFEE

Deferred tax liabilities

EERIEEE

NET ASSETS
FEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
BARKf#E

Share capital

[

Reserves
f#is
TOTAL EQUITY

25(a)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

20th June 2019.

Winston Yau-lai LO
ERE
Director

EF

2019
—E-hEF
$'000 F 7T $'000 F T

71,164
2,685,342

898,961

1,786,381

2,685,342

2018
—E-N\F
$'000 Tt $'000 Tt
12,715
50,038
62,753
2,240,744
857,335
1,383,409
2,240,744

E-NFARA-HHRESSHES RER

Roberto GUIDETTI

FEEE
Director

EFE
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(BREEHEAI - LUBREEE)

31 Non-adjusting events after the
reporting period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Directors
proposed a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
25(b)(i).

32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31st
March 2019 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

31 BREHARERBRER

EERNEHRAREBIRERBRE - E— D5
FRBRE 25(b) (i) 4K ER ©

32 BEREMERARBE=Z—N
FZA=1t+—HLEFELEX»Z
&5 « Fel ZERI R BT EEE
B2 E

BEZEUBBRERTIZ2E SBSHOALAEE

EHEE—E-hAF=ZA=T—HLEFEERE

WMo NEEZETHRRFEA 2BUBEET « #:5]

ZHIRZE  EREFETY JeLEAEEEE

&3] ~ FE] R KR8 o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

A5 A

RZBEBZ

SETHEEN
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
(BB BHREZEA) E 1655 [HE | —E-hAFE—HA—H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
B8 (EBRMBHRERBEER) B30 [ FEHEEZ THEE ] —E-NF—HA—H
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
(BEVBHREER) —_E-—hFZ 22— tFBEHFEICE —ZE-NF—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019
(EBBTEA) F28% [ REELFARSE N A2 RAEZ | 2185] —E-NF—H—H
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31st March 2019 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of HKFRS 16 which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
While the assessment has been substantially completed for
HKFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this
standard may differ as the assessment completed to date is based
on the information currently available to the Group, and further
impacts may be identified before the standard is initially applied in
the Group’s interim financial report for the six months ended 30th
September 2019. The Group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the standard is
initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 16, Leases
As disclosed in note 1(j)(iii), currently the Group classifies leases
into operating leases.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way that
lessors account for their rights and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum
future lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-
of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the
lessee will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-
of-use asset, instead of the current policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect
not to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to be
recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

32 EEMERARREBEEZE=ZE—H
F=A=+—HLEFEEMZ
1£3] - ] ERIRRETREE
X2 2 @)

REBREFEHZEER] ~ I ERRREER

REAVBEEZFE - XEBESEHB(E

B RMELED) F 1658 2 & T HHEH A se 2 H 4R

EUBBRERNEATE - EHENRTE E—

SHBR TR o BEYH (FEVKIRELEL)

F 16 2L E KB - EHEREF TR ZFT

ENERBERAEBMEB2ER » FLELDH

MZER B BT ETREBMTE » MRZER

BAERARAEESEZE-E—-NEFEhLA=THL

ANMEB 2 P HAE IR E AT W RE R B E S o

AEBTNAGERELRECSTHE - 8158

EAR BEEZENERERANZEBERE -

(BERMBREER) F 1658 [HE)
A MHEE 1) i) FTREE - A EERE SRR DS
RERHE -

(BBMBMEEL) E16RFARETSH LA
AREBAERT 2 A RBHETARZ ARE
BMERZE - A - —BERB(BBUBREE
Ay 165 ABARTBEIREHEREE
HE -k EATEREREZRRT - AHA
HREREREHESTREAE 2 RYRE
HEETAR  BRESRAGEH  AEARR
ARBEEENRREBRIANTEHEEE
LHEIEEZ[ERE]IEE - PHRIAZE
EREER  FEASEIEERERTEEFHM
EEZHNEEARERABEENE - UEHRE
HARARG(CEERICEHERTHEE2HE
SERCHABEER - FRFITERERE - AHEA
AREEFUGESEXEANEHES (B8
WMHETEAHUT) REEEEEZEE - R
ZERRT - HEBERSEENABERNEREL
BT LR o
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32 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended

31st March 2019 (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both
assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to grandfather the previous assessment
of which existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. The Group
will therefore apply the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only
to contracts that are entered into on or after the date of initial
application. In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical
expedient for not applying the new accounting model to short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1st April 2019 and will not restate
the comparative information. As disclosed in note 27(c), at 31st
March 2019 the Group’s future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases amount to $361,898,000 and
$7,487,000 for properties and factory machinery and equipment
respectively, part of which is payable either between 1 and 5 years
after the reporting date or in more than 5 years.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments
to be made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting policies
as described above could have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements from 1st April 2019 onwards.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
IEMBERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB#5HE)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE =ZT-N\EF ZB—+tHE ZEBE-RFE =ZT-FHF

NotefffzE ~ $'000 ¥t  $000F7t  $000Fst  $000Fs  $000 FiT

Results

Revenue 1 AL UL 6464525 5406090  5551,898 5,051,827
A

Profit from operations 1 977,160 822,248 848,034 603,352 529,264
R
Finance costs 2 (2,086) (1,700) (3,730) (4,044) (5,655)
A& BN
Share of losses of joint venture (19,236) (17,814) (627) - -
FrtEE N RS
Profit before taxation 955,838 802,734 843,677 599,308 523,609
FRBE AR A
Income tax (208,143) (160,679) (190,383) (34,064) (114,888)
FR8H

Profit for the year 747,695 642,055 653,294 565,244 408,721
REEREF|

Attributable to:

THALHEA -

- Equity shareholders of
the Company 695,907 585,774 618,372 530,616 372,079

- RNFRERE A

- Non-controlling interests 51,788 56,281 34,922 34,628 36,642

- FERER

Profit for the year
REEHEF]

642,055 653,294 565,244 408,721

Assets and liabilities

EERERE

Property, plant and equipment 2,939,306 2,348,875 2,053,276 2,186,972 1,853,517
W - BENRE
Other non-current assets 163,852 173,144 97,027 144,082 77,016
HiEREEE
Net current assets 2 488,007 737,116 823,069 383,392 304,702
FREBEE

Total assets less current

liabilities 3,591,165 3,259,135 2,973,372 2,714,446 2,235,235
REERTBAE
Non-current liabilities (121,605) (89,989) (283,666) (302,583) (110,563)
FRBERE

NET ASSETS 3,469,560 3,169,146 2,689,706 2,411,863 2,124,672
BEE
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Five Year Summary
hFENBRE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LUB#5HE)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hF —E-NF —E—tF —E—REF —=E-fRF
$'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t $'000 F 7t
Capital and reserves
BEARR
Share capital 898,961 857,335 774,246 733,722 677,694
[iES
Reserves 2,266,451 2,052,422 1,697,123 1,466,013 1,241,391
i
Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company 3,165,412 2,909,757 2,471,369 2,199,735 1,919,085
RATREFEA
LR
Non-controlling interests 304,148 259,389 218,337 212,128 205,587
RS
TOTAL EQUITY 3,469,560 3,169,146 2,689,706 2,411,863 2,124,672
Earnings per share
BREF
- Basic 65.6 cents 1l 55.5 cents{ll 58.9 cents il 50.9 cents{ll 35.9 cents il
= %N
- Diluted 65.0 cents 1l 55.0 cents{ll 58.4 cents il 50.4 cents{ll 35.5 cents il
-8
Notes to the five year summary R F BB RBEM T

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers, with effect from 1st April 2018, the Group has changed its
accounting policies in respect of revenue recognition. Figures in years
earlier than 2019 are stated in accordance with the policies applicable
in those years.

The Group adopted HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative
compensation, from 1st April 2018. As a result, the Group has changed
its accounting policies in relation to financial instruments. As allowed
by HKFRS 9, the Group has not restated information relating to prior
years. There was no difference in the carrying amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9. Prior to 1st April 2018, figures were stated in accordance with the
policies applicable in those years.
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